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Brammer
saves customers
money.

2014 £66.2m

2013 £680.0m

2012 £51.5m

2071 £32.8m

2010 £20.0m

2008 £25.em

2002 £15.0m

2007 £15.1m

2006 £8.8m

.200522.6m

’ 2004 £0.9m
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» Product and brand rationalisation > Stock profiing
» Standardisation
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“| understand how important
it is to reduce inventory
and procurement costs.”
Sze page 9

“A small improvement can
make a huge difference.”
See page 13

Organisation

> Suppher reduction

» Vendor managed mventory

> Tranng

> Equepment surveys

> Insite™ services

> Energy survey/monitonng

> Consignment stock managesment

“The customer can invest the
savings in many other things
such as hiring new employees
or improved facilities.”

See page 17

Orgamsaton

> Suppher reduction

> Vendor managed wnventory

> Trasing

> Equipment surveys

> Insite™ services

> Energy survey/monitonng

> Consgnment stock management




Strategy

Growth
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Reasons to invest

O barsiness - We prowvade solutions for oo customess” need

the overall cost to thern of procunng MRO products wisch drives
the European MAO market ahead of GOP.

Market size and Brammes's share — We ane the European
market leader operating in a highly fragmented market, though
wnth only jrst over a 1% share of the market, estmated

o be worth moee than €70 bilion, our market share will nat

be a constram? to growth For many years to come.

Market nature - Our business is focused on hagher growth
market segments, MaNITESING oWr exposure to more cychcal
market segments.

Customer base - We have a robust and diverse blue chap
chent base, and Brough ouwr Key Account and brsite™ strateges
we embed oersedves with our customers,

Prodiuct range extension through organic and acquesitrve growth —
We constantly monstor opporturnbes to extend our geographiacal
footprnt and to consolidate the market through strategc

such as tooks distributor Buck & Hickman in 2011. In 2014 the

our product range and sericing Key Accounts in the regon.

Margin opporhauty and development - Since incepton our
strategy has delivered margin improvement with an EBITA
margmn target of 8% n the medium term

Management team and capabifites ~ Our business s led by
a highly expenenced and proven management team with a sobd
group balance shoet to support further growth,

North Amencan market — in the more developed North Amencan
market those businesses which focused on simitar growth
iatives have demonstrated conststent outperformance against
GDP and the largest five businesses now have an estimated
25% share of the total MRO market, wiisch demonstrates the
strategic opportumty for Brammer tin Europe
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Growth from inception of strategy

2004 s 2006 2007 2008 2009 2Ma 2011 2012* 2013 ne
Revermre £270.8m 2874 £314.2m €3796m £478.4m T426.1m £463.4m £571.5m D529.5m D651.9m F£r23.6m
Gross mamgmn 30.1% 309% 305% 3049% 3J00%  3N0%  3RI% 303N 305K 5% INT%
Operatag probit' f98mn £125m £15im £199m £262m Fid4m £23.0m £37.8m £37323m £398m 412w
Return on saes" 36% 449% 48% 52% 55% 43% 4956 56%  5.8% 6.19% 5%
Proft before tax {stadory) £62m fi0im C146m £149m 1B9m HiSHm €193m £245m 2629m £ 9m £17.7m
Operating cash fow £18.7m f£157m £11.9m £16.7m £292m £33 3m 275m A%Sm £237m 434m E£A06m
Net debt E570m €£50.7m €542m £39.4m €5319m £39%9m CRETm LHIN ESABm £52%n £S5 3m
Total customey signed off
cost srangs f04m £26m £88m f£15.1m £150m £258n £30.0m £349m £515m O6500m £66.2m
Eamings per share
{statutony)? 56p 112p 1450 145p 17.4p 0fp 130p 16Bp 166p 205p 92p
Eamings per share's? 65 112p 1Bp 149 182p 123p 139 198p 215p 221p 209p
Drdidends per shame? 34p a8p 43p 5tp 5.5p 55p 6.6p B.4p 94p W2p 107p

1. Based on profit belfore amortrsataon of acauined stangibles acquesiton related costs and exceptoral Rems.
2. Amounts per share for 2008 and pror years were restzted to reflect the effect of the 1 for 1 nghits st re completed o hNovarrber 2009,

3. 2012 vestated on adopton of IAS 19R - Employes Benefits.

Strategic growth drivers

Despite challengng condibons n Europe, Brammers contmued
to outperform the market nn 2014 ~ garang s,gndficant market
share and delivenng growth in relation to revenue, margmn
and profits through consistent focus on the key growth dnvers
that underpin al we do

Country organic growth

Our market segmentation approach, which enables us

to demonstrate our understanding of the ndvidual needs

of specific mdustnes, once agan served us well in 2014

A contniang focus on defensive sectors enabled us to grow
sales n areas such as Utibies (9 9% up on 2013) and Food

& Dnnk {up 9 5%} But even in the more cyciical ndustnes such
as Automotive {up 11 1%} and Construction & Aggregates
{up 11 7%) Brammey achieved impressive growth

Key Accounts

The revenue contnbution from Brammer's Key Account
contracts has grown every year since we slarted targeiing
Europe's leading manufaciurers more than 10 years ago

Key Account sales now account for 53 2% of our overall Group
sales Sales Per Worlang Day growth in Key Accounts was
up 8 7% as a whole in 2014 and revenue growth in our Tier

1 pan-European Key Accounts saw a substantial 26 8%
increase In fact, we signed 14 new pan-European agreements
n 2014 and have a strong pipeline of prospects for 2015

Insrtes™

Our customers hugely value our Insite™ service — where
we prowde a Brammer branch within ther plant - a fact

underined by the contimuing growth i the total number

of Insites™

At the end of 2014, we were runming a total of 427 Insites™
across Eunope, represenng an morease of 44 over 2013.
We now have 179 full ime Insstes™ and 248 part time ones,
coninbuting 51% of totat Key Account business  Insites™
sales grew by 11.1% in 2014

Product range extension

Our 100,000 strong customer base and wide product range
gves us plenty of scope to sell more to orgamisations that
we already supply Non-beanng sales were up 18 8% n
2014, with Mechanical Power Transmussion sales up 9 1%
and Flud Power sales up 11 2% But the most substanted
growth in continental Europe continues to be drven by Tools
and General Mamienance sales — where we saw an 80%
increasa in 2014 This rapud growth s set 1o continue in 2015,
as exit growth rates of sales on the continent m Q4 2014
were running at 138 3%

Customer service

Brammer's customers buy from 6 8 milkon order lines,
manufactured by 27,000 supplers, and every year we fulfl
three million orders, so we need to mantan consistently high
standards, every muntute of every day That's why we have now
defined the Bramrmer Way of Exceflence n Customer Service
and began s roll out across the whole business in 2014

A further tangible proof of this commitment to customer
senace 13 the delvery of real savings in relation to customer
costs In 2014 we delvered £66 2 million of signed-oft
customer cost savings across 4,721 different projects,
bnnging the cumulative total to £310 3 millon since 2004

lan Fraser Chief Executive

1 Brammer pic Growth drivere
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Our potential market is worth over €70 billion.

Our sales are £724 million. a share of just 1.37:.

HMarket opportunsty Bearmgs €2 biton B MPT €5 bifkonn [l Fluxd power €10 bilion 3l TAGM and PPE €55 bdion

Strategic report

O market

Brammer s the leading pan-Buropean added value distributor
of high quality industnal mamntenance, repar and overhaut
products We are the authonsed distributor of many of the
world's leading engneermg component manufacturers, We
supply Beanngs, Mechancal Power Transmssion components,
Flud Power, and Tools and General Mantenance products,
together with engineenng and associated ndustrial services,
to the mamntenance repar and overhau {"MRO™) market
across Europe

We estimate the European MRO beanngs market to be
worth around €2 biffion annually and we have approxamately
10% share of that market makang us the clear European
market leader

in Mechanical Power Transmisson we have approximatety
3% of an estimated €5 bilion market In Flud Power we have
just over 1% of an estmated €10 bilton European market
and n our developing product range of Tools and General
Maintenance we have less than 1% of what we now estimale
to be a market worth at least €55 billlon across Europe

Overall we estimate the market for our entire range of products
to be worth In excess of €70 billon, of which we currently
have a market share of just 1 3% We estumate our exsting
customer base spends around €6 5 bilton on our defined
product range Our share of our customers’ total spend

18, therefore, just over 10%, representing an opportunity

to achieve significant growth through cross-selling

We are the European market ieader but we operate in a hughly
fragmented markeiplace. Consequently our market share
will not be a constrant to growth for many years to came,
especiafly with our expans:on wito Scandinavia tius year

Our operations

Qur geographse footpnnt has further extended this year, now
covenng 23 countnes, whech gives us a European coverage
far greater than any of our competitors With our uwgue
pan-European scale we are the only distnbutor of ndustnal
products in Europe able to offer a smgle source of supply,
which 15 highly valuable to our customers who are mereasingly
seeking a trusted level of consstent quality and service across
multiple countnes and locations Over recent years we have
sirven to achieve a consustent leve! and quality of service,
staff skills, and product range at each of our locations

Our unigue selfing points

Our customers across Europe realise that purchasing

MRO supplies can be complex and expensive They have
chosen to partner with us to take advantage of our value
proposition which, based on our knowledge of the production
process, understanding of supplier products, specrfic market
requrements and extensive product range, 1 designed

to help customers

consohdate MRO spend with a lower number of suppliers
reduce therr total purchasing spend

increase production line efficiency

avord breakdowns

minimise costly and unplanned downtime

improve working capital

VVYVYVYY




Pan-Exsopean manutactrerns who conbinue to use many suppliers
to sahsfy ther MRO requirements complicate thes procurement
process and waste tame and money. They ane mcreasngly loolang
10 ratonalise their MRO puochasing.

Customers rely on Brammer for their MRO products and
sernces, as Brammer offers

> authonsed dealership status for the world's leading
manufacturers

> an unnvalled mventory of over 500,000 mdmdual MRO
components

> nearly 6 mihon indivdual product knes on our ceniral
database from world class manufacturers

> sourcing from thousands of suppliers including all the
top OEM brands

We serve over 100,000 customers in every manufactunng
sector, leveraging our pan-European network and defivenng
24/7/365 locally across Europe from our 16 state-of-the-art,
hsgh-tech national distnbution centres

In an snvironment where most businesses are facing
increased cost pressures and competition, our value
proposition specifically addresses opportunities for the
customer to improve productmity and reliabdity, assisted
by our field sales engineers and technical specialists,

often in association wath our supphers All of our customers
recognise the need to have healthy cash flow and a strong
balance sheet, and our value proposition here has provided
substantial cost savings to our customers by helping them
better manage thetr shop floor inventory, thereby reducing
working capital In 2014 we delivered an eleventh straight
year of increases in customer recogrised cost-saving
solutions, yielding a record £66 milion savings for our
customers

Brammer business model

Brammer's model consolidates MRO supply — reducing the
total costs of component acquisition, mereasing produsction
Ror oun customer s,

Strategy

Our beanngs presence gives us access to a sigraficarnt
proporton of the key ndusitnal procurement personned within
businesses of all szes across Europe We see beanngs as
the entry ticket into our customers giving us the opporturty
to sell the rest of our product range by buiiding relabonships
and demonstrating our expenence, based on our market
leading posiion The engneer who mnstafls beanngs, to repar
and mamntain the machinery on the shop fioor, s nomrmatly
also responsible for nstatling Power Transmssion and Rud
Power products and in doing his job uses our range of tools
and general maintenance products The buyer responsible
for purchasing beanngs at our customers is generally also
responsible for purchasmg the rest of our product range

The number of manufactunng comparues seeking to reduce
therr number of suppters has ncreased sgnificantly, prompting
them to look for partners who can meet ther needs both
locally and on a pan-European fevel Brammer's model
consolidates MRO supply — reducing the total costs of
compenent acquisthon and mereasing production efficiency

We work with our customers to reduce ther number

of suppliers and the cost of acquinng MRO supples As
customers use more of our MRO products they substantially
reduce their number of MRO supphers and overall cost of
procurement

Our business model, strategy and prionties are further outhned
n the fold-out cover
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What excites us the most about Brammer is how
they set up and implement their strategy. We are
really excited about our current relationship.

Schaeflier Robert Schellan Member of the Execuive Board at
Schaefller AG & Prasagent of Schaefier Industrial

The vision of Brammer and the vision of PFERD
are very close. Brammer talk about quality and
the best solution for the end user customer and
we do the same.

PFERD Stefan Heimes Head of buropean Sales

Our strategies match. Brammer are a pan European
company and we need to develop pan European
activity with pan European partners. There is plenty
of opportunity for growth and we will grow with
Brammer | have no doubt.

NSK Jean-Yves Chapelet Buropean After Market Development Drector

So what excites me about Brammer is the brand
name and the footprint. I think there’s a long way
we can go fogether.

Parker Joachim Guhe President: Europe, Middle East & Afnca

Brammer is one of our strategic partniers in Europe
with a strong value proposition for MRO, Combined
with the SKF Knowledge Engineering capabilities we
creatle great value towards our common customers.

SKF Ole Knstian Joedah President Industnal Market, Sales and Marketing

We are proud to work with Brammer.
Brammer is a very powerful machne.

Newell Rubbermaid Emilio Capelli VP Sales Europe
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area of Spain. and sigmetcand Scloaeilier n exchmn Crech
distrbutior a Seveden
new Insites™ in 2014 bringing
the total across Europe to
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—
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Total SPWD growth rate by segment at constant cuvrency Operating performance
ol year 2014 203
exrdrimg fm £m
st ot Sapond X Fiyey o
Reverue 7236 6519
SPWD Grass mamgn % NT% 315%
UK -1.4% -4.1% -2.8% 28% Gmss profit 220 4 2053
Germany 7.7% B.4% 8.1% 32% Sales. dstritbubon and
France 3.9% 12.8% 859% 0.7% agmmnistration costs? 2008 (1655)
Spain 14 0% 16.2% 15.1% 10.6% Operaing profit® 412 8
Scandinavia - - - ~  Fmnance expense — net 6.1 @.4)
Eastern Europe Profit before tax! a5t 35.4
and Cther 27.7% 55.49% 451.3% 35.0% Cash M fom m 137 455
Total group 14.1% 15.5% 145% 3.49% Eamings per share 20.7p 2.1p
Dnndend per shame 10.7p 102p
1. Befove amorirsation of acquored mtangibles, aogursihon related costs
and expeptonal tems.,
Performance review As previously announced, ths is targely due to sx targe UK

We continue to gan market share through organec growth
and strategic acqussitions despste challenging market
conditons n continental Furope and the UK. This included
focusing on our self-help growth dnver strategies which
enable us to outperform our markets Overafl we delivered
arecord £66 2 milhon of customer vahdated cost savings
to our customers

Owvexall, revenue grew by 11 0% with sales in the year totafting
£723 6 millon As a szeable proportion of our operations

are based in continental Europe, we expenenced a cumrency
headwind equivalent to 3 6% of revenue growth At constant
currency, fevenue Increased by 14 6% — a resifent performance
acheved through clear {ocus on our self-help growth drivers,
which delivered organic sales per workang day {(SPWD) growth
(including incremental growth of our new Scandinavian
business and the impact of the bolt-on acquisiions) of 6 8%,
a rate that accelerated through the year Key Account SPWD
grew by B 7% and base business SPWD grew by 22 2%

in total, 4 4% organc growth {including incremental growth

of Scandinavia and the impact of boli-on acquisitions)

We expenenced an overall sequential mprovement in SPWD
growth during the year with total growth of 15 5% (8 2%
organic growth, including the impact of bolt-on acquisitions)
n the second half compared to total growth of 14 1% (5 4%
organic growth, including the impact of bolt-on acquisitions)
Iin the first half However, market conditions affected our
regions m diffenng ways, with all regions expenencing this
sequential SPWD improvement apart from the UK, which
declined 2 8% overall and 4 1% in the second half

customers, with annualsed revenues of £58 mifion in 2013
reducing ther spend by over 20%, as a result of chalenging
conditions in therr end markets whuch resutted i a year on
year revenue deckne in 2014 of around €14 mibon. The UK
result conmbutes an adverse efiect of 1 3 percentage ponis
to the Group SPWD growth rate Continental Europe reflected
a SPWD total growth rate of 29 5% (14 7% orgamic growth,
including the mpact of bolt-on acquisitions), growth rates
sgnificantly exceeding the market.

Gross margin increased by 20 basis ponts compared

to the previous year, reaching 31 7% despite the diutive
eflect of an increasing proporbon of our sales being of lower
margin Tools and General Mantenance products As our
volume of purchases nses we expect the margin on Tools
and General Mamntenance products 1o increase

Undertying operating profit (profit before amortisation

of acquired intangibles and acquistion related costs and
exceptional items) ncreased by 3 5% to £41 2 million

{2013 £39 8 million), supporied by tight control of undertying
operating costs We recognise that self-help 15 essentat,

and have therefore continued to make significant nvestment
in future busmness development opporturuties, especially

in Tools and General Maintenance and Vending. Sales,
distnbution, and administratve costs (*SDA" (excluding
amortisation and acquisition related costs) increased by
£22 7 million, including a £4 7 milhon foreign exchange
impact and £14 6 mihon due to the Scandinavian acquisiions
Costs increased by 8 0% reflecting the effect of the bolt-on
acquisitions and also £4 4 million ncremental busness




Key perfomance indicators Trading during the year
24 2013 Fost et Seotmsk o) LAl yreszar
b2 ] [ 5] 2]
Group sales growth” 14.6% 0.2%
Omyarict SPWD gromth? 65% 02% 14
Key Account SPWD gromth’ are p.79¢ Revenue 364.1 385 72386
Retumn an Capeal emmployed 272% 3s8% Gusspoit 1140 1154 22394
Net deht to EBITDA 1821 1151 Underlying operating profd’ 28 2.6 M2
Inierast Cover 79 1.4 a3
Steck tum 318 43  Revenue 3284 3235 651.9
Gross profit 100.8 104.5 2053
1. At constant curremcy. Undierlying operating profit ? 172 26 398

2 Incducing wcrenental growth of Scandinava and the imgpact of the
bolt-6n accprsiizons.

development investment of which the majonty was m our
vending capability which s a magor long term growth drver
This also includad the development of cur ecommerce
capabiity, the Brammer Trading Platforn Our annuaksec?
business development spend 1s neanng the optimum and
wz do not anbicipate material increases in 2015 Clearly i the
short term, these nvestments are a drag on profitabilty and
therefore the resulting underlying operating retusn on sales
of 5 7% s 40 basis ponts below the previous year Underlying
basic eamings per share were down 6 3% to 20.7 pence
per share (2013 22 1 pence per share), which ncludes

the ciutive effect of the 10% share placing dunng the year

Operating performance and key

performance mdicators

We use the above key performance mdicators (<Pis) to
measure and track performance Each KPli relates directly
to our long term strategy

In addition: the followang other performance measures

are monitored — as per the data tables in this Performance
Rewvew - ncluding the number of Key Account contract
wins, number of new Insites opened, the company’s
TSR performance, and the results of the customer
sabsfaction survey

Financial review

Revenue

Revenue increased by 11 0%, of which continental Europe
contrnibuted 12 2%, with the UK contnbuting a 2 8%
decrease At constant exchange rates, revenue for the
Group increased by 14 6% compared to the prior year

1. Profi o operabons before amartsaton of acqgered tangibles,
exceptinnal fems and acquesiton relted oosls, et amd tax.

Trading dunng the year

Profit from operations before amortisation, excepbona tems
and acqursbion related costs, interest and tax (“undedying
operatng profit™) increased by 3 5% to £41.2 miion (2013
£39 8 mithen), of which £20 6 millon was delivered in the first
hatf and £20 6 milbon m the second half (see table abowve)

In the first half, revenue ncreased by £35.7 miion reflecting
the effect of acquisibons, notably in Scandinavia but also
reflechng organic growth from Key Accounts and Tools and
General Mantenance sales n contmnental Europe. Undertying
operating profit ncreased by £3 4 miion. In the second hatf,
revenue increased by £36 0 milon and undertying operatmg
profit dectined by £2 0 mifion, reflecting effects of cumency
headwinds, declining sales in several large customers and
conbinung iInvestment in growth dnver progects.

Exchange rates had an adverse mpact on the year's resuits
reducing reported growth in revenue by 3 6% n revenue and
underiying operating profit by 2 1%

Gross profit

The gross profit for the year was £229 4 milton (2013
£205 3 melkon), with gross margn ncreasing by 20 basis
points to 31 7% (2013 31 5%}

Sales, distnbubon and administrative expense

Total reported SDA costs increased by £37 6 mullion from
£168 0 mihon n 2013 to £205 6 milon, excluding amortisation
of acquired intangibles (“amortisation”), exceptional items
and acquisition related costs, the increase was 13 7% from
€165 5 mulkon n 2013 to £188 2 mition

7 Brammer pic Strotegic report







Anna Andersen Material Control Team Leader
~A great theng about the Brammer Graduate Programme
is that you get to knovr howr the difierent departments work
and what therr mam objectives are. Having vorked in

B purchasing has made me understand about the totall cost
of acqursition and how mmpodant & is to reduce i, especialy
the mwentory and precurement costs.”

Reduce
procurement costs

Our customer’s challenge

We were working with a customer in Germany who
was having problems with vacuum filter units on
ther production ine They kept failing and, as there
were four filters in each of 60 line installations, that
was a lot of fitters to replace. When you add to that
the complexity of the replacement process - wiich
needs special tools — and the time taken to do it
you can see how it was a real problem

Our solution

Our Insite™ Manager and Fluid Power expert
suggested using a new type of filter from one of our
strategic pariner brands, SMC, instead of the ones
the customer was using The thing about these
filters 1s that only the filter needs replacing, which

IS easy as it only needs a single clip That means
less time spent fithng them and no special tools
needed. A saving n itself But added to this, these
filtters came at a lower pnce and delivered a far
longer service life To give you some idea of the
service life scale we're talking about here, it reduced
the number of filters replaced from more than

7,000 a year to only 550 The overall saving

in maintenance and product costs? €121,857

8 Bremmoer plc Strotogle report
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Underlying SOA at consian arency increased by 1705
primanidy reflectmg the efiect of acquisitions. A iotal expenditune
o £8.0 mTlion was incurred m the year on stirategic growth
antetives of which £1.5 milon was capitalised.

Operafing profit

Underying operating profit ncreased by £1 4 miion to £41.2
milion in 2074 from £32.8 mibon n 2013, Refum on sales
degreased 10 5.7% (2013: 6.1%).

Interest

The ret finance expenses for the year was €5.1 mdlon 2013
€44 mikon), whch mchuded £1.1 milion (2013. £0.9 million}
metest expense relating o the retrement benefit kabiy.
The £1.7 miion ncrease n net Bnance expense anses primaniy
dise to an mcrease in average net cebt daven by trng of
accumsibons, together with a higher effiectve mterest rate on
aerage nel bormowngs of 4 8% (2013 4.5%) as a greatsr
proporbon of financing now consists of long-term loan noles.
Underiyang operating profit covers nderest by 7 9 tmes
{2013 11 4 tmes).

Profit before tax

Profit before tax from contmuing operabons for the year
was £17.7 mibon (20:3: £32.9 milion) Profit before tax,
amarisabion, excepbonal tems, and acquisihon retated
cosls but after finance expense was £35.1 miion (2013
£35.4 milion).

Tax

The overal tax charge for the year of £6 2 milion {2013

£8 8 mithon) consisted primarily of the current year charge

of 6 2 m#ion Cumrent year tax represents an effectve tax
rate of 35 0% wihich 1s hugher than the expected rate of
21.5% pnmanly as a result of tax deductons not avatable

on the imparment of the Czech goodwall of £0.8 miion, the
release of deferred tax attributable to share scheme awards
no longer expected (o vest of £0.4 miion, chages ansing
from the differences in tax rates across Europe of £0 4 mdlion,
disallowable acquisibon costs of £0 2 mibon and adustments
ansing from tax losses in the year on which no benefit was
recognised of £0 9 mlion, offset by miscelaneous credits

of £0 3 miflion.

Eamings per share

Basic earrungs per share decreased by 11 3p from 20 5p
to 9 2p in 2014 as a resutt of the excephonal items charge,
a tugher effective tax rate in the year and the effect of the
share placing on the weighted average number of shares
Earrings per share, before amortsation, exceptional items
and acqursiton related costs decreased by 6 3% from

22 1pm 2013 10 20.7p in 2014

Amortisation of acquired intangibles and

acquisition related costs

Amortisabon of acquired intangibles totalled £1 8 mulion
{2013 £1 2 milon} Acquisition related costs of £3 0 mullion
increased from £1 3 milkon n 2013 due to the increased
level of acquisition actmty in the year

Exceptional items

In 2014 a pre-tax operating exceptional charge of £12 6
milion was recogrised This included headcount, property
and other restructuning costs of £5 0 midlion associated

with the previously announced closure of the Buck & Hickman

Nebonal Destribudion Cantrs in Coversiry and ihe manger

of 21 supply chen operabons in the LI A futher ©4.5 rrdion
charge was recogrused reflectng restruchanng actwbes

m commenta! Euope lioating acquistons during the year.
Oiher excepional costs compnse 2 goodwill smpasment
charge of £3.6 milion m respect of the Czech business and
a 0.5 milkon profit arsng on the dispoesal of owr remanng
mvestrmerst n Lvingston Growp Lmited. There ware no
exceptonal rtems n 2013

Dindend

Gven the Board's confidence i the Group's proven strazegy,
the: Board #s now proposng a 4.4% noease n ithe ingl
dridend io 7.1 pence per sham, resultng m ioia! dyvidends
for 2014 of 10.7 pence per share, 2 4.9% noegse over the
poor year and covered 1.9 tmes by earmings. Sulxect o
sharsholitior approved, the Gral dvdend will be pad on 2 by
2015 to sharehciders on the register at close of busness
on 5 tune 2015.

Goodwill and acquired intangehle assets

Goodwill in the balance sheet stands at £118.5 mikon

at the end of the year 2013 £91.2 milon). This epresents
an ncrease of £27 3 milion, with £21.8 milion ansing fom
our Scandinavien acquestion and £17.4 mifon ansing from
further boli-on acquisions during the year, along with
adverse exchange moverments of £8.3 milon due to goodwi
hekd m foregn cumencies and a £3.6 mikon smpasrment charge.
tmparment revigws have been performed m accordance
weth IAS 36 and no impanment has been identified apart from
the Czech component of goodwil

Tre Czech business has continued to expenence chalenging
market condEbions and has contnued to post kisses. These
fosses have arisen due to the flegal actions taken by one of
the former owners of the busness i relaton to whech a loss
clam settlement has been receved in the year. A turnaround
programme has improved performnance, athough this has
been slower than expecied, with the resuit that the mparment
rewiew Identified that the value i use was such thata

full imparment of the Czech component was required

The resuting imparment charge has been included as

an exceptional item in the consolidated mcome statement.

Acquered intangible assets m the balance sheet stand

at £23 6 mibon at the end of the year (2013 £9 2 milkon)
This represents an ncrease of £14 4 millon reflecing £18 4
rmiflion identified from acquisitons durnng the year offset by

a £2 2 miion exchange movement on intangible assets held
n foreign currencies and a €1 8 milkon amortisation charge

Working capital

Workeng capital increased due to the acquisibons made
dunng the year Working capital measurements for debtors
and creditors are n ine with the previcus year However,
there has been some decrease n underiying stock tums
reflecting substantial Investment to support the Tools &
General Maintenance, and Vending growth dnvers, and
investment in safety stock for the refocation of the Coventry
Natonal Distrbution Centre

Return on operating capital employed

The return on operating capital employed, based on undertying
operating profit, was 27 2% {2013 34 89%) mainly reflecting
the effect of acquisshions on operating capital employed




2054 2m3

o D

Cash milow from operaing activites before worlking capital change 372 472
Working capika increase 3.5 a.qn
Cash milow from operating actwvites 137 455
Cash inficwr from aperaling adiivities belfore exceptional items and acquesibon related costs 206 48.4
Cash outilow from acqitstion refeted costs 3.0} wn.7)
Cash outflow from excephnnal fems [=1:)] 23
Cash inflow from operating activities 137 455
Net cap:tal expenditure (purchases net of disposals) {16.0% {135}
Operzbonal cash {zbsorbion)/gener=hon 2.3) 20
Acxpiisibons (inchung net debt acqusned) B7.5) -
Defarad consderation and eam out on pior year acqustions 0.3 2
Tax 7.8 {75
Interest, daadends, pensaon obbgabions & other (19.8) [16.4}
Purchase of own shares {1.6) -4
Net proceeds from ssue of shaes 524 0.1
{increase)/decrease n net debt B3a.9) 16
Opening net deht B29) (53.8)
Exchange 45 0.7}
Closing net debt! B5.3) B29

1 Total bompwangs net of cash and cash equivalents,

Cash flow

Net debt mxcreased by £32 4 mdbon from £52 9 mifion
to £85 3 miion At the year end, net debi/EBITDA stood
at181tmes (2013 115 1 imes}

Net cash mifiow from operating activibies of £13 7 mulion
decreased by £31 8 midion from £45 5 miflon n 2013

This nfiow 15 after £3 O milion outflow (2013 €0 7 miflion)

of acquistion related costs, and £3 9 miion outflow (2013
£2 2 miEon) from excepbonal items and reflects £23 5 miion
increase i working capital, reflecting strategic investment

to support Tools & General Mantenance and vendng dunng
the year and investment in safety stock dunng restructunng
actmies The operating cash mfiow was supplemented

by net proceeds from the issue of shages of £52 5 mihon
This funded the payment of £57 5 milion for acquisiions and
£0 3 mifion deferred consideration on previous acquisitions,
£7 8 mifion of taxation payments and £19 8 million for
dmvdends, interest and pension obligations Net caprial
expenditure ncreased by £2 5 miion reflecting continued
nvestment in industnal vending and other strategic

growth initiatives

Pensions

The net pension liability relating to the dafined benefit
pension schemmes increased by £10 8 miton to £38 6 miflion
(2013 £27 8 milhon} The pnncipal factors contnbuting

to this increase were a £12 5 milhon net actuanal loss on

the schemes offset by £3 7 mdhon of employer contnbubions
The pnncipal reason for the increase i the habilities 1s the
change in financial assumptions, N particular the reduction
in the discount rate

The mam financial assumpbons used for the UK scheme
weere a discount rate of 3 6% (2013 4 45%). 2 3.0% (2012
3 3%) rate of ncrease for pensions n payment and a 2.4%
{2013 2 7%) rate of mcrease for pensions in deferment.
The charge recognised in the moome statement ncreased
to £2 1 mifon (2013 €1 9 milion) including a £0 2 million
highes net mterest charge

Financing and covenams

The Group ts principally financed by a €100 milon floating
rate revolving credit facility which can be drawn until it expres
on 30 June 2016 In addition to the revohang credit {aclity,
£11 3 millon of undrawn overdraft facilies are avalable

The amount drawn under the revolving credit facibity

as at 31 December 2014 was £25.8 miion (€33.3 mulion)

In addion the Group s financed by a 3100m {or currency
equvalent} private placement shelf facility, which was nibally
established in 2013, under which €40 milkon notes had been
1ssued In January 2014, the remander of the mitia! facility
was drawn down with a further issue of €35 4 mifkon pnvate
placement notes with a term of seven years matunng

in January 2021 tn December 2014, the private placement
shelf faciity was extended by a further §75 milhon maksg

a total of $175 milhon {or currency equivalent), under

which €10 millon private placement notes were 1ssued

on 22 December 2014 A further €30 milon was 1ssued

on 8 January 2015 Both of these 1ssues are unsecured,
bear interest at a fixed rate and mature n 2025
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Babatunde Ologuewisdu Mechankical Engineer

“During the Brammer Gradhsate Programme | have seen

many diffcrent customers from different anduslry segments.

Improving producton effcency is key to all of them,

A small improvement can make a huge difference for [ |
thew business ™

Improve _
production efficiency

Our customer’s challenge

We were working with a metals manufacturer m
the UK when we found out that they had a senous
problem with beaning failures al therr coal plant
The failng beanngs were running very hot, so our
customer was using compressed air in an attempt
to get the temnperature down. When our team looked
nto this they found that the beanngs i question
were only supposed to operate at 110°C, but
actually the temperature regularly reached 130°C.
We also found that the output shaft was \n poor
condition, which wasn’t helping things

Our solution

So we made three recommendations The first was
to use a huigher temperature rated beanng from our
brand partner NSK that could work at up to 180°C
The second thing we recommended was to reparr
the output shaft The repar would allow the beanng
to ‘float’ as it heated and expanded The third
recommendation was to use a different grease
designed for use in high temperature environments
and to use more of it All this meant that the customer
could switch off the compressed ar and, at the
same time, stop beanng falure due to overheating
All of thus gave them improved production efficiency
and a cost saving of €99,587
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Business area revenue at constant curency

Carter One Crarter Fod Cuzyier THee Ohenther Ty Anresd Reverue
2644 2004 2na 23 2014 2034
Groeeth rtie Qoes e Growth rzte Sromdh vate Gromth rata £
SPWD

Total group 13.1% 15.4% 14.6% 16.9% 145% 7256
Ocgan® 5.0% 6.79% 61% 85% 6.8% 6762
Exchding acqursiticns 4.5% 32% 5% 2.5% 3.4% 655.1

Revere
Bearings 2.9% -1.5% 0.9% -0.8% 0.4% 1459
L 15.99% 17.9% 189% 2 1% 18.8% 5799
of which Tools & Maintenance 81% 1.5% 6.7% 15.7% 8.0% 180.1
of which continental TRGM 47 0% 54.4% 67.1% 138.3% 80.0% 44.1
Key Accounts 10.7% 8.65% 82% 73% 8.79% 3859
Base busaness 15.4% 19.5% 23.5% 31.6% 22.2% 339.7
exciding Scandinawa -3.7% 2.5% 49% 99% 3.2% 286.8

1. Inchuding smcrernentzal growth of Scandmana and the impact of the boll-on acouEsConTs.

The revohlng credit faclity requives, among other matters,

compliance with three financal covenant ratios. These

requrements are (1) consofidated total net borowings shall
not exceed 3 O tmes consobdated EBITDA, {2) consofidated
ngzt worth shall be not fess than £50 0 midlion (3) the rahio

of consolidated EBITDA to consolidated net mterest payabie
shall not be less than 4 5 1, in addition, the guarantor
subsidianes must acoount for more than 75% of the Group's
total gross assets, turnover and pre-tax profit. EBITDA

1s a measure of fiquidity and s defined m the finance faciity
The company has not breached these covenants throughout
the penad to 31 December 2014, and current forecasts
indhcate significant headroom for al covenants in the next

twelve months

Matunty profile of commutted loan faciliies

E100m

. o

[ TS

2016 2021 2023

R Revolving Credst Facility (£100m} - floating rates
O Prvate Placements — fixed rates

2025

M Private Placements — fixed rates — drawn on 6 January 2015 (€30m)

The Group uses interest rate swaps {10 Manage exposure
to floating interest rates Dunng the year the company had
n place aterest rate swap contracts hedgng a proporbion
of iis vanable rate debt. These contracts are designated
as hedging nstruments.

In Apnl, Brammer placed 11 3 milbon shares at a pnce

of 475 pence per share, representing 2 66% discount to
the prevailing market price The placing was significantty
oversubscribed and ratsed a net £52 4 miion after expenses

Growth drivers and capabifities underpmning

our performance

Our consistent and proven strategy encompasses Growth,
Synergies, Capabifites and Costs.

Growth drivers

Brammer's single minded focus on growth has meant that
the company has consistently outperformed the market
since 2004 It s our tned and tested growth dnvers of Key
Accounts, Product Range bxtension, Instes™ and Market
Segmeniation all underpinned by Customer Service that

1S responsible for this track record

Key Accounts

Key Accounts sales grew at 8 7%, the eleventh year of growth
Fourteen additonal pan-European contracts were won dunng
the year representing potentizl annual revenues of up to €60
milkon Key Accounts now represent 53 2% of the Group's
total sales, shghtly lower than last year due to the nature

of our acquisiions  The Key Account growth rate has been
adversely affected by a small number of underperforming
national UK Key Accounts and therefore, the national contract




Key Accoumt sales performance at 2014 constant cunrency rates (€1.25 : £1)

Md-mde St Soope Sales 2014 Saftes 2313 Groman
Tier 1 BEU contract Part BU Group €188.Tm €148.8m 26.8%
Ter2 Naticnal combract Part EU Groasgp €156.4m €158.4m -1.29
Tier3 No contract Part BU Group €44.5m €440m 1.0%
Ter 4 Nabonal condract Nabonat Group €2 Tm €2.7m -
Total Key Accounts €482 3m €4439m 8.7%

tier of Key Accounts, Tier 2, expenenced a smal decine
However, the Tier 1 group of pan-European Key Accounts
actually achreved significant growth of 26 8% Our Key
Account {otal now stands at 1,485 accounts across the
business, with over 70 pan-European Key Accounts

Our Key Account contract with Alcoa and Ma'aden Alumomium
continues to perform well, and our large Insite™ m Saudi
Arabia s now fully operahonal and delivening strong growth
followmq the set-up phase in 2013

The Key Account pipeline remams strong and the prospects
for further wins reman excellent.

Product range extension

Throughout 2014, we contmued our commitment to increase
our share of the substantial European Tools and General
Maintenance market We launched the third edibon of our
Euwropean Tools and General Mantenance catalogue at the
end of the year, significantly Increasing our product offenng
Printed i mine languages, in 13 editons and avalable n

16 countnies, it now includes products in 16 sectons from
84 leading brands

Since launching our hand tools, cutting tools and tool

storage brand — Roebuck — in continental Europe in 2013,

we have now gamned nearly 4,300 active ndmdual customers
Throughout 2014, we built on Roebuck's success by launching
our second, more comprehensive ediion of the Roebuck
catalogue and extending the Roebuck product range

One of the flagship products of the range — The Roebuck
Uniwrench — also won two awards in 2014, having been
voted the Tools Product of the Year at the Product of the

Year Awards and Global Product of the Year at Acquesibon
International’s Business Excellence Awards.

We spenti the second half of the year prepanng to launch

a new personal protecton equipment and health and safsty
brand cafled Q-Safe mto a market worth 10 excess of £12
bibon Q-Safe prowdes fully comphiant personal protection
equipment, represents real value for money, and will be
widely avadable, with the full market launch taking place
eaty m 2015

We also taunched our first pan-European MBO catalogue
in 2014, distnbuting 52,000 copes of the 1,706 page
pubhcation to customers m 10 countnes - the first tme

a single publication has been produced for all of our MRO
busmesses across continental Europe

The pilol marketing of our Vending brand, Invend™ contnued
throughout the year as we are still bulding our capabilites
and capacity Brammer 15 already the industnal vending
market feader in Europe, and in 2014 we nstalled over 400
machines at an accelerating rate We took orders for

73 machmes in December alone, and we expect growth
momentum to continue throughout 2015

2014 also saw the launch of our e-Procurement programme
designed to create a direct ink between our customers’
ordering systems and our product database This ‘PunchQCut’
solution as we call it, gives customers access to a customised
product range and real-tme stock information whilst helping
thern to reduce ther costs through more efficient spend
management mventory control and automation expertise
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Reduce _
working capital

Our customer’s challenge

One of our packaging manufacturer customers
needed 1o find cost savings. So they deaded
to ook at their warehouse operations and the
amount of spares that they were stocking

Qur solution

To save as much working capitai as possible m this
area, we took on the entire warehouse operation
for them, which also meant that we monitored stock
and incoming goods transactions This, in turn,
meant we could save them €16,750 though

stock reduction alone But we also put in place

a consignment stock system This included taking
responsibility for costs like those relating to interest,
fogistics for Incoming nspection, goods storage
and goods receipt All this gave the customer

a further €125,000 of savings, so our solutions
saved our customer a total of €141,750

Marco Bertusi Key Account Manager

“Cost savings s one of the main objectives for Brammer.
i have rotated around four different busness areas within
the Bramener Graduzte Programme and al of them had
something to do with cost savings. One example s the
in many other things such as hring new employees or
amprowed facilfhes.™
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B Mecharycal power trans - 109% Chermecats — 4%
B Gearboxes and motors -6% B Fasteners - 2%
H Industrod atomaton - 3% . Sendces - 2%

" Laesar mobion - 3% B Other- 4%

Cross-salling

We continue to extend the product offening to reflect the full
Brammer range in every termtory, and cross-sefiing contributed
strongly to the Group’'s growih; non-beanngs sales grew

by 18 8% Beanngs sales grew by 0 4%, broadly reflecting
chalengmg underlying market conditions and our refatively
large market share.

Tools and General Mamtenance & vending

Tools and General Maintenance sales grew 8 0% overaf],
but expenenced a far higher growth rate of 80 0% mn
contnental Europe, a resutt of the focus on this market
SPWD growth rates accelerated through each quarter

in the year resulting i an exit growth rate of 138% wth
Q4 sales up to €55 milhon

QOur capabiities continue to grow and we now have 45 people
solely dedicated to support Tools and General Maintenance
business development in continental furope In addibon,
selechve bolt-on acquisibons of Tools and General Maintenance
businesses have enhanced our market presence in several
countres, and will add further growth momentum

We have ntroduced more mobile demanstrators of the Brammer
service offenng including a mobile Health & Safety Centre

of Excetlence, several Mand and Power Tool demonstration
vehicles and two European T&GM Demonstration vehicles
Together they have wisited thousands of ndwidual customers
in the year, taking our value propositon direct to the
customer's premises and demonstratng to them cur ncreasing
capabiiies in these product ranges This direct approach
cormplements our other routes to market and has created

a significant number of enquines and sales orders

Reverue by proguct 2013

Beanngs - 235%

Seats - I%
Meachaneal poeer trans — 11%
Gearbares and metors — 3%
frclustroal automation — 256
Linezy moton — 4%

Fud poraser - 15%
Tocks & maindenance - 269%
Chermicals - 436

Sennces; - 29%
Odher — 1%

8B M@
3

We continued our evaluaton of the potental growth opportunity
frorm Verxding in the UK, Genmany, France, Span, and Poland
We have ntroduced our vending capability to the Nethedands
and Belgum and have moreasing confidence n the scalabiity
of our processes We now have 116 employees supporting
the vending msbatve and, at the year-end had installed 501
machines n 10 countnes at 235 customer locations. Our
value proposibion s proving siteresting for vanous customer
types, mcuding strong mterest from many existing Key
Account customers The programme 15 ganing braction with
an accelerating rate of contract agreements and installations.

The provision of a high qualty vending serwice, and the
presence of Brammer personnel on-site 1s proving to be

a valuable platform to demonsirate the quality of the overall
Brammer oflenng The annualised run rate of revenues to
customers wath a vending machine {both revenues directly
through the machines and indirectly outside the machmes —
the "halo” effect}, based on the fourth quarter exit rate was
over £23 6 million, up 44 9% on the same penod kast year

insites™

On a constant currency basis Insite™ sales grew by 11 1%,
with 86 new insites opened which, along with 42 closures due
to changing customer requirements, totals a net addion of
44 new Instes™ The Group operated a total of 427 Insites™
at year end The value-added services prowvided by the
Insite™ model, inventory optimisation, cost-sawving projects
and ready access to Brammer's product specialists continues
to be an attraciive proposition for our customers We were
also ahle to extend the geographic reach of our Insites™

to our new Scandinavian markets following our acquisttion
of a Scandinavian business in this region in early 2014




Corartiry Arih anguied Annuelimes evenes Prockect grovp

Scandinawvia’ Jamsary €54 2m Miotors & Gearboxes
Germany March £7.im Tools & General Mainterance
France Aprll £8.6m Fhiid Porever

Spain Jully £2. 8m Personal Protective Equapment
lady July faim Mechamcal Power Tranamissaen {“MPT™}
Nethertends Cciober £22m Bearimgs & MPT

Poland October £1.7m Hydraulics & NPT

Crech Republic October £B.4m Beamings & MPT

ltaly November £29m Toolks & General Mantenance
Spain November £3.4m Tocls & Generz! Mamtenance
1.4 Movembes £3.8m Bearings & MPT

Totah £98.2m

Market segmentabon

We continue also to focus on market segmentation as

a growth drver Thes not only alows us to demonstrate our
understarding of owr customers’ industry specific needs and
respond to them accordingly, it also allows us to focus on
segments that are Ekely to gve us the best opportunries for
growth In 2014 we saw our markel share increase m Food
and Drnk with growth of 9 5% Sales to the Recyciing segment
grew by 106% and Metals by 28 0% In 2014, we also added
to our range of segment specific brochures, producing
speciahst matenal for the Alummium manufactunng industry,
the Canning industry and the Paper and Packaging ndustry

Cusfomer service

Customer service underpins everything we do, with the
success of our growth drivers depending on successhut
delvery of customer service excellence

Provding real valdated cost savings to our customers 1s

a key part of Brammer s value proposiion and finding more
cost saving apportunities each year 1s ‘hard wired’ into the
‘DNA’ of the busmess Once again in 2014, for the gleventh
year 1 a row, wa saw a significant improvement in the value
of the cost savngs we prowvided to our customers By the
end of last year we defvered aver £66 mion of signed-ofi
cost savings to our customers

Dunng the year, we conducted our fourth annual pan-European
customer satisfaction survey This annual survey enhances
our understanding of how our customers perceve us and

1s crucial to our growth as it helps us gan insight Inte what
we are doing well and areas where we could improve

in 2014 2,907 customers completed onkne questionnares

Overall, Brammer achesved good resulls across all key
performance areas and, followang analysis of the survey, we
created action plans on both country and business-wade levels

To complerment the survey results, the launch of the Brammees
Way of Excellence in Customer Sennce provides a set

of process and review tools n a consistent framework to
enable our customer facing personnel to delver continuous
improverments in the way they mteract with our customers.

Acquisihons

Qur organic growth has been supplemented by strategrc
acquisibons dunng the year Dunng 2014 we have added
15 new busmesses to the Group with a combmed annual
tumover of nearly £100 mulion With these businesses

we also welcomed hundreds of new people into the Group.
Togsther, they have expanded our geographical footprnt,
cur capabihbes and grown our cusiomer base With these
additions to the Group we will leverage the effect of our tned
and tested growth drvers, accelerating the rate at winch
we gan market share

In January 2014, Brammer announced the acquisition

of a Scandinavian busmess, gMng us a maor presence
in all of the key Scandinavian markets An addiional four
boit-on acquisitions in Sweden n the first half broadened
the product range available to Scandinawian customers
to mclude beanngs and tradiionat MRO products

Our acquistions this year provide Brammer with many
cross-seling opportunites particularly in Tools and General
Maintenance These additions represent a step change in
capabilities for certain key product areas in some countnes
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Summary trading performance by segment 3t 2014 constant cusrrency rates {(€3.25: €1)

Extexral Extorref] Rewrczae s’ Operatmyg Operating

Revenue Revemus Growth (e ] Prcan’ Poit'  Profit growity'

204 2083 ane 2018 x4 2033 2o1a

fim fim % % o 2] %

UK 2852 2933 -25% -2.8% 155 210 -28.2%

Gemmany 1211 121 a1% 8.1% 75 65 154%

France 863 75 85% B85% 48 42 143%

Spain 492 127 15.2% 151% 60 a7 27.7%

Benchx 528 503 4.5% 4.7% 26 26 -

Scamdbinavia 531 - nfa nfa 26 nfa nfa
Eastern Europe

& Other 79 554 40.4% 41.3% 21 - nfa

Total 7256 6332 14.6% 145% 41.1 390 56%

Exchange effect?® [~ 4] 186 -3.6% -3.5% IR ] 08 -2.5%

As reported T236 6519 11.0% 11.0% 412 39.8 35%

1. Operatmg profit befome armortzsaton of acquied stangibles, aocuisiton rekated oosts and exoeptonal Eams.

2. Sales per workang dey

3. To reconcle resutts and analysss to actusal exchange rates for 2004 and 2013,

As the Brammer growth dnvers become embedded and
post-acquisition synerges are reafised, these businesses
will fuel growth and enhance profitabdity m future years.

in these challenging markets, many of our competitors

are finding business increasingly difficult and we are seemng
still more opportunrtes to acquire businesses wisch would
complement and enhance the Group The pipefine remains
strong and we will continue to pursue further promusing
opportunibes, though we will take a break from acquisitions
in the first half as we am to harvest the synergies from those
made in 2014

Synergies

Significant synesqies and operabonal benefits will be reafised
from the re~organisation undertaken in the UK, representing
the final phase of the Buck & Hickman integration, including
the exit of the Buck & Hickman National Distnbution centre
and merger of all supply chain operations The synargies
realised from the integration of our acquisitions this year wall
also be earmings accretive In future years As a result of these
restructunng operations, related costs of £9 5 mulhon are
included within exceptiona! tems i the income statement

We continued to work on increasing our spend with a
smaller number of key supphers, thereby improving the level
of marketing support, pncing, and co-operation in the field
recewved from those supplers Gross margin improved

by 20 basis points year on year to 31 7%

Capabilites and costs

Technology

2014 saw some very sigrificant advances in Brammer's
technology capability Whilst signricant savings continue 1o
be made by further consolidation of data centre serices and
o on-gaing courttry technology modenusation programme,
the headhne development for the year has been e-commerce
n the form of the Brammer Trading Platform

At the heart of the Brammer Trading Platiorm s the new
Brammer MDM {master data management) systern winch
we bebeve to be ndustry leading. it forms the core of our
e-commerce systems and prowides clean, quality confrolled
product data into our e-commerce channels For the first
tme we can provide 2 flexible, consistent, fully mtegrated
e-commesce solution o our customers, one that mcorporates
all aspects of modern, automated document exchange
This 1s a major new Brammer customer offenng, one that
recluces significantly the cost of the procurement process
for our customers whilst also making it easier and more
efficient to do business with Brammer

Our people

We are comnutted to recnuiting and retaming the best people
Dunng the year Brammer’s Distnbuted Learning programme
{e-learming} was updated with new product training modules
and enhanced functonahty to provide a better learrung
expenence in rne languages This rasning 15 a key element
of Brammer's employee induction programme and is
continuously improved and expanded to meet the needs

of the growing business
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2018 2011 e 202 214"
SPWD growrth — 5% 8.0 16.8 75 22 28
Key Accounts proportion of total sales — % 573 62.5 67.7 7.8 T66
Key Account sales growth — % 122 224 72 86 0.4
Non Key Accounts propartion of total sales - % 487 375 323 284 234
Non Key Accounts growth — % 49 56 2.1 9.4 [ %]
nsite mambers 143 152 18 m 197
Insites as a proportion of total sales - % 37 B2 24.4 425 qr
Insie sales growth — 9% 174 245 22 96 .9}
Bearings proportion of total sales — 9% 221 206 124 18 105
Bearings growth — 9% 80 122 (.6) {(1.8) [ (p]
Non bearngs proportion of total sates — 9% 779 79.4 6876 E8.1 85
Non beanngs growth - % 93 16.7 2.7 3.4 [rE.}
T&GM as a proporbon of total sales - 9% 10.7 3.0 475 47.7 477
Tooks and General Marntenance {TRGM) sales gowth - 9% 148 284 28 33 44
MPT as a propartion of total sales — 9% 143 135 76 74 6.9
Mechanicat Power Transnmussion sales growth — % 7.8 75 B.0) a5 1.4
Fuid Power as a proportson of total sales — % 204 199 120 123 132
Fund Power sates growth - % 111 203 B3.0) 53 24

1 Inchedes Buck & Hackoman,

The 2014 employee survey again provided positive feedback
for management and wdentfied areas to focus upon to narease
employee engagement st further; Brammer already has best
n class employee engagement levels and continues to smprove
its employee relations at every opporturuty

Durng 2014 the company took its thwd cohort into the
graduate trarung programme, bulkding upon the success

of pnor years. All of the members of the 2012 intake who
completed the programme were rewarded with permanent
positons within strategicaly immportant areas of the business
Thus highlights our commetment to develop our people to
ensure that excellence comes as standard across all areas
of the business and that the delivery of great customer
service remains a prnority

Operating segments

UK

Our largest operation, and the ons where the Brammer
development strategy is most advanced, expenenced some
challenges dunng the year, manly due to reduced spend
amongst a small number of large customers reflecting tough
market condiions However, good underlying progress

was made in other areas SPWD growth declined by 2 8%
as six large customers with annualised revenues of £58
milkon n 2013 reduced spend by over 20%, gnng a year
on year decline in 2014 of around £14 milhon Operating
profit has therefore decreased by 26 2%, to £15 5 milion,

a decrease of £5 5 millon primarily related to this adverse
sales volume effect.

Despite these year on year dacknes in a few nabonal Key
Account customers, overal Key Account sales declined by
only 0.4%, reflacting significant growth wath other customers,
including Siemens, Minustry of Defence and Land Rover

As a esult of our market segmentabon strategy, there was
good Key Account growth m resiiert sectors such as Food
& Dnnk and Power Generabon and the proportion of turnover
which s Key Accounts has increased 1o 76 6%.

The number of full tme and part time Insites ™ now totals
197 six mose than last year There were 22 new full trme
Insites™ opened this year, although nine closed due

to changing customer requrements, and there are now
111 full-tme nsites™.

in a challengmg market, our service valug proposition
contnues to be attractve in helping customers to manage
ther cost base, and we have prowded more than 4,000
separate recognised sclutions saving our customers £28 5
mullion in ther costs this year

Beanng sales declined 7 2% reflecting the challenging
market and effect of the volume decrease from large
custiomers However, our cross-seling inihatives continued
to gan traction with continued growth in Flurd Power and

a small decrease in Mechanical Power Transmussion products
Several large accounts from the legacy Buck & Hickman
business accounted for the 4 4% decrease in Tools & General
Maintenance sales, but excluding these. year on year growth
conbnued to be strong
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Gong forweard, signdicant syrengies and operatonal bansits
wil be realsed from the re-orgensabon undasdaken tes
yeor, resultng m the closure of the Yegacy Buck & Hickaman
Natonal Distrixrion cemire and the transier of the supply
chain operaions to the UK National Distriksbon Centre

in Wolverhampion. In adciton the separate finance functions
and other anollery cepariments were streamined and
amaigamated during the year.

A bolt-on acqusston m the Northampion aea in kis 2014
has nDw gven us the capacity we need m ths ncreasngly
amportant locabon whete we previously had no exsting
branches,

Gemany

SPAWD moreased by B 1% i ihe year and rading profit
increased by 15.4%. Growsh re”lected success In owr oiganc
growth divers along with the condritaution rom the bolt-on
accueszion of 2 Teols & General Mamteranoe speciabst

n March.,

Bearryys sales declined 3.0% m the year reflecting a
challengng market, but our focus on product range extension
saw 12.1% growth in non-beanngs products. Tools and
General Mantenance grew by 143.7%, both orgacally

as more than 800 spetialist raineng days smproved
wroridorce capabibes, and also due to the contribubon

from the bolt-on acqursion

Key Accounts grew by 9 1% and now account for 38.0%

of turnover Several new Key Accounts were won duvng the
year including Meplato and DS Smeth  The number of Insitie™
locahons increased by a net sox, including five full tme
insites ™ wath a single Key Account customes There are now
60 Insites ™, wisch represents a trebling of nsite™ numbers
over a five year penod. As a resuft of this mereased actly,
Insite™ sales growth accelerated by 7 5 percentage ponts
to 19 6%

France

SPWD grew by 8 5% compared to a 4.7% deciine in the
previous year Trading profit mcreased by 14 3% Beanngs
sales declned by 5 6% as continued economic uncertanty
contnbuted to a weak market in France. However, Tools

ang General Manienanee sdles conbnued schust growth

o1 32.0% noluding a successhil intrediuction of the Roetweck
brand mto the markel A bolt-on zcquistion of & FAuid Power
speciahs] in Api has troduced sigrifeart capehilies and
knowr-horer ito the busiress as wel as conaribuing o good
salles growth,

Key Account growrth of 5.2% was lower than previous years,
but refllectad an accelerating groweh rate through the yoar
as Key Accourst wins mciuding Darone, Safan and Unmcor
contribuded {0 revenues. Key Accounts now represent

42 7% of sales.

The Insite™ pogramme grew with a net 11 stes atided,
maxmng 55 Insites™inin total Instie™ salesgew by 7 7%
and the success of thes year showudd ensure the: good giovth
15 ety n the future.

Ragonaly embedded oost savmgs charmpions heve supported
the ddve for excellence in customer sernce durng the year.
As a resuft, several large value cosi savngs have been
defvered and signed with France reporting £22.5 miion

of cost sawvings.

Spain

SPWD growth accalerated by 11.3 percentage points

10 15.1% whils operating profit mproved by 27 7%.

Thrs represents strong growth i 2 weak market as a resuit
of good development of all of our growth dnvers, alied
with two bolt-on acquessbons n the second half

Key Account revenues accelerated to 26.0% and now
represent nearly half of sales. New contract wins durnng

the year inchluding Huntsman, Johnson Controts AE and
Caolfax among others will dnve future Key Accounts growth
Sgnificant ns:ite™ sales growth continued for the fifth
consecutive year, up 43 3% fom tast year as a further twele
Insites™ were established After four closures the number
of Insites™ totals 46

Excellent progress continued n product range extension and
sales of Tools and General Mantenance more than doubled,
while Fluid Power and Mechanical Power Transmission
products also generated good growtin

Gernmany

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
SPWD growth — % 134 192 - 24 81
Key Accounts proportion of total sales - % 241 268 305 353 38.0
Key Account sales growth - % 209 241 72 115 2.1
Non Key Accounts proportion of total sales — % 759 732 695 647 620
Non Key Accounts growth — % 123 136 B0 14 14
Insite numbers 20 37 47 54 60
Insites as a proportion of total sales - % 45 79 104 114 16.5
Insite sales growth - % 368 372 16 4 121 96
Beanngs proportion of total sales — % 320 316 285 260 24.0
Beanngs growth - % 97 147 (106} {10 6} (3.0
Non beanngs proportion of total sales - 9% 680 684 715 740 76.0
Non beanngs growth - % 1656 171 32 14 121
T&GM as a proportion of total sales - % 23 34 39 43 10.0
Tools and General Mantenance (T&GM) sales growth - % 24 4 586 138 459 143.7
Mechanical Power Transmisston proportion of total sales - % 87 83 84 92 8.5
Mechanical Power Transmisston sales growth — % 270 110 14 73 {3.3}
Flurd Power as a proportion of totat sales - % 162 179 205 222 pr¥:
Fluid Power sales growth - 9% 23 281 130 13 1.7




France

2mo 2017 22 2m3 2004
SPWD growth — % 11 142 as @an 85
Key Accounts proportion of total sallas — 56 a3 38 <00 441 4.7
Key Account sales growth — % 18.8 9.1 123 3 62
Non Key Accounts proparticn of tolal safles - % 66.7 642 600 559 553
Non Key Accounts growth - % 95 9.0 1.2} B.9 106
trsite numbers pra 3 39 45 56
Insites as a proporhion of total sales — 3¢ 6.2 6.6 9.6 127 137
Insite sales growth — 9% 3|7 16.0 273 309 7.7
Beanngs propoction of total sales — % 365 3BO 21 30.6 213
Beznngs growth — 9% 6.1 92 &.0 8.4) 6.5}
Non bearings proporon of total sales — 9% 635 65.0 679 69.4 727
Non bearings growth — % 16.4 163 82 {1.8 151
TAGM as a proporbon of total sates ~ 96 4.0 4.6 52 76 100
Tools and General Mantenance (TAGM) sales growth - % 84.4 27 165 39.8 20
MPT as a propartron of tolal sales - % 20.6 20.1 20.0 189 174
Mechanacal Power Transrmsson sales growth - 9% 9.8 10.6 35 94) 2.8}
Fusd Power as a proportion of total sales - % 139 5.4 17.0 18.0 184
Flud Powrer sales growth - 9% 280 256 146 15 83
Spain

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
SPWD growth — % 95 123 {0.3) 38 151
Key Accounts proportion of total sales — 9% 26.8 32 364 40.6 47.8
Key Account sales growth - % 195 285 153 i9.5 26.0
Non Key Accounts proporton of total sales — % 732 688 636 53 4 522
Non Key Accounts growth — % 68 62 7 4) 16 31
Inside numbers 15 22 30 38 48
Insides as a proportion of total sales - % 6.3 105 145 220 269
Insite sales growth — % 220 46.3 318 560 433
Beanngs proportion of total sales - % 41.2 379 34.1 326 279
Beanngs growth - % 44 33 {10.1) 33 7.3}
Non beanngs proportion of total sales — % 588 621 65.9 67 4 2.1
Non beanngs growth - % 142 186 8.7 106 2.8
T&GM as a proportion of total sales - % 23 27 51 80 160
Tools and General Mantenance (TAGM) sales growth — % 480 33.2 890 715 11586
MPT as a proportion of total sales — % 191 195 86 170 169
Mechanical Power Transmission sales growth — % 70 149 {49} (09) 79
Fluid Power as a proportion of total sales — % 8.9 11.6 143 64 184
Fluid Power sales growth — % 342 461 239 234 21.9

———
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Benehuox

SPWD n the Banshux counties increased by 4.7%. compered
tn a 1.3% decrease m the pror yeer Cperatng proft fas
erained . Tocks and General Mamnterance sales conlinue
to grow &t an accelerating rate, and ae up 24.5% year

on year.

Key Accounts grevr by 8.2% and several sigmrficant wns
inchuding Undever and Tata Steel were recorded n the year
wihnch shoudd see good gowth continue, Key ADCOUNS Now
represents 37.0% of total sates, sightly higher than fast year.
Eight ingh gerformng new insttes™ are now well established
in the Netherdands with ten i Balgaum Inssie™ sales graw
by 18.4% ihe {ith year of double digit ncreases.

Scandinavia

This new segment curently represents cur Scandinavizan
business acqueed m January 20i4, together with the four
Swedsh boli-on acouisthons made ate mn the st half.

Thus segment contributed £53.1 milion to Growp tumover
and £2.6 miion to trading profit i the penod. These strategc
acqursiions have expanded our geograpiucal footpnnt

10 establish a platform n all key Scandnawan markets

We have abready dentified many areas where the application
of the Bramuner growth drvers will build on the strong bass
vre now have in thes region. There has been strong nterest
from owr exastng Key Accounts customers curently operating
n the region and three instes™ have already been establkshed
wnth a strong potential ppekne dentified

As over half of this segment’s sales are cureently motors

and gearboxes, there are signeficant cross-seliing opportunbes
for the rest of the Brammer product portfoio Dunng the
second half of the year, a specialist Tools and General
Mamntenance regional distnbution facility has been established
m Gothenburg, which will provide the infrastructure to drve
strong fulure growth n thes key product range

Eastern Europe and Other

In our Eastemn European and other businesses {comprising
Poland, the Czech Republic and Slovakia, Hungary, Raly and
our Saudi Aratwan Inste™) total SPWD ncreased by 41 3%
and operabng profit increased by £2.1 million compared

to break-even last year Key Accounts now represent 51%
of total sales and grew by 90% insite™ sales tripled, having
established nine net additional Insites™  Significant growth
was seen in all key product areas with 22 1% increases

m Mecharical Power Transmission products, 52 8% in Flud
Power products and 161 2% growth in Tools and General
Maintenance products

In Poland, SPWD increased by 14 9% In ltaly, SPWD
mereased by 31 9% as strong Key Accounts growth

of 46 3% was underpmned by good Insite™ development
Two bolt-on acquisitions In northern Italy have given Brammer
a significant presence in this key industnal area, which wall
provide good opportunities for future growth The Czech
Republic and Slovak:a returned to growth with a 3 3%
increase in SPWD, afthough conditions still proved to be
challenging in the market The acquisiion of a well-respected
bolt-on business in the Czech Republic shouid deliver
growth and synergistic benefits to this region in the future

In Hungary, the SPWD growth was 30 6%, with Key
Accounts sales growth of 35 7%

The future

In 2014 we have cotinued o demonstrate owr estence
wihdst exgancing cur ELropeen footorint o Scandinavia
We have mested heavily m growih divers to coumter dificult
market condions; as a sesul we have emoyed mmproving
year on year gowvth redes m the st aght quarters fexchuding
the bemefit Som our Scandmavian zoguishon) as our
sirategy of oousing on Key Accounts, Instes™ Vendmrg,
and cross-seiing riaines continues (o deliver esults,

Our cortnental Buropean busnesses have perionmed

weedl, windst the pericrmance of ouwr UK busimess has baen
disapnonisng, as previcusly endicated almost entinely due to
a sma¥ number of large natonal and European Key Accounis
rediucing thelr spend redlecting chalienging conditions i thesr
end markets. We expect that our mesiment s grosvth drivers
will erablle s to continue 10 gan marked share and provide
gocd revenue and pro&t growth m the years to come.

Principal risks & uncertainties

Carporate risks

The management of the husness and the execution of the
strategy are subject (o a2 number of risks and uncertanies.
Operabonal nsks are assessed by Brammer subsidianes
Thesa are resewed vath appropiiate mubigabon consdered
by Brammer managerment. The Bozard reviews these
assessments on a regular bags.

A formal group-vade rewew of strategee nsks is performed
by the Board and appxopxiate processes and controls are
also put in place to momnvtor and mebgats these risks within
the nsk management structure set oul oppostte

The propal resks affeching the Group are consdered below:

Slowdown of industiial actwity

The Group's actvibes ase almost entirely wathin the UK and
the Euro-zone wiuch are geographucal markets cumently
subect to economic uncertainty. A contnued detenoraton
m cummrent acononuc condtons may lead to a dedine n
demand withm the ndustnal base of these markets with
an assocated decline in demand m the mamtenance

and onginal equipment markets which Brammer supplies

The Group has a wed spread market and geographue presence
and has concentrated growth actvities n defensive sectors
such as food and dnnk, utilites and fast moving consumer
goods. The Group has also focused growth actmties in larger
Key Account cuslomers who have a wader global presence
and are therefore kely to prove more resiient dunng any
economic downturns n Europe and surrounding areas
Economic conditions vary throughout the Eurc-zone and
accordingly a slowdown will have a different level of impact
on each country

The sales and purchasing actmty for each business unit

1 largely confined to its own geographical area which means
each business can react to varations in demand without
encountenng issues associated with cross border sales

and purchase management Afso, in the extreme case

of a breakup of the Euro, curency issues would be minimised
because purchases and sales would be largely in the same
currency The Group has also demonstrated the capability

to reduce costs and to align the cost base in response

to market condtions




Benelux

200 201 2012 23 24
SPWD gromsth — % 0.7 128 15 (13} 47
Key Acoaunts proporion of total sales — 96 245 73 321 243 370
Key Account sales growth — 9% 213 229 20.1 55 92
Non Key Aocounts proparbon of total salles - % 755 727 679 B.7 630
Non Key Accounts growrth — 9% 88 96 23 4.0) 27
Insite rurnbers 8 9 i6 7 18
Insites as a proportion of tota sales ~ % 54 75 102 10.1 126
Inske sales gromath — 9% 1048 227 3 105 184
Beamgs proporbon of total sales - 96 52.6 50.7 489 462 445
Bearings growth — % 30 87 36 {8.5) 12
Non beanngs propertion of total sales — % 474 493 511 5338 555
Non beanngs growrth — % 230 77 100 45 105
T&GM as a proporbon of total sales -% 2 s 133 153 163
Tools and General Mantenance (T&GM) sales growth — % 283 161 208 139 245
MPT as a proporton of total sales — % 162 159 6.1 15.7 148
Mechanical Power Transmission sales growth - 9% 16.3 103 05 £3.9 832
Fuid Powrer as a proportion of total sajes - 96 83 88 9.7 10.7 112
Fiad Power sales growth — 9% 273 193 208 9.1 75
Eastern Ewrope and Other
20%0 2011 2012 2013 2014
SPWD growth — 9% 18.7 18.8 L% 1] B3.1) 413
Key Accounts proportion of total sates — 9% 171 237 29.7 s 51.1
Key Account sales growth — % 459 366 9.4 12.0 20.6
Non Key Accowsits proportion of total sates — % 829 763 70.3 65.2 489
Non Key Accounts growth - % 161 150 (79.3) 91) 72
Insite numbers 14 19 32 38 47
Insites as a proportion of total sales ~ % 29 46 69 100 202
Insite sates growth — % 271 6.0 15.8 133 203.8
Beanngs proportion of total sales - % 446 44.1 378 348 27.0
Beanngs growth — % 7.7 441 (22.6} {10.9} 75
Non beanings proportion of total sales — % 554 55.9 622 65.2 73.0
Non beanngs growth — % 328 212 0.1 22 58.6
T&GM as a proportion of total sales — % 30 29 3.2 47 89
Tools and General Mamntenance (TAGM) sales growth — % 17.4 132 18 425 161.2
MPT as a proportion of total sales — % 118 112 11.7 121 108
Mechanical Power Transmsston sales growth — % 30.5 122 (4.8) 04 221
Fluid Power as a proportion of total sales - % 15.2 153 16.7 16.5 183
Fluid Power sales growth — % 32.0 204 {1.1) (4.3) 528

Risk management structure

"‘ .Fﬂr

i, f"mﬁew o ‘rf’a"“‘ '

a

Management and internal audit and
peer review central support

Developed busmesses‘

T

1 rqu)
ﬁw- w W T m x S

1 Developed busmesses compnse the larger more mature business segments - UK, Germany and France
2 Regwnal businesses compnse Span Benelux Eastern Europe and other busmesses

Business functions
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Withdranval of a major supplier

Brammer « dependent on s key supphers which § mpresenis
n a quitrbrand emvvrormend to Brammer's exsting customer
base. The refatiorsrp with strategic suprbers is murtaly
dependant and enhanced by our gerrinership approach {0
Key Accounts. Brarmmer is contmaing 0 secure addsonal
suppont for ds effosts to norease market share and s condiderd
any wihdrawal could be soumed from anotiter sispplier.

Loss of major customers

A core part of the growth strategy for the Group & a bas
on vwnning and mantaersng those sigiicant customes s

o views as Key Accounts. The loss of sgnficant numbers

o Key Accounsts would heve an adverse effect on tamover
gowth and an mpact on other strategic focus arsas

of aoss-seling opportumnites and insite developement.

As a distriutior 1 2 tagmenied market Brammer denves
greal benefils fom s first class mputation as an mdusty
lsader M ds senvice offenng to Key Accounts which ooudd
ba potentally damaged with sigeficant koss of major
customers. However, Brammer does not have dependency
on any single customer

Key Account customers are carefifly monitored bry the senor
management team who also document the acknowdedged
cost savings acheved, Further growrth n Key Accounts

n the cument year suggests the “emplate offering 1s proving
attractve o a profit conscious customer base.

The Group s not sutyect to matenal exposure from fixed
pnce contracts and has a track record of mantaining gross
margn wrespective of sales volumes thereby successhdly
pushing back market pricing pressure to s supphers

Customers relocating to lower cost countnes
Brammer continues its strategy to grow its business
successfully by expanding ;1 a fragmented market
We will evaluate suntable opportunities in lower cost
countres as they anse

Loss of infrastructure/systems

As with most large orgamisabons that depend on Information
Technology {IT) for ther day-to-day operabons, there are
disaster recovery plans m place for the major countnes where
Brammer operates In these temtones, there are overnight
back up systems in place which can be expected to mibgate
the worst effects of such disruption Integration teams
contmually work to develop group-wide solutions to business
cntical processes wiiuch provide improved restience aganst
fallure In the event that issues occur m our operations

For Brammer, a quoted company which 1s a distnbutor

of product, these key processes are in the area of stock
and order management, sales and delivery management
and transacticnal record keeping, including financial books
and records

lLoss of key employees

The Group regularly reviews its remuneration and succession
plan arrangements to ensure that key managers are recogrused
ang developed To ensure continuity and maximise our
competitive advantage the Group remains committed to

a number of Incentive schemes linked o the groups results,
which have been designed to retain key managers

Wiere approprzia, employment contracts B0 contam

and customens. mdustry benchmrandng and the use of extemmel
assessmens and athtsors iom part of ihe recmerrmerd
process ior key managers 10 ensure hogh calibre monuds

to oy rofles.

Tie Beard's momingtoms commtise revisws the shructm,
size, dversity and composton of the board and acivises

on successon plarmmg matiers, Thes committee 2lse etams
exiernal seach and selechon consuliants 25 ampropnaie.

Adverse Euro exchange rates

Brammer reponts iis results in sterking however the Giop
trades signficantly n suros. The current economc oondibons
crezie uncertanty over the excharge rate between stedmg
and the euro. Whikst there 1s a nahiral hedge between buyng
and selfing for the maonty of sw business the ultmate
proitabilly s expressed at the yeer's average exchange mia.

Fnancial and capetal risks

The Group's princypal inancing faciity 15 in place untl 2016,
This iackly s supplemented with additonal lorg-tean funding
ctaned through the ssue of €85 miion of prvate placemen
notes, with matuenty dates between 2023 and 2025, under a
private shelf facty Brammer has suficent avalable resources
to meet is foreseeable requyements.

The 10% share placing dunng the year raised funds to partly
fund our acquesthon acimty, ensuring that our debt to equity
rabo emans withn acceptable parameters to rmeemise
francial and capetal nsks.

The closed defined benefit scheme m the UK contnues to
be: subject to vanous financal nsks, principally based around
the value of the cusrent defict m the scherme  The Company
may be required to make exceptional addihonal contribuions
outsade the scope of its cument funding plan by The Pensions
Reguiator Dunng 2010 the Group agreed a deficit funding
plan with the trustees of the scheme which prowvdes for

the Group to make annual payments of £2 8 miion, mdexed
for inflabon, in the years 2011 to 2023 mclusve

The company has bmited dealings in denvative mstruments
Dervatives used in hedging activibes are considered nsk
management {ools and are not used for trading purposes
The company uses denvative nstruments to manage
exposure to fluctuations m foreign currency exchange rates
and {o reduce volatdity i the mterest charge

The company uses foreign currency forward exchange
contracts to munimise currency exposure from expected
future cash flows. These contracts have not been designated
as hedging instruments

Expected benefits from acquisthions may not be realised
Part of the Brammer strategy 1s growth through selectve
acquisions Acquisiions mvolve a number of nsks related
to the performance of the acqured business and challenges
ansing from integration Potential acquisitions are carefully
researched prior to any purchase and closely morutored

by Brammer's management subseguent to acquisition
Brammer has a track record of successfully integrating
acquired businesses with an established integration plan
and an experienced management team




We expect that our investment

in growth drivers will enable

us to continue to gain market share
and provide good revenue and
profit growth in the years to come.

Expected benefits from strategic growth mitatives

may not be realised

Part of the Brammer strategy 15 growth through targeted
product and serice mitiatives  These imitatives include the
formaton of new teams and nfrastructure, including software
development. and nwvolve a number of nsks refated to ther
successhd development and smplementation The nsks
nclude effective project management and the delbvery

of effectve IT sohsions and seraces

Potentia) projects and mtiatves are carefully researched

pnor to any nvestment in capital expenditure and personnel
Projects are developed in kne with detafled business plans
whuch are aligned to centra [T and project management
functons Investment and progress ts reviewed agamst
these business plans which are reviewed al senor levels

on a regular basss Brammer has a track record of successfully
ntroducing new serce offanngs o customers and marketls
across Europe

lan Fraser
17 February 2015
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Directors and officers

Bl Wirteley took over as charman of the company folowng
the 2012 AGM. He was apponted to the board in July 2008

having retwed as cheef executive of Rotork ple He 15 chasrman
of Hilt and Smuth Holdings plc and Sprax Sarco Engneenng.

2 1an Fraser ®

Chief executive

Appomied to the board i 1998. He held appountments

n sales, marketing and finance with Excxon Corporation
both in the UK and USA. At Raychem Corporation he held
senor roles i sales marketng, manufactunng and general
management. He became managing director of Reliance
Secuntly Services Ltd m 1991 and was apponted ther
group managing director n 1993

3 Teny Garthwaite % %%
independernt non-executive director

Apponted to the board m June 2004 He s chaman of the
audit commuttee On quatfying as a chartered accountant
he worked for Price Waterhouse He held a numbes of sersor
finance posibons within Foseco plc mcludng director of
corpoiate finance, pnor to spending 11 years as group
finance director at Senior plc He rs 2 non-executve cirector
of Wilmington Group pic Dunng 2014, Mr Garthwarte

was succeeded as Senior Independent Doector by Duncan
Magrath and he will not seek re-election at the 2015 AGM

4 Paul Thwaite

Finance director

Joined Brammer in February 2002 and appointed to the
board in May 2002 A qualfied accountant, he worked for
ICI and BBA in a vanety of mternational posts before joining
Siebe where he held a number of postions including
managing director of Elwell and group controller After the
merger between Sigbe and BTR, he became cheef finance
officer of Invensys Controls Dmision based in USA.




oL

5 Charles bving-Swift %%

Independent non-executive director
Apponted 1o the board in March 2010 He ook over as
chaaman of the remunerabon comnuttee wath effect from the
2012 AGM He joined Amstrong World Industnes Inc. n July
2010 as cheef executve of European Floonng operations.
He has previously held sersor posibons o TT Blectroncs ple,
Dana Corporation and T&N plc and has had a long assocaton
with the automotve manufactunng mdustnes on a world-wide
basis He has also previously served as a non-executve
drector of Victrex pic and was charman of ther audit
comnuttes

6 Duncan Magrath¥¥<¢

Senior independent non-executve director

Appomnted to the board in March 2012 He joined Batfour
Beatty pic n 2006 as Deputy Finance Director and was
appointed to his position of Cheef Financial Officer in 2008
He will step down from the board of Balfour Beatty dunng
2015 Duncan 1s a fellow of the insttute of Chartered
Accountants having qualfied with Pnce Waterhouse

He left Pnce Waterhouse and joined Exel plc where he held
numerous posiions in the UK and USA dunng his 13 year
tenure culminahing in his appontment as Cirector of Investor
Relations and Financial Strategy Duncan has a wide range
of financial and corporate expenence, and replaced Terry
Garthwaite as Senior Independent Director followang the 2014
AGM Subject to hus re-election, he will take over as audit
commytiee chaiman

7 Andrea Abt $%L

independent non-executive director

Apporied to the board n July 2014. Andrea vras the Head
of Supply Chain Management and Chuef Purchasing Officer
of Sector Infrastruciure & Cibes at Sizmens AG from 2011
to 2014 Snce oinng Siemens v 1997, she hald numercus
posiiions in finance, Productivity and Supply Chamn
Management n Germany and nternatonally. Andrea started
her career in industry «n the Daimier Benz group where
she was responsible for difierent teams in arcraft and postal
automation service sales

8 Steve Hodkinson

Company secretary

Appointed group company secretary in July 2012 Qualified
as a solicitor in 1998 He has previcusly held the posthon
of General Counsel for both Umbso pic and Bentley Motors
Ltd, having earfier been European Counsel for the Celesbca
group of companies He has a broad range of internationat
legal expenence and holds both an LLB and MBA.

%* Remuneration commutiee
% Audit committee
¢ Nommnatons committee
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U

Country managing directors
4 Neil Rogers Regonal managing director

2 Jochen Diehm Germany

6 lan Ritchie UK

7 Juhien Monteiro France

Corporate team

1 lan Fraser Chef executne

2 Pad Tinwpile Fmance drector

3 Ctwis Short Corporate development drector

The Brammer executive team is subdivided

into three elements:

> the corporate team s responsible for the operational
leadership of the group;

> the team of country managing directors is responsible
for the management of the country based businesses;
and

> the teamn of functional directors 1s respons:ble for the
leadershup of specific group-wide Rinctrons.




Functional directors

8 Nigel Trend Business ntegratron

9 Ralf Hellwig Key Accounts

10 Card Fnednch Wayand Purchasing

11 Philippe Hervieux European managng director Tools
arnd General Mamtenance

12 Steve Hodkinson Secretanal, iegal and human resources
13 Nigel Duke Chef information officer
14 Paul Boughton Head of Corporate Development
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Directors’ report

The drectors present ther annual report and gudited consolidated firancial statemends for the year ended 31 Decamber 2074,

Principal activities of the group
Brammer gl iis the holdng cormpany for, and 2so provdes management senvices 10, the group. its prncipdl opersting subsidancs,
al of which are wholly owned except where stated, are shown on page 124 together warth detaills of their locahons.

As zt 31 December 2014, the prinopal actaity ol the group fincluding thet of ds principal operating suibsidiaries as shown on page
124} is the prowsion of value added busimess to business senvices, through being a leading pan-Curcpean added value distributor of
industral mamntenance, repar and overhaid producis and related inveniony management, procuremant and logistics senaces.
Financial results and dividend

The strategic raport comains anfammabon on the group's actabes dunng the year and Baly frlse developments. The pancipad risks
and uncertanties efecting the busness are set out in the sirategic report on pages 24 1o 27 The finercial key perermance ndicalors
of the busmess, winch are considered to be salles per workeng day, gross margin, retum on sales, setum on eperatng capitd emploved,
eanngs per share and mieest cover, are reviewed in the stratege report on pages 7 and 10, Non-franoial key performance indicators
alfecting the business, such as employee and environmentd performance indicators, are set out n the emplioyes and corporate sood
responstiity secbon of the directons” report.

The directors recommend a tnal dividend of 7.1p per ordinary share ior the year ended 31 Devermber 2014 (2013 8 8p), winch,
together with the mtenm dividend of 3 6p {2013 3 4p per ordinaxy share), brings the total divadend pasd and proposed to 10.7p 2013
10.2p} per exdinary share for the year Subyect to the approval of shareholders at the annual general meeting. the fnal dindend wll be
paxd on 2 July 2015 to al shereholders on the cegister at close of busmness on 5 Jure 2015,

Directors
Detads of each of the directors who served throughout the year and up to the date of signing the Binencaal statements are shown on
pages 28 and 29 Al directors are subject to retrement by rotzbon under the companys arbcles of associaton.

The directors are aware of the retrement by rotation provisions of the Code that apply to FTSE 350 compamnes, and have chosen to
volunitarily adopt these prowsions. Terry Garthwarle completed ten years of sernce in June 2014 and will not stand for re-elechon at
the 2015 AGM. The other deectors will offer themselves for re-slection at the 2015 AGM

Each non-execuive drector s appomted for fixed terms of three years. Bl Whiteley was appomted n July 2008, Chasles nving-Swift
was appomnted n March 2010, Duncan Magrath was apponted i March 2012, and Andrea Abt was appomted n July 2014,

Detads of directors' attendance at board and commuttee meeings and a stalemnent on board evaluaton 1s set out m the corporate
governance report

Further detads of the directors’ service contracts are set out i the remuneration report

Directors’ and Officers’ liability insurance and indemnities

The company purchases kability msurance cover for directors and officers of the company and its subsicianes which gives appropnate
cover for any legal action brought aganst them The company has also prowided an indemmity for its directors to the extent permitted
by the law n respect of Gabidities mcured as a result of ther office The mdemnty would not prowvide any coverage to the extent thata
director 1s proved to have acted fraudulently or dishonestly Prospectus Liabifity coverage was put i place for directors and officers
of the company at the tme of the 2009 nghts 1ssue Cover 1s 1n force until October 2015 The directors also have the benefit of the
mndemnity provitsion contained n the company's articles of association which 1s a qualifying indemnity provision wathin the meaning of
the Compames (Audit, Investigations and Community Enterpnise) Act 2004 This nderminity provision was in force dunng the year and
at the date of approval of these financial statements

Directors’ nterests
The beneficial interests of the directors and therr immediate famdies in the shares of the company are set out in the remunerabon report

Substantial shareholdings
As at 17 February 2015, the company had notification that the following were interested in 3% or more of the company's 1ssued share
capital

Fidelity Worldwide Investment 10.85% Legal & General Investment Management 564%
AXA Framington 10 38% BlackRock Investment Management (UK) 5 09%
Mondnan Investment Partners 8 14% Oppenhemerfunds 3 08%
Kames Capital 6 26%
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Purchase of own shares
Dureng the year the company purchased none of is own ordinary shares of 20p each {2013 nons).

The Employee Benefit Trust cwrrently holds a total of 188,056 shares (2013: 58,683 shares) m the company in order to meet part of
the company s kabiftes under the Brammer plc Performance Share Plan and Share Marching Flzn. The Trust deed contains a dividend
vasiver provision in respect of these shares. Any voang or ather similar deciszons releting 1o those shares woudd be taken by the Trustees,
who may take aocount of any recomemendations of the comgany.

The sseed share camxtal of the company is shown in note 19 to the Financal Statements on pages 97 and 88 and consists of ordinary
shares of 20p each. Al of the ssued ordinary shares rank pan passu.

In addiion: to the: rights cenfered by kaw, the rights and obigatbons attaching to the company’s adinary sheres @2 set it m the company's
atcles of associabon, a copy of which can be obtamed by wniting to the company secretary At the kast annial general meetng of the
company (AGM]), held on 16 May 2014, the company was authonsed by shareholders to purchase m the marke! up to 11 800,407
ordinary shares of 20p each, representng 10% of the ssued ordinary share capiial of the company as at 1 Apd 2014, Although thes
awthonty was not utilised by the company dumng the last financal year, approval will be sought fiom shareholders at the forthoomng
AGM to renew this standard authonty for a further year It is the company’s ntenton that, should any ordinary shares be bought bark,
thery will be cancelled or retaned in treasury pending a subsequent sate, cancelianon or transfer. The company does not cusrently hold
any shares in treasizy The company will only purchase 1is own shaces if the beard believes that to do so would be n sharsholders”
best interests and wil narease eamnngs per share

nterim report

Cumrent reguiations penmut the company not to send copees of ds intenm resulls to sharehwoldiers Accordingly the 2014 mizrn resul's
pubkshed on 29 July 2014 weare not sent to shareholders. We do not intend to send the 2015 intenm resuits and subsequent nterm rexults
to shareholders The intenm results and other information about Brammer are avadsble on the company’s website at wwnw brammer be.

The company’s articles of association pemmit electronic and website commurnecaton with shareholders folowing the enactment of the
Comparses Act 2006

The company has implemented electronic and website communicabon wath its shareholders  Shareholders who consented to website
commurecation wil be notiied In wnting when documents and commurnicatons have been published by the company so that they
can wiew them on the company's website It 15 intended that the Annual Report 2014 will be subject to the alectronc and website
COMMUNICathion regume.

Financial risk management

The group’s financial nsk management objectives and policies and exposure t0 market nsk, {foreign exchange nsk and hedging actvties
together wath cash flow and inlesest rate nsk), credit nsk and hquidity nsk are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements on
page 82

Employees
The group values the commitment of its employees and recogruses the importance of good working refatonships and communication,

The group s commuitted to open and regular communications with employses about business developments and issues of general
nterest and concern to them, both on a formal and ;nformal basis The performance of the group s commuricated regularly to all
stafi Coptes of the annual report together with detais of prebminary and stenm announcements of the group’s results are available to
themn Translations of the executive statements are available to all of the group’s employees

A formal human resources policy framework continues to be followed throughout the group The framework includes a process of
appratsal and development to ensure companies get the best from ther pecople. emphasis has been placed on career pathways with
ndnadual raning and development programmes  Motvational events are orgarised dunng the year The group operates internationally
and therefore its employment practices are vaned to meet local condibions and requirements These are estabhshed on the basis of
the best practice for each indwidual country New and existing staff at all levels are trained to become famiiar with products, markets,
systems, senvice standards and management skills in order to better satisfy customer needs and (o enhance ther own career prospects

The Brammer European Council was established over 10 years ago with each company in the group selectmg a representabve The
council meets once n each year The purpose of the Brammer European Counci is to encourage freedom of association amongst
Brammer staff representatves from its operations in Eurcpe

Both employment policy and practice n the group are based on non-discnmination and equal opporturities  The group remans supportive
of the employment and advancement of disabled people Applications for employment by disabled persons are always fully considered,
beanng in mind the respectve aptitudes and abilities of the applicants concerned In the event that members of staff become disabled,
every effort is made to ensure that their employment with the group continues and the appropnate training i1s arranged

The group will be carrying out the eleventh Brammer Employee survey (which 1s conducted electronucally) n early 2015

In addition to the results of the Brammer Employee survey, the group regulary monitors sales per employee and training costs per
employes to assess the efficiency of its employees through training in order to ensure the quality of its overall service delivery
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: 2014 am3

£000 o000

Sales per empioyes 199 201
Trzring costs per employee 015 020

Brarmmer coninues 1o rvest i anng fon s employees and during the year a greater proportion of training vieas delvered electromically
or was provided directdy by suppliers & no cosi o the compamy.

Hacnan rights

Brammer & commitied to upholding and respecting isman rights and is in the process of becoming a full signatorny to the Uniad
Nzyons Global Compact (UNGC) wiuch sncludes commiiments to report and respect the protection of human nghts and ensue we
are not compkct m humen nghts abises. Brammer ensures that each and every one of (s cperating companes is conmyplamt with afl
tegslanon and the provisions of the Unnversal Dediaration of Human Rughts. Throwgh ds annual employee surnvey Brammer prowdes a
confidental basis upon which 0 apprase the engagement and welibeing of its employees and atso has a formal whistieblowing process
in place fo a2tow any abuses to be notdied w1 a smely and confidential meanne:.

Percentage of male and female employees within Brammer Group by employment level

2033 2013 204 2014
Mae Ferraie Mate Femodo
Total Gender Splt 76% 249, 67% 3%
Marager B7% 13% 80% 20%
Semor Manager 89% 11% 87% 13%
Exacutve 100% 0% B6% 4%

Corporate social responsibiity

The environment

Brammer recognises that it is part of a wader commmanity of employees, sharsholders, customers, supplers and other stakeholders and
recognises that group companes have a responsibiity to act i a way that respects the enmvironment.

It 1s the policy of Brammer so {ar as s reasonably practical, to protect and conserve the local and wider enveonment from any adverse
mpacts caused by its operabons. it s the policy of Brammer across al its operations o

meet all relevant legrstative requirements on environmental Issues,

seek to conserve enasgy and natural resources by manumesing waste, recycling where possible and maxmising the use of renewable
1eSoUrces,

consider the fe cycle environmental effects of mvestment i premises and equpment,

ensure afl contractors follow our practices while working on site and respond promptly and efficiently 10 adverse occurrences
ook favourably upon suppliers who have commiited themselves to reclucing thes own tmpact upon the environment

promote energy awareness amongst employees and customers, ensunng that all staff are aware of the Brammer energy polcy
available on the company intranet,

mplement energy awareness and savings throughout all our premises and equipment where it s cost effective to do so,

monitor and report energy perforrance in an appropnate way;

ensure that during refurbishment of any Brammer prenuses considerabion s grven to environmental impacts, and

comply with all applicable legrslation concerning the impacts of Brammer’s energy usage

YV

YVYVYyY

vVVvYyy

The group’s am s to encourage more recycling and reduce energy costs, thereby improving efficiency and reducing the relative carbon
footpnnt of the group The UK)1s leading the way in this regard The group has extended this policy to other countnes Group inibatives
include employing the servces of Carbon Clear to produce a Carbon Accounting tool which is being used to measure our global carbon
footpnnt The carbon accounting methodology adopted foliows the GHG Protocol Corporate Standard, an internationally recogrused
standard which prowvides guidelnes for comparnies and other organisations prepanng a GHG emissions inventory Carbon Clear were
involved in the measurement and reporting of our footpnnt ensunng that the data 1s credible, consistent and rebiable Implementing a
structured and integrated approach to carbon accounting allows Brammer to report an accuraie and credible carbon footprnt, enabling
the organisation to identify opportunmies for improving rts environmental performance across the group

Working environment
The group continues to update s [T systems and to utiise the most efficient technology avalable Employees are encouraged to leave
all computers on standby mode if they are away from the computer

At weekends, all non-essential servers, faxes and printers are shut down and all computers are turned off Better control of temperature
and regulation of the hours of use of ol at National Distnbution Cantras {“NDCs™ to reduce consumption now takes place The promotion
of electronic mail and telephone rather than post s encouraged The Group has invested in video and mobile conferencing facilities n
order to further reduce the amount of travel undertaken by its employees
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Energy saving lamps are used wherever possible and steps are idken o ensure thet 3 Bghts are tumed o when they are mot in use.
Movement sensors ae nstated n bghting wherever gractical to ensure reduced usage of electncily i bow fraflic aeas.

Environmental performance ndicators

The group, whwch does not have manufacturing actwhes, Ekes s emdonmentz] responshiives very senously. The mam mgact en the
errronment s the goup's ogistes. The group theredoe mondtors caeiullly its packagimg and distibution costs o both an eliciency
and environmenid pont of view. The foliowing key performance ndcators are applcable

2014 2013
Packagng costs as % of costs of goods soid 024% 020%
Dsstribuston costs as a % of sakes fepresentng oslivery costs 1o customer) 0.82% 0.89%

Irvestment was made mnio reusable packagng dunng the year and whist this will improve operatonal performance ovar the onger
term, there 5 a short term impact vpen packng oosts. In addiion, the acquired Ldnre business was packagng miensne due to the
nature and sze of a number of thesr key products,

Transport

Debvenes are n the mam camed cut overmght so that vehudles do not get held up in trafic, thus reducing ther emissions. Vehickes weth
diesel partcle fiters are prefarred and cars with low fual consumpbon (fieet scherne) are utiised. Overnight defvery routes are rewewed
regularly to ensure maxanum efScency i scheduing to reduce fuel usage and thereby reduce velacle ssnssions.

Employees are encouraged to optrmese theyr use of car poaling, use of public transport and bmit the amoumt of ar fights. Dnvers ane
asked to conserva therr speed as this © more erergy efficent. Hybnd and elacing cars are offered to employees as pert of the group
car scheme.

Recycling and waste reduction

Recycling s implementad where possible n retahon to paper, glass and residual waste Recycing 1s encouraged withen NDC and
administration centres by reusing old packagng.

Blectronic purchasing ss utbsed to muumuse paper usage Prning s camed out through central paniers m order to reduce paper
consumption A number ol projects have been implemented 1o reutfise boxes for all nternal transport and to improve the recycing
rates at both NDCs and branches.

Supplers are asked to use reusabls pallets rather than disposabie ones. The use of more environmentally fnendly packagng s encouraged
as well as packagmg more products m the same pack, where posaibde, i order to save matenal. Employees are enocouraged o
separate waste Re-usabie plastic totes have been mitroduced with certan customers to reduce waste frther

Accreditation and conformance with European legisiation
Brarmmer 1s working 1o ensure that afl our businesses across the group acihieve an enwronmenial accreditabion such as IS0 14001 — 2004.
The group s committed to reducing its carboen footpnnt through reducing energy consumpbon and proactive waste management.

Brammer is commutted to bemng a responsible company and to taking all reasonable steps to reduce its tmpact upon the ervironment
As a distnbution company, the nterests of our major stakeholders, customers and the environment are well abgned as increased
efficrencies reduce our carbon footpant, drive increased shareholder value and improve costs for customers

As noted earfies, the group has partnered with Carbon Clear regarding a detalled assessment of its emssion levels across Europe

Greenhouse gas emissions

This details Brammer's GHG ermissions for the 12 months ended 31 December 2014 Using an operational control approach, Brammer
assessed its boundaries to identrfy all of the activites and facilities for wiuch it 1s responsible Relevant actmty data were identified and
collected and prowided to the ndependent consultant, Carbon Clear. The validity and completeness of the data were checked by
Carbon Clear and used to calculate the carbon emissions for Brammer The calculations performed follow the GHG Protocol and give
an absolute and intensity factor for the group’s ermissions

The resulis show that GHG emissions in the pencd were 27,018 tonnes of CO2e, compnsed of the following,

Scope 182 — Mandatory Greenhouse Gas Reporting
> (nrect Emissions {Scope 1) amounted to 6,728 tonnes of CO2e or 24 9% of Brammer's total greenhouse gas emissions
> Indirect Emissions (Scope 2) amounted to 7,067 tonnes of CO2e or 26 2% of Brammer's total greenhouse gas emissions

Scope 3 -~ Additional Activity Data Reported
> The sources of Other Indirect Emissions (Scope 3) compnsed 48 9% of total emissions or 13,223 tonnes of CO2e
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The =tles below gives a more detaled breakdown of the emessions by activity and by courtny.
Comparison of emissions by activity between 2013 & 2014

Type of ernissones Actrrty Total 2013 W02 ot 2044 (D00 9% Change
Durect (Scope 1) Gas 1,622 035 -33.8%
Company vehicles 3.657 5,563 44 8%
Aefrigerants - -
Other fuets 2i8 110 -49.3%
Subtotal 5767 6,728 16.7%
ndirect energy (Scope 2§ Supplied electricity 5,000 7,056 413%
Supplied heat & steam 1 1 6.0%
Subtotal 5,001 7,067 41.3%
Indirect other {Scope 3) Non-company owned vetucies 5,066 5502 8.6%
Tram travel 73 53 -27.0%
Fresght transport 1,484 1,928 299%
Flights 1909 1,373 -28 1%
Waste 4,081 3,146 -22.9%
Water 38 3r -~1.4%
Paper 136 116 -14 99%
Packaging matenals 786 1,058 35 9%
Subtotal 13,573 13,223 26%
Total emessions (tCO2e) 24,341 27,018 11.0%
Intensity metnc 2013 2014 % Change
Total GHG emssions/fm tumover 3843 3r.24 -3%
Year on year analysss

Carbon ntensity has reduced year on year by 3% showing that Brammer emitted less carbon per unit of evenue than m the previous
penod There has been an 11% mcrease i total Carbon Emissions from 2013 to 2014 Of the ncrease, 5% relates o the acquesiion
of Lénne and the assocated ncreased actmity levels

Scope 1 emissions have nsen by 16.7%, which 15 predonunantly due 1o an merease in company vehcle emssions

Scope 2 emissions have increased sgmficantly by 41 3% with supplied electnoty emissions solely responsible for this nse Tlus s m
part due to mcreased actity and in part due to changes m emission factors

Scope 3 emissions have remaned farly constant with a small decline noted

Specific country tutiatives are as follows.

in the UK, the Brammer UK employees continue to recenve environmenital tranmg and awareness, wiuch, along with other enveonmental
improvements, has resulted in Brammer UK continuing with ther 1ISO 14001 2004 accrechtation and atso confirming that zero tonnes
of waste per month were sent to Landfillin 2004 (2013 - zero tonnes per moenth, 2005 ~ 7.68 tonnes per month) which s a significant
achevement given the size and volume of transactions

The NDC continues to recycle cardbeard, plastic and paper, which, due to better working practices with our supphers, has continued
to decrease from our 2013 figures Cardboard, paper and plaste all decreased signficantly, however Electnorty increased by 3 5%
due to addiional hours worked at weekends Dunng 2014 the UK introduced ‘Dry Mix Recyclng’ which combines cardboard, plastic,
paper and yn/aluminum cans  This wilk reduce the number of skips required, thus brniting the number of delivenas and meaning reduced
CO2 emissions into the environment. Where possible Brammer UK continues to minimise CO2 emissions, with improved GPS delvery
routes introduced to reduce fuel costs Brarnmer UK continues to adhere to the ISO 14001 2004 acoreditation across the entire branch
network, gearbox centres, workshops, NDC and Head Office

In France, the NDC in Nozay holds full ISO 14001 2004 cerhification, valid unbl 2017 All sites in France hold full 1SO 9001 2008
certification, valid until July 2017
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Brammer Framce & a ufl signatory to the Urnited Nabons Global Compact in Jume 2070 in the amsas of emirommeneal complancs,
hurnan nghits, Ebour standards, and an-comupton R publishes an annual Communicaiicn on Progress which s avaflable through
the UN Gliobal Compact Website. For 2014, the icliowsng achons were endertzken reganfing emimrmenta] matters:

> The avarage carbon footpmevt of the company car fleet was reduced by 4 points and is now 114g/m;

> Salectve soring of wasts has been estahished within the NDC, the head office at Nozay and the site at Schitighsim, 6059 of a8
waste s movw recycled:

> “Boo-fnendly” compliance svtaives estabished,

> Al cardboans packagng ts made fom 100% recyded and moydable materals; and

> Instatiztion of a hydrocarbon separator at Nozay s improve: the teatment of stom water.

I Gemrany all sites hold &8 IS0 14001-2009 and ISO 9001.20C8 certificatons. An 150 14001 audit v 2014 for Dortmund, Karkarute
and 4 other focaons was passed with no docunented non-conformubes. A fisther five locahons gre to be audfiad in 2015

For Dorimund and 13 other sites, electnorty supples are procured from a green energy suppher. The power mix is 85% from hydo-alectne
and 5% bam wand power senaces.

In Poland, af siies hold i 1ISO 9001:2005 certificabon. valid untl Novermber 2015, and are workng towards IS0 14001 certificaton
over the rext Two years  The vehcle fieet in Poland conbnues to be updated to sgrificantly reduce emissions and the company nvestad
0 a ransiormer to convert huigh frequiency energy indo a lower fom, whoch significanty reguces energy consumpbon. Addisonally
when camying cut bulding renovaton, new energy efacient Eghing and wandows are bexng installod.

Brammer Spamn has bl IS0 14001:2004 certificabon, which s vaid untd February 2017. The NDC n Spam is also IS0 50004 -2011
accredited, vabd untl September 2017. Brammer Spam has also smplemented a pobcy of reducing packagng, replacng ptashc bags
for packagng paper or cardboard, reusing packaging whenever possible and recydiing paper, candboard, plastcs and toners through
authonsed waste managers n the NDC and all other branches Addionally, in the NDC in Spaan, energy consumption has been
reduced by the replacernent of HVAC equipment and Eghiting with more efficient equepment; thes has led to a substantial enprovernent
m energy consumpton when compared wath 2013, with energy sawngs of around 15% in 2014 ard an expectation of an addibonal
15% enengy saving n 2015.

All Brammer sies n the Cooch Republic, Slovalea, the Netherfands Hungary Norway Denmark and Fintand, and the site in Helsingbiorg,
Sweden, hold il ISO 9001 2008 certificabon

Health and safety

The group stnves to prowvide and mantan a safe emwronment for all employees, customers and vistors o its prenises and to comply vath
relevant health and safety leqislabon. In addition the group aims to minimise the nsk of work based acodents by ensunng systems are
n place to address health and safety matters. The group encourages the nvolvement of employees and ams for continual mprovesment
m health and safety matters through a formal structure wath a reporting and review process  Compliance with health and safety policies
and legislation 1s monrtored on a country by country basis. The goal of the group s to achseve best practice i all of s operations
Progress on mmplementation of country heatth and safety plans 15 closely monitored

The group’s heatth and safaty policy staternent, wiuch i1s published on cur webstite, focuses on establishng a surtable ermaronment,
providing propes tramung and commurscation wath employees

Reports on health and safety performance are made to meetings of the board on a quartery basis. A format of heatth and safety reporting
15 in place so that the board can monitor more carefully Injury statistics and trends across the group, especially where there are locally
notifiable ncidents

A maor swvestiment programme m our NDCs over the past few yvears has given us the opportunity to iniroduce vehicle movement
practces both on branch forecourts and indoors  This has significantly improved the workplace ransport flows invohved, separating
workplace vehiuicle movements from people movements and significantly reducing the apporturty for acedents.

Brammer's use of vehicles and the composttion of its fleet are continually under review to ensure that the most appropnate vehicles
are used for delivery from branches Delvenes from the NDCs to branches are normally camed out by an external logistics company

Standardisation of Fork Lift Truck ("FLT™) procedures including external traning continues to be appled across the group

Health and Safely in specific countries

During 2014 Brammer UK achieved the OHSAS18001 2007 accreditation across the entire branch netwark, gearbox centres,
workshops, NOC and Head Office ensunng that afl employeas carry out therr functions in a safe and effectve manner The investment
in automation at the NDC in relation to the picking and despatch processes continues to bnng about further reduchons in the amount
of manual handling

Other accreditations (which have elements of H&S within the audits and actwities) include

» Bnlish Flud Power Hose Association — BFPA certification accreditation - dedicated to improving the performance of distnbution
withun the fluid power industry

> Approved SAFE contractor — A leading health and safety pre-qualification assessment scheme, dedicated to promoting higher
standards of competence and compliance through the provision of relevant industry speciiic and talored health and safety assessments
for all professions and sectors
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> Achfies — UVDB Verily (utlities industry) Quality, Hedlth, Safety and Ermeronmmental Assessment Certfication and assessment for
contracts of high gperasond risk, the Uty second stage pre-gualiicaion scheme UVDB Verily applies. UVDB Verify shows the
company’s aiity to desnonstrate complence tn heatth, safety, envronmenial and qualty requrements.

> Achiles — Buidng Confdence {Constnueton industnyl. A Quiatty, Hesfth, Safsty and Emvronmentzl Assessment providing an efectve
pra-quelification and acoediadion senvices for the UK constucton sdustny

> Achiles —Unbc-up (Ral industry) is the ral industry suppler quaficaton scheme, prowdng a sngle cormmon registrabon, qualificaion
and audit process {or supphers that i shared by the UK ral mdustry m Quakty, Health, Safety and Environmental Assessmesit

> Achilles — FPAL (Ol and Gas hdusty). FPAL Acoreditabon is the ditect moute to busness in the O & Gas Industry, which ams to
fmd the perfect supplier for every buyer. FPAL works to wdentrly, qualily, evaluate and morrior suppliers on behaf of its Purchasing
members o Qualily, Health, Safety and Evionmentsll actnatios.

> Sedex - Suppher Ethecal Data Bxchange ~ s a membershyp orgenrsation for businesses commidted to contmuous improvement of
the etheeal performance of ther supply chasns.,

> CIPS ~ Chartered Instriuta of Purchasing and Supgly 1s an estzbiished mierrabonal standard of excellence n procurement polices
and procedures. The Purchasing Accrediabon assesses the company's Sustarnablity, Comporate Socal Responsibiity, Quatty
Heclth & Safety and Fmancial Stahity

> Quabily Management System — IS0 9001 acoreditabon — mplementing an efiective and robust Quality Management System {OMS}
helps our focus on the wnportant areas of the busmness to mprove efficency. The Management processes that are estabished
throughout our busmness will provide a sound foundation, leading to ncreased groductvily and profit. This in turn wil mprove our
customer acouestbon and refenbon,

> Envronmenial Management - ISC 14001 accreditation — Developed to prowvide a management system o help organusations
reduce ther emaonmental impact. The standard prowdes the framework for orgenisabons to demonstrate thew commstrment to
the emeronmment by reducing hanmiul effects on the ervaormest and to provide evidence of contnual improverment of enveonmental

management.

> Occupaboral Health & Safety — OHSAS 18001 accreditatzon — wiuch provdes a framework (o help orgamsabions meet therr logal
cbbgatons to Health and Safety m the workplace.,

> BSIF - Cartficate of Membershin — Bnlish Safety Industry Federaton ~ 15 the UK leading trade body wathin the safety industry
who prowde support and girdance on a wide range of oocupational safety issues

> PICS — Pactfic Industnal Contractor Screening — Membership — providing assistance o mantam hgh levels of compbance to nsk
and safety management.

A drver onkine assessment programene has contnued throughout 2014 The aim s 1o reduce the number of road accdents mvoing
employees whilst dmeng company vehcles Afl new medium szed defvery vans ordered for the UK fleet are suppbed with a 62mph
speed restnctor tomprove the fuel efficiency of the valucles and to prevent doving at excess speed

In Span, an external expert company ensures complance with current heatth and safety legislation. Brammer Spam, as part of s
acadent prevenbon programme, 15 implementing actons to improve awareness of 2 its employees leading to the prevention of accidents
and work refated dinesses Houtne medical examinabons of employees are camed out every year n accordance with Spanish health
and safety legislaten in order to monttor the health of employees The same apphes to now starters

tn Span, ant-spill tanks and anb-spill emergency kits have been installad to cope with safety requirements for the warehousing of
chemucals and o act n case of emergency High capacity outdoor safety cupboards have also been installed to comply with safety
requiremnents and to increass the capaciy to store flarmmable products.

In France, the health and safety commuttee meets quarterly and works continuously on improving safety This commitiee has made a
major contribubon to reducmg the number of acoidents i the past few years Road traffic accident prevention s still a mayor stiatve
improvements in manual handing training and fire prevenbon measures continued dunng the year

First ad tramung now takes place at the larger branches on a regular basis Manual handhng traimng in the area of kfting 1 now targeted
at more senior employees in the NDC

A safety manager for Brammer Germany 15 nominated to support all employees acress the country on matters of employee safety
They conduct safety audtts, lead safety council meetings, Liasse with Government bodres and Liability Insurers and investigate any
ncidents  In both Dortmund and Stuttgart formal safety councids are estabhshed to discuss safety 1ssues of the North and South
German area on a quarterty basis Tha safety council 1s composed of one member of senior management, the safety manager, safety
speciabsts, occupational health physician and two members of the tabour council

Risk assessments are carned out In accordance wath German law and practice A ceniral action plan 1s mantained to address any
1ssues highlighted dunng the annual review process

All hazardous substances are stored in 2 purpose butli starage area in the national distnbution centre in Dortmund  This storage area
18 under special control of the safety manager and 1s nspected internally on a quarterty basis, and annually by governmental assessors
No 1ssues were reported or raised dunng the year

A nsk analysis 1s camed out by occupationa health physicians and as a result an indmdual skin protection plan for cleaning, safety
and care of the skin has been established, communicated to employees and published in the operation areas  Skin protection 1s part
of the annual health care service
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Noise measimements at the Dortmund and Sadttgart locatens showed compiznee a1 Stuttgart. For Dorbrund a nose rettucton
programme was mitated {0 sesk to futher address esues over excess noise. In the short term, personal protactive equgment has (o
be used, Al affeciao enmployess are fully trasnad to prevent any issues sunmcunding nose elated maries.

Each sie has a fre preventon and rotechon plan. intemnal fre mspections are conducted on a regular basis and {ully documernted.
Urammounced wisits by loca authoriues are also camed out and any ssues raised arddessed ammediatoby

Fast auders for all sites are m place and trained n accordance with al relevant requiatans

breemal heakh and salely tranng s underiaken throughout the organssticn on an annual bass. In addton, specdie trainmg is mplementad
for new emnployees, new processes or substances, or as othervise required by Gorman law, AR training s fully documented n accordence
with best practice.

Employment of disabled persons

ltis the pcicy of the group to gve full and fair consideration to appliicatens or employment racehved from dissbled persons, ianng regand
to ther parbcuar apbtudes and abiites, and wherever possitle to conbinue the employment of, and to aTange approprate tanng
for, employees who have become disabled persons durmng the penod of their employment. The group provdes the same opportunities
for traning career devalopment and promiotion for disabled persons as for othes employees

Corporate governance
The company’s statement on Corporate Governance 5 ncluded m the Corporate Governance report on pages 43 (o 48 of these
financal statements.

Takeover drective

The company has only one class of ordinary shares and these shares have equal voiing nghts. The nature of nciwdual directors” holdings
are disclosed on pages 62 and 63

As pari of the reschutons approved at the 2014 annual general mesting of sharsholders, shareholders’ authonty was grven to the company's
directors ko the aBotment of up to 39,334,691 ordinary shares of 20p each if the authonty s not utiised in connection with a nghts
ssue, representing 33 3% of the issued share capital of the company as at the date of the 2014 annual general mesting.

During the year, the dwectors did not fully exercrse the authonbes given to them (to alict shares), however 100,000 shares were ssued
in relation o the opbons exertised under the Executve Share Option Schemes and a further 11,300,407 shares wera ssued by way
of a placing which raised approxamately £53 7 miion. As at 31 December 2014, the drectors have the power (o allot up {0 78,669,382
ordinary shares of 20p each representing 66 6% of the ssued share capital as at the date of the 2014 anmuat general meeting in
connection with a nghts issue, sutyect 1o a reduction of any amount of shares ssued n accordance with the preceding paragraph.

There are no significant agreements to wirch the company 15 a party which take effect, alter or termunate i the event of change of
control of the company except that the revolvng credt faciity agreement dated 11 July 2011 in respect of the €100 mdion revolving
credit fachity) (“the group facility”) contauns mandatory pre-payment prowisions on a change of contiol The group facity contains a
prohibrion on a merger of the company with another entity wathout the pnor consent of the relevant banks  Dunng the year, the company
agreed a further $75 milion loan note facility with the Prudential Insurance Companty of Amenca ["Prcoa”) This note purchase agreement
contans provisions requing the repayment of all outstanding notes upon a change of contrdl of the company.

As slated n the remuneration report on page 55, the curent executive directors of the company are entitied to certan payments f
thesr employment I1s terminated o thay are given notice by the company (save in crcumstances gmng ase to summary dismussal or
retirement) wathin one year of a change of control of the company

Certain of the company’s share ncentive schemes contain provisions that pemmit awards or options 1o vest or becoms exercisable on
a change of control In accordance with the rnules of the schemes

Transfer of shares

The board may refuse to regsster a transfer of a certificated share which 1s not fully paxd or whers a person with at least a 0 25% interest
in a class of shares has been served with a disclosure notice and has faled to prowde the company with information concerning
nterests in those shares The board may also refuse to register a transfer of a certificated share if it 1s 1n respect of one class of share
or 15 1n favour of more than four jont holders

Transfers of uncertificated shares must be carned out using CREST and the board can refuse to register a transfer of an uncertificated
share in accordance wath the regulations governing the operation of CREST

There are no other lmitations on the holding of ordinary shares in the company and the company 1s not aware of any agreements between
sharehoiders that may result 1 restnctions on the transfer of shares

Vanation of nghts
Rights attached to any class of shares may be vaned with the wntten consent of the holders of at least three quarters n nominal value
of the 1ssued shares of that class or by a spectal resolution passed at a separate general meeting of the shareholders

The company by ordinary resolution may determine that any shares are allotted with special nghts, prvleges or restnctions
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Going concern

As highlighted in the financeal reviewy, during 2014 the goup met ds day to day workeng capitd equiremens through 2 €100.0 mition
bankng faciity with HSBC, Yerichre Bark and XBC Bank and a USS1 73 milfion urcormndiad taclity with Pricoa. $130 mion of the
$175 million faciity s mow fully commdies untl 2021, The curent economic Condihons create wmoertanty parboulady over [2) the level
of demmand for the group’s prodiucts, ) the exchange rets between Stetng and Euro; and {C) the mate of mierest pad on floatng rete
Ibans. The group's foecasts and progectons, taking accowt of sensinty analyses of changes in trading performance and exchange
rate movemens, show that the goup is well placed (o0 operate virthin the teve of ifs curent facitbes Tor the foesosaide fuhe.

Therglore after maiung these engumnes, the drectors hawe a reasoneble expeciation that the company and the growp have adeguats
resournces to contnue in operatond existemce for the loresesable fulure. Accordingly, they corimue (o acdopt the gomng concem basis
m prepanng e annual report and accoumts

Independent auditors

So far as each director s @mvame, there s no relevant audt mformatbon of whach the audtors are uraeware. Each director has laken all
the sieps that he cught o have taken as a drecior i onder to make himself anae of any relevam audit amformaton and 1o establiish
that the company's auditors are aware of that eviormation

Re-appomtmernt
Resalutions o re-2ppornt PricevaterhouseCoopers LUP (Pw() as ndependent auditor (o the company and to authaorise the drectors
to determine tneir remumerabon will be proposad at the annual general mesting.

Annual general meeting

The annual general meetng of the company & to be held at 1300 on 15 May 2015 at 43-45 Bioad Street, Teddington, Middesex
TW1i1 807,

The notce of meeting appears n the documnent accompamyng this report and accounts Five resolutions will be proposed as items of
specad busness at the meetng and exptanations of these resolutions are gven in the enclosed catudar

By order of the board
Steven Hodkinson

Company Secrelary
17 February 2015




Corporate governance statement

The boand 5 accountable to the company’'s sharsholders for good corporate govemance. s policy s &0 marege the alizirs of the
company B accordance with the pinoiples of the UK Conperate Governance Code rsfermed to én the Listng Rulles of the UK Listmg
Authority. A coipy of this Code is puthdy avalable fom wenw fC.og.

For the year under review, the company has compled with the UK Comporaie Goverrance Code e Coda™) i all cespects.
The fcllowmg carts of this report desaribe the boand’s approach to conporate governance and how the princples of the Code an: appled.

Part A: Directors

Board batance and independence

The board clrently comprises a non-executng chairman, hwo executve diectors and fouwr non-executve drectors, who ae equally
responsaie for the proper stewartishp and leadership of the company The drectors holdkng ofice 2t the date of thes report and thelr
bicgraphical detals are grven on pages 28 and 29.

All of the nom-executve drectors ame ndependent of the company’s exacuinve management and fee fiom any busimess or other reiatonship
that coutd materally nterfore with the exemtise of ther sndependent udgement. Dunng the year they sach met the intlepandeance
critena set out in the Code. Teny Garthwarde, hawing complsted 10 years of service with the comparny may no konger be considened as
independant under the tenms of the Code and as a result wil not stand for reclection at the 2015 AGM. Andrea A was appoaved as a
non-executive director m July 2014. Ridgevway Partners were retaned (o assist n thrs process. The terms and conditions of appomtment
of the non-executve dvectors ae avalable for sspection at the regstered office of the company. The letters of appontment set out
ther expected tme commitment to the role, Other signiicant commstments of the non-exacutive directons are disclosed to the board.

Bil Wheisley, the chaaman of the company rmet the ndependence cntena set out in the Code at the tme of frs gpponiment and contriLes
to meet the exdependence cntena set cut m the Code Performance evaluation of mdmdudl drectors regudarly takes place io ensume
that an mdradudl’s performance contnues o be effective and commitment to the role s demonsirated. Such evaluaton tock place
2014, in addition, the tramung needs of the board are reviewed regularly and, where appropnate, addressed.

Duncan Magrath 1s currenily the seror independent non-executive director He s available to sharcholders f they have concerns whoch
coniact through the chasman, chief executive or finance director have faded to resobve or for winch such contact s sappropedaie.

All drectors are suppbed, in a tinely manner, with afl relevant documentation and fnancial information to assist them n the discharge
of they dutes This icludes information on the company’s operational and financial performance. The board regularly reviews the
management and financsal performance of the company, as well as long term stratege planning and nsk assessment. Regular reports
are gven 1o the board on matters such as pensions, health and safety and likgaton. The management executve comimiites met wath
the board three tmes dunrng the year

Chairman and chief executive

The posibons of charman and chef executive are held by separate ndivduals and the board has clearly defined ther responsibiiies
The charman s pnmanly responsible for the effectve worlang of the board, ensunng that each director, particularty the non-executve
directors, 5 able to make an effectve contribution The chuef executive has responsibility for all operational matters which includes the
implementation of the group strategy and policies approved by the board

Appraisals and evaluation

Dunng the year, the charman held a meeting with the non-executive directors, without the executive directors besng present. In addition,
led by the semor mdependent director. the non-executive directors met in the absence of the chasrman to apprarse the chawyman's
performance

Attendance by mdividual directors at meetings of the board and its committees
The attendance of directors at the board and prncipal board committee meetings dunng the yeas 1s detaled in the chart below

Man Board Man Board {Telephone) Auckt Committee Remuneraton Commdtee  Norminahon Gommetieo

7 Meetings 3 Meetings 3 Mestings 4 Mogtngs { Megung
Bl Whitelay 7 3 nv/a n/a 1
lan Fraser 7 3 n/a n/a 1
Terry Garthwarte 7 3 3 4 1
Paul Thwaite 7 3 n/a n/a n/a
Charles Ining-Swift 7 3 3 4 1
Duncan Magrath 7 3 3 4 1
Andrea Abt (appointad July 2014) 3 1 2 3 1

Appointment and resignation of directors
On appointment, new directors receve a flll, formal and talored induction Major shareholders are offered the opportunity to meet newly
appomted non-executive drectors

Directors have the nght to ensure that any concerns they have, which cannot be resolved, about the runrung of the company or a proposed
action, are recorded in the board minutes  Upon resignation a non-executive director shall be asked to provde a wnitten statement to
the chairman, for circulaiion to the board, If they have such concerns
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Advice for directors

A pmoedure has bean adopiad ior the drectors to obian mdependent professiond acthece, in approprade drournstances, & the
corpanys epanse. Conrrmittees are provided with sufficient rescurces 1o undertake ther diries. An mtennal govenrarce pobcy provides
that drectors hare wuvesticted access to the advice and senvices of the company secretary.

Dedegabon and working through committees

The boad has a fomal schedule of matters specdically reserved to it for approval. Tius scihedde s eviewed perodeally The boards
man jocus s on stratege and poloy ssues and eviewng obyecives and performance. The board cperaies in such a way 1o ensure
that a1 decxsicns are rmad2 by the most approprete people in a melly manner that vl not urnecessarily delay progress. The boand has
fermally delagated speaific responsipdibes to board commutiees, nchadng the 2udit commiioe, mmuneraton commiise and nomnzicns
commites {see pages 28 and 29). The boand will aso appont com meitees o approve specdic processes a5 deamed necessary,

The directors and management teams of each group company are responstle for thosa busness entibes. They are tasked wih the
doivery of targets approved by the board on budgets, strateqgy and pofcy.

These pclicies and procedures collecinvely enable the board to make indormed deorsions on a range of key isswes nckuding those rdating
to strateagy and sk management.

Board evaluaton

The board undertook a process of self-evaluabon of iis owmn performance dunng the year. A questionnaie was devised and approved
by the board. Owectors submiited ther completed questonnases to the chanman who reviewed the responses vath the ndincheal
direciors and the board as a whole The exerase was viewed posiively by the board and will be indertiaken agasn during the course
of the cunrent fnancial year.

Retrement by rotation

Each of the drectors s subgect 10 elechon by shareholders at the firsl annuat general meebing after thesr appontment. Thereafter all of
the directors are sutyect to compulsory retirement by motabon at ntervals of no more than three years. The drectors are aware of the
retrement by rotation provisions of the Code that apply to FTSE 350 companies, and have chosen to voluntardy adopt these provsions,
Accordingly, al directors shall be offermg themiselves for re-clection at the 2015 AGM. Terry Gasthwaste completed nme years of serace
with the group on 1 .June 2013 The board, however, considered his expenence, knowledge and contribubon to be such that he conainued
to serve beyond tes Gth anmiversary but will not stand for re-election ai the 2015 AGM. Biographical detads of these directors are set
out on pages 28 and 29

Nominations committee

The nominations commitiee and the board seek to mamtiain an appropnate balance between the executive and non-executve directors
Duning the year, the nominabons committee was chawed by Bl Whiteley and consists of all the non-executive directors and the cheef
exocutve it meets penodically as requred, but at least once a year The terms of reference of the comututise were reviewed dunng
the year and are available on the company’s website at www brammer bz

The committee reviews the structure, size, diversity and composition of the board and makes recommendations concerning the
re-appointment of any non-executve director at the conclusion of theer speaified term of office and in the dentfication and nomunaton
of new directors The commuttee retans external search and selecton consultants as appropnate  The comimattee also advises the
board on successon planning for executive board appointments although the board dself 1s responsible for succession generally

All directors who are offening themselves for re-elecbon at the 2015 AGM have been subject to a formal evaluation process The
nominabons committee has concheded that they continue to contnbute effectively and demonstrate ther commitment to the respectve
board and committee roles that they hold

The commuties evaluates the balance of shills, knowledge and expenence on the board and 1s responsible for board appointments
Following an evaluation, it prepares, in conjunction with the board, a detailed b description of the role with a candidate profite and
the capabilibes requred for a particular appoantment In drafting this, considerabon would be grven to the exasting expenence, knowledge
and background of board members as well as the strategic and business objectives of the group |t determines the scope of the role
of a new drrector, the skills and tme commitment required and 15 actively involved in the recnutment process Short-hsted candidates
would then be invited to interview with members of the commuittee and i, recommended by the commuttee, would be nvted to meet
the entire board before any decision is taken relating to the appointment

Audit committee

Dunng the year the audit commuittee consisted of ali the non-executive directors The board 15 satsfied that Terry Garthwarte, who
charrs the committee, has recent and relevant financial expenence Mr Garthwaite'’s professional qualificatrons and expenence are set
out in hus biography on page 28 Duncan Magrath will succeed Mr Garthwarte as audit committee charman subject to bus re-election
at the AGM

The executive directors and the external auditor may atlend at the nvitation of the committee Howaever, the committee has the nght
to reguest invitees to wathdraw from the meeting to enable discussions to take piace in therr absence

The mam role and responsibilities of the audit committee are set out in wniten terms of reference  These terms of reference are available
on the company’s website at www brammer biz
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The commiise has prenary responsbily for making recommendabons to the board on the appomimen, reeppontment and emoval
of the excarral audenr which ihe board puts to shareholders for approywal n generdl meetngs. It keeps under revies the scope and resulls
of the audi, and its oost ellectveness and the ndependence and dgecovity of the audiior, The commities keeps the rahre and exient of
mem-adt senaces umder revpw by egulardy eaaewng the ratn of audil io mom-aud? fzes. The commitiee is avware of the reed o sEfaguard
aupditor gitjectary amad independence and thes issue s discussed by the comites and penedically with the audt partner at PwC.

The commizee mviews anmual and evenm firanca statements before sutmission to the board and revisws the scope and efeciveness
of the growp's mtenaal control funchons. The committee will pericdically rmewew the scope, rermmt and effactneness of the miemal audit
funchon,

The commutize reanews the pobicy by whech employees of the company may, n confidence, raise metters of concem, nduding possible
impropriehes n financa! rfeporting or other matiers.

The commuttee montors the itegnty of the group's finencial statements and anmouncements relating 1o financeal performance and
revews the sagraficant Snancial reporting gedgements contasned m them,

Remuneration commitiee

The ramuneraton commtiee s chared by Charles nng-Swit and conssts of 2l the non-exacurtve directors. Memibers of the commitioe
have no personal fnancd interest in the company other than as shaholders and the fees pand to them as non-executve direcions.
They are not involved n the day-to-day nmning of the company.

lan Fraser, by mwitaben and for matters not relating to him, may attend meetngs and 15 consulied by the commitiee on proposals relatmg
io the remuneration of the executve directors and appropnate senor exacutves. He does not parhcipate s defiberatons and decisions
where he has a dwect personal ntevest.

Further detals are set oul n the remunerabon report on page 57.

Part B: Directors’ remuneration

Detads of drectors’ emunerabon are set out m the Emuneraton report. The report detals the compary's compliance wiih the Code's
requrernents with regard to remuneraton matters  The terms of reference of the remunerabon commttee are avalabie on the company's
wehsite at www. brammerbe,

Part C: Relations with shareholders

The board 1s accouniable to shareholders for the company’s continued success. The company accordingly places great emphasis on
mamtanskg good communicatons with shareholders The charman, cheef executve and finance director meet regularty with magor
shareholders to discuss the group'’s performance. strategc 1ssues and shareholder nvestment objectives Reports of these meetings,
and any shareholder commumcations dunng the year, are reported to the board

If requested, the non-executve drrectors are avallable to attend meetings with maor shareholders. The board requiarty receves copies
of analysts’ and brokers’ brigfings

The annual report together with the Brammer website are a substantial means of commumcation with afl shareholders dunng the year.

The Intenm Report together with Intenm Management Statements are announced to the Stock Exchange and atso published on the
Brammer website

The notice of the AGM accompanies this report and accounts The notice 1s despatched to shareholders, together wath explanatory
notes or a circular on iterns of special business, at least 21 working days before the mesting It s the compary’s practice to propose
separate resolutions on each substanbally separate 1ssue

The board welcomes questions from shareholders who have an opporturnity to raise 1ssues erther nformally or iormally before or at the
AGM The charmen of the audtt, remuneration and nominations commuttees will normally be avaiiable at the meeting to answer those
questions relating to the work of these committees The chairman generally makes a staternent on current trading at the meeting The
company counts all proxy votes and the chaiman waill nform shareholders of the level of proxies lodged on each resolution The votes
for and againsl each resolubon, together wath the number of abstenbons will be given followang the show of hands for that resolution

Part D: Accountability and audit
The respective responsibiities of the directors and auditors In connection wath the financial statements are explained in the staterment
of directors’ responsibiittes and the auditors’ report

Independence of auditors

The audit committes oversees the relabonship with the external audrors ncluding (but not imited to) approving therr remuneraton,
assessing annually their independence and objectmty, talking into account relevant professional and reguiatory requirerments and the
relationshup with the auditors as a whole, ncluding the prowision of any non-audit services

The directors ensure the ndependence of the auditors by reguesting an annual confirmation of mdependence which includes the
disclosure of all non-audtt fees The group policy with regard to the provision of audit and non-audit services by the external audritors
15 based on the prnciples that they should only undertake nen-audit senices where they are the most appropnate and cost-effeciive
provider of the service, and where the provision of non-audit service does not impa, or is not perceved to Imparr, the external auditors’
independence and objectvity
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The cument audiiors, PwC, weare appointad in 200 There 2re no contractual chbhgations that restict the commitise’s chsitoe of extanmd
auditor. temal reews, assessing the oost effectveness and vallug for money espects of the awdli. were conductad m 2006 ard 20432
but on nexther occasion was « consicizred necessary to conduct a fomal cormpetrine tendear. Martn Heath, the curent engagennent
partner, has served fowr years of fis ive year term and will iotate after the 31 December 2015 accounts are signed. Based on B
sequiabons, the cument expectzion of ten year mandatory rolaton with rensibieral aues wousd resull in a change of autitors ro fater
than 16 June 2023. The Departnnent for Busmess, nnovaton amd Skils (8357 and the Fnencial Reporing Cowncll (1FRCT) have both
recently issued consultabon documents on howr to adopt the FL) Reguiabons m the UK The tmimg of 2 competiiive tender will comdmue
to be assessed on an annual bass, conmscenng both the results of the annwval effectveness enviiew, discussed belowe, ana UK legisiaton
whan efiscted,

Tre committee regularty reviesvs the analyss of 28 sennces prownded by PwC. The policy 5 reviewed anmually By e committee ard
approved by the board  The commetice also undertakes am annual review of the excemral audit efieciveness {ollowing the complieton
of the audit pmcess. Country management teams iogather with the central Brance kmcton are asked fo fomally spprase the efectveness
and qualty of the audt process. The Chair of the Audit Commitiee undertalees a formdl reviewy of these cormements reporting back o
the comnmuttes who then share these comments weh PwG and, where necessary, dsouss how the finance teams and auditors can
work togather more effectively.

Intemal control

Int=rmal conirals are dessgnead to manage rather than elimingte nsk of ke 1o acheve busness olyectives and can provide arly reesoratie
and not absolute assurance aganst materal mmusstzaiement or loss  The board s responsible for the grioups sysiem of intemeal contol
and for revievang its effectveness. The beard works clesely with local management and has established procedures o place to montor
below for further detals.

The board, through the audit commettee, conducts annually a review of the effactveness of the group's system of witennal controls
covenng all matenal controls including financial, operational, msk management and complance Management reviews monihly control
reports and will identfy any ssues 1o the board

in additon, the directors at least annually conduct a review of the effectiveness of the group’s process for identifyng  evalrating and
managng the sigruficant nsks faced by the company; thes has operated throughout the year and up to the date of sigrng these Brancal
statements The board reviews the results of the process, which s n kne with the Tumbud gusdance

QOperational structure, review and compliance
Together with board reviews, there are regular review meebings to address operabing perfosmance, plans, nsks and controls between
the corporate team and the country managng directors and finance drectors

The corporate team takes responsbility for finance, 17, the development of pan-Eurcpean supplier refatonships and the development
of pan-European key account actmty, which complernents the work done within each of the subsicanes The continung smportance
to the busmess of Ewropean supplier agreements and customer contracts has made the mole of thus team all the more relevant. Each
business already has an established enterpnse resource plannmg ("ERP™ system; the overall strategy 1s to enhance the communcabon
between these systerms as part of a process of continuous Mprovement of the management and control of the mventory and the sales
order process As part of the development and mprovement of the group’s reporting system, a financial reporting and consolidation
package 1s conbinually updated to improve the qualty and speed of financial reporting

Brammer has had a finance manual in place for many years, it ts a corporate manual with a wide rangs of contents reflecting the evolution
n corporate governance from financial mternal contral to all aspects of internal control and ts updated continually

In addition to the group finance director, the group has senor financtal managers at its head office The board regutarly considers the
effectiveness of the internal audit department, some subsihanes have ther own ntermal audit function and there 1s a group indernal
audit officer

The businesses have instituted internal monthly seff-assessment processes at subsidiary lewved, talored to their respective operatons,
these assessments are submitted for review by the head office finance team and the regional finance controflers Monthly financial
results of each subsidiary are reviewed at group level, the monthly review includes meetings where performance and action plans are
presented to the Brammer chief executive, finance director and controllers This culminates in reports that cover operationa), financial
and contiol reviews being submitted to the board

These control processes are under ongong continuous review 10 ensure adequacy for the purpese and efficient working in furtherance
of ther objectves

The man areas the board focused on dunng 2014 were

Strategy formulation, implementation and momtoning:

> Recened regular updates from the CEO on management development and succession planning
> Met the executive board in June to discuss the group's strategy

> Recewved detalled presentation surrounding cyber nsks and corporate IT secunty
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Performance monitoring:

> Revicwed monthly reponts fiom the CEO and the busmess ine manraging diectors on the key issues afectng the busmess.

> Reviewed monthly reports from the CFO on performance aganst bedget and forecast For mors sdormaton on our finamonal
performance see pages 6 to 27

> Recerved delaled Health & Sajety report fom UK HS Marager.

> Revewed reports om the CFRO on the fmancal posrion of the growp, which nduded treasury maragement.

> Reviewed reqular reports from the chammen of the audit, remuneraton and nomsnation comenmitiees on oratters dscusssd att the
commuitee mestngs.

> Approved the ful year and half year resudts for the group

> Rewewed reports on peer group companson of resufis.

> Made recommendabions regarding the 2013 fnal divdend and approved the 2014 nienm divdend.

> Approved the group's budgsat for 2015.

Governance and risk:

> Revieved reports on govermance issues. including changes arfsing from the sriroduction of the UK Corporate Govermamee Caode
2012 and the revised remunerabon reponing reguiabons from BIS.

> Perfomed regular reviews of the signiicant nsks affectng the group. For more sdormation on our nsk ranagement framewosk and
processes see page 45

> Rewvewred and updated the matiers reserved for ine board.

> Revieveed regular reports and key performance mdicators on health and safety and corporate socal responsibiity ssues. For more
imiormabon on owr corporate responsthiity and heatth and safety policies and procedures, see pages 36 to 41.

Attended meetings with the execuive board in Aprd, June and Novemnber including

> Meeting the Duich management team n June 2014

Shareholder engagement:

> Rewviewed 2014 AGM proxy voting Bgures For more mformabon on the 2014 AGM visit our website at www.brammerbez.
> Rewviewed reports from brokers on shareholder feedback from meetings with the CEQ and CFO.

> Made preparations in respect ¢i the 2015 Annual General Meeting.

Other:
> Rewviewed and agreed the spectfication for the appontment of a new non-executive director
> Approved the 2014 Annual Report and Accounts

Work of the Audit Committee
The prncipal work camed out by the audit commttee dunng the penod included the following

> Monitonng the country audits and group wide process reviews performed throughout the year. recemng reports from the intemnal
audit departrment and reviewing its results dunng the year A review of the internal audit work for the penod to Juty was considered
at the July 2014 meeting, and a review of further work camed out for the penod to Novemnber was considered at the Novermnber
2014 meeting The ntemal audit plan for 2015 was consdered and approved at the November 2014 meeting

> Accounting polcies and standards — duning the year the committee reviewed the appbeation of any new accounting policies or
standards which would be apphicable to the group’s 2014 annual report The cormmuttee 1s updated regulardy on actual and pending
changes to the accounting standards

> internal controls and nsk management - in February 2014 the commuttea reviewed observations from the external auditors and in
July and November 201 4, the commuttee considered reports on the operation of and 1ssues ansing from the group’s mternal control
procedures ft also monitored at its July and November 2014 meetings, the effectiveness of the group's nsk management process,
which considers the key nisks, both financial and non-financial, facing the group and the effectiveness of the group's controls to
manage and reduce the impact of those nsks

> In November 2014, the board reviewed the committee’s terms of reference and non-audit servces poicy

» External auditors’ work and relationship — the cormmittee assessed the external auditors’ independence and objectwity throughout
the year The audit report for 2013 was reviewed and discussed with the external auditors at the February 2014 meeting prior ta
them 1ssuing an unqualified audit report, a smilar process has taken place in relation to the 2014 audit report Therr intenm findings
were considered at the July 2014 meeting together with therr strategy for the 2014 aucht

> “Whistleblowing” policy — the committee reviewed a draft of an updated policy which was approved for ssue to the group in early
2015, under which employees may in confidence notify the company of any concerns, nter aka, involmng financial reporting A
copy of the updated policy will be avallable on the company's website and will be distributed to employees through an online training
module, where completion will be monitored

> “Brnbery Act 2010" ~ an anti-corruption/ bnbery policy was developed and implemented n previous years An ongoing traming
programme was rolled out across the group and compliance monitored
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Akt commitiee reporting of areas of focus
The pnmazy areas of judgemend considered by the commtise tn relabon io the 2014 accounts and how these were addressed were
as iollows:

Vatuation of pension scheme deficit (IAS 19}

The valuaten of the pension scheme deficit depends on the appication of sgrificant judgements in the actuaral assempions appbed,
anchudng dscount rates, fulure FP1 and mortality rates and on the expected reherns on mvestments. These are addressed thmough the
commeitee dhscussing with management the key judgements made rnciudng relevent achuanad advice that has been receved. The
commites also rewews the ndings of PwC's testing of pension scheme assets and Iahiibes,

Goodwill impairment assessment

The judgements m retziion {0 asset snpairment fangely concemn the assumptions underlying the calcutahon of the value m use of the
busmesses benyg tested for mpasment, pnmardy the achevabilly of the long-term Dussmess plan and macroeconomic 2ssumplons
underhyng the valuahon process. Dunng the year the group have recogrsed an mpamment {0 rectuce the valisg of the Czech goodad
to nd. The comnxttes addresses these pdgements through revieang and chalienging reports fiom management owining the basis
for the assumpbons used, ncluding the basis for the impasment recognised refating to the Czech goodwi. In additon, the comwnittes
considers the fndings of the work of the auditors s this area.

Classification of exceptional items

The jedgements m relaton to exceptonal dems redate to the appropaateness of ther dassficabon as exceptional tems and the acouracy
of the amounts recorded, induding any provsions remaieng at the batance sheet date. The commmuitiee reviewed reports Fom management
outinng the nature of the costs incumred and the bass for classdication as outside the nommd scope of the Group's business. The
commuites also considers any findings of the auditors m this area.

Accountmg for acqursitions and fair value of acquired intangibles

For each acquisiicn made, judgements include assessment of the far value of assets and abiliies acquired. In partcadar the valuabon
of acquered mntangbies s mherently suiectve  and s assessed by reference to the net present value of fulure cash fiows based on
long-term forecasts Thesis also an area of audit focus and accordingly, PwC’s reportng m respect of this area has been reviewed by
the commities,

Valuation of rebate income recervable

The valuabon of rebate mcome accruals at the balance sheet date includes judgemenis surrounding the calcuation of the year end
accrua. The degree of pdgement required 1s lowy, as agreesments with supplers are cash based, co-termniauts with year-end and supported
by ssgned contracts, and the group receves confirmabtions of the achuevement of relevant targets based on hustone perfonmance from
suppliers at year end The commuttee reviewed reports from management detafing the controls that management has n place for the
recording of rebate ncome and reviews the findings of PwC's testing of the supplier rebale income accrual

The commuttee was satisfied that each of the matters set out above had been fully and adequately addressed by the executive directors,
appropnately tested and rewewed by the external auditors and that the disclosures made n the Annual Report & Accounts were
appropnate

Risk management

The subsudianes are required to camy out penodic nsk assessments of ther busmess and submit thern to the head office Taking
account of nsks idenbiied dunng these reviews and nsk assessment processes such as the meetings descnbed above, this rs distifled
nto an operational “Turnbuf nsk assessment” that s designed to summanse the key operatronal nsks, how those nsks are evolviing
and how they are being mibgated. The nsk assessment 1s presented to the board on a requiar bass

As part of the process that Brammer has in place to review the effectiveness of the internatl control system, there are procedures
designed to caplure and evaluate falings and weaknesses In the case of those falings and wealnesses categonsed by the board as
“sigruficant”, procedures exist to ensure that necessary action 1 taken to remedy such falings

A separate exercise 1s carmed out as part of an ongoing review by the board that focuses on corporate risks These are the strategic
group level nsks over and above the operational nsks which have been reviewed and considered by the Brammer management
Thus was reviewed by the board in 2014 and adopted A nsk management policy has been formulated along with a board level nsk
assessment register

Brammer's insurance continues to be managed and co-ordinated centrally wath the assistance of insurance brokers This gves the
group full visibility of both claims history and the insurance industry's perception of the group's overdl nsk via the respective insurance
premwums Brammer examines the size and trend of these premiums and the extent to which ¢ can miutigate the nsks and reduce the
overall nsk burden in the busness by considenng the appropnate level of insurance deductible and the potential benefit of self-insurance
In some areas

Part E: Takeover Directive
Share capital structures are ncluded in the drrectors” report on page 41

Approved by the board of directors on 17 February 2015 and signed on its behalf by
Bill Whiteley
Chairman
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A statement to shareholders from the Chaiman of the rermumneration committee

In this second year of reporting on remamerabon undear the reguiations introduced n 2041 3 e have scueght to contnue to impove our
disclosume, Our Remuneraton Policy was spproved oy shaeholiders at the 2014 AGM and apphed from 1 January 2015 Followng a
rengw of our moemine aramgerments n 2014, tiggered by the smpending expry of the Share Matchimg Fan SMF) in 2015, a evised
Remmunerator: Folcy will be put to sharsholders at owr 2015 AGM to 2pply fom 1 January 2016 fsubject o approvall. B rermans the polloy
of the mmumerahon comerites & ensure that our eward packages are compeitve, sinple, tarsparant and aligred with sharcholder
expactations. As pert of the simplification of cur emureration structures we have sought to ghgn perfonrmance funther znd reward nsuch
away thal sharshalters benedt fom sustained kang-term perlonmzance of the company and that maracement ae appropraicly aotegied
to debver this.

Rewview of Resrmumneration Policy for 2016

The Branmmer Share Maiching Plan {SMP) was approved by shareholders in 2005, io oparate alongsite ihe Periprmance Share Plan
PSPy, ang cfowed a one-for-ore match on imvestments of up to 25% of satary fwith the mateh aplying 1o the pre-tax numer of shares
lodged n the SMP). Vihist the plem’s design renforced owr poficy obyectes of dbgnment, ownersiep and retenbon, the Committes s
consoous of shamsholders” preference for smpler remuneratron arangements., 0 parboular, a single ong tam moentve,

Follownng advice recervred from our remunerabon consultants, Kepler Assocates, the propesed approach has been formudated to
ensure that:

> the far value of total remuneration is broadly unchanaed,

> the balance between short- and long-term ncentves s broadly maintaned,

> partcpanis contnue (o defer {abet mandatorily) a proporiion of earned bonus mio Brammer shares, and

> Bammers ncentrse anangements are conssstent with current nstriuional shaneholder thinkang on est practee and recent changes
o the UK Corporate Governance Code.

The Commritee will not seek re-approval of the SMIP after iis exprry following the final grant of matching arvards in 2015, Instead, flowang
arswiew of exaculive remuneration anrangements dunng the year, the Commutiee proposes to spht the far value of SVP awards roughly
equally bebrmeen the annual bonus and the PSP to maintain the balance of short- vs. long-term incenive cpportuswbes. The proposed
changes from 2016 are to

> cease granbng awards under the SMP,

> ncrease the annual bonus opportunity for Executve Directors from 100% to 125% of salary but mandate the defesral of 20% of
any bonus mio Brammer shares for 3 years;

> ncrease the Executive Duector PSP opportunity from 150% to 175% of salary (note that the PSP performance targets are more
stretchung than those of the SMP), and

> ntroduce malus/clawback provisions for share awards granted under the new potcy fnduding the deferred annual bonus, urvested
PSP awards and vested PSP awards in ther 2-year holding penod)

The Commuttee beheves that these changes, together with the mandatory two-year holding penod on PSP awards implemented at
the last AGM, will provide ssmpler and clearer akgnment between management and shareholder mterests, and smplfy our ncentive
arrangements

We pro-actvely engaged n dialogue with our shareholders on these changes dunng the year In parbcular, each of our maor shareholders
was consufted and was given the opporturuty to comment on the proposals whuch are detafled in thus report, and we were defighted
that no objecuons were recenved dunng that penod of engagement

Remuneration vesting in 2014

In spite of Brammer's strong performance m 2012 and 2013, the 2012 SMP and PSP awards will lapse, reflecting the more difficut
operating environment in 2014 Dunng the year, threshold bonus objectives were not met, and so the Remuneration Commitiee has
not awarded bonuses to the executive directors in respect of 2014

Remuneration for 2015

The annual salary review also resulted in only modest salary increases being applied to Executve Directors, broadly i ne with those
applied to the wider workiorce in 2015, the Commitiee will operate the Remuneration Policy approved at the last AGM vath

> annual bonus opporturities of 100% of salary, based on 80% on profit growth and 20% on cashflow, and payable in cash

> PSP opporturnuties of 150% of salary, based 50% on EPS growth and 50% on relative TSR,

> a final cycle of SMP awards, where parlicipants will be nvited to invest up to 25% of salary in Brammer shares to qualiy for a
matching opportunity based 50% on EPS growth and 50% on refative TSR, and

> vested PSP and SMP awards subject to a 2-year holding pencd

Charles Irving-Swift

- L
Charman of the remuneration committee M /ﬁ[
17 February 2015 -

49 Bromymer pic Qovernance




50 Brammer plc Governance

Remuneration report

Compliance statement

Thes report has been preparad by the remuneraton commetiee on behalf of the board and comphes with the requuements of the
Lsstzyg Rudes of the UK Listng Authorily, Schedude 8 of the Lange and Medum-Sezed Companees and Groups (Accounts and Reports)
{Amendment) Regulabons 2013 ana the UK Conporate Govermance Code. In accordance with Section 439 of the Companies Act, an
acusory resohlution to approve the Annual Repor on Remunerzon for 2014 and a bding vote on the Rermuneration Policy fom 1
Jaruwsary 2016 wil be proposed at the Armual General Meetmg (AGM} of the Company to be held on 15 May 2015.

Part A: Remumneration policy

Ties sechion provides Brammer's remunerabon policy for Directors which wil apoly from 1 Jenuary 2016, subsect to appoval at the
2015 AGM, Untl 1 January 20186, the Policy approved by shareholders at the 2014 AGM will raman n place Changes to the curent
Pdicy are descried m the noies on page 45. Lasi years il Rermmerathon Report is also avalable on our webstle,

General policy

The commuttes and the boand ecogrise that m arder to atract, retain and motrvate talented semor executves i 5 necessary to operate
a compeirive pay and benefits siructure. The commuties 2ms to reward exccutves Bty and responsibly for thes coniribution to the
company's performance, but avoxd payng more than necessary to achieve thes olbyectve. The company's executive remunerahon
polcy s regularly reviswed to ensure it takes due acoount of market practoe and best practroe, as wall as the parbicular croumstances
and challenges faces by the compary

In settng all elements of remuneration, the commetiee s guded both by publshed susveys and by specific studies commussioned from
bme o tme by the commuttee fom ndependent specealist consuttants. | takes pro'essional advice from vrthin and outssde the company.
The comenitiee acknowiedges that the quantum of remuneraton for senfor executnes 15 an ssue of concem for shareholders and that
market data, when obtaned and utised, should be consdered n the context of performance. affordabiity and pay for other employees.

The commitiee also recenves and considers general mformaon on pay and employment conditons on a country by country basis
amund the group, especaly when conducting the annual salary reviaew.

Performance related pay

The comumttee and the board seek to kink a ssgnrficant proportion of the rermmunerairon package to financal and indindud performance
The policy of the commutiee s to afign directors” nterests with those of shareholders and to gve these executives keen incentives to performs
at the highest levels, whist not encouraging inappropnate operabonal nsk-talang or rasmg emaonment, socal or governance nsks.

Performance redated elements of the remunerabion package are the annial bonus scheme and the equity-based awards made undes
the Performance Share Plan  Further details of these incentives ase set out befow

Summary of Brammer's remuneration policy for executive directors

Purpose and {ink to strategy
Fixed pay

Satary

To support recrutment and
retention of talent by ensuring
base salares are competitve
n the market n which the
indivitual 1s employed

Pensiwon

To provide competitve and
cost effective retirement
benefits

QOperaticn

Base salanies are reviewed
annually with changes
nommally effective from 1
January of each year

Reviews take account of the
ndmdual’s role, expenence
and performance, performance
of the business, salary levels
at relevant comparators, and
the range of salary increases
applying across the Group

The CECQ and CFO recewve
cash allowances m heu
of pension contnbutions.

The CEO 15 also a member
of the company DB scheme,
1n which his participation has
been frozen since 2006

Opportunity

Any salary increases are
applied n Ine with the outcome
of the annual review, and
would have due regard to
those for the wider employee
population of the Group

There s no prescrnbed
maxmum to avoid setting
unhelpful expectations

Executive drectors may
recerve pension benefits
of up to 25% of salary

Performance metnics

Indmidual and business
performance are key

conswderations in setting
base salary

Not specifically hnked to
performance
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Toplmﬂec?rzpemwe

Variablie pay
Annual Bonus
To incentvise sustanable
shoct-term performance

targets are set at the start
of the year to remforce the
busness strategy

At the end of the year, the
remumnerahon committee
determrmnes the extent to winch
these have been achieved

For bomrses eamed n respect
of 2016 onwards, 20% of any
bonus eamed s mandatonly
deferred into Brammer shares
tor three years. The remamder
of the bons 15 payable n cash

The remuneration committee
has dscretion to atlow
drdends to accrue on
deferred shares that vest

Clawback and malus apply
on unvested defermred bonus
shares n exceptional
circumstances such as gross
misconduct or matenal
msstaternent

Opportumnsty

Benefits vakues vary by cole
and ndividual croumstance,

Maxamum opportunty for
executve drectors of 125%
of salary

Threshold oppartunity

s 0% of maamum, and
taget opportunity s 5096

of maxamum

Not speciicaly inked to
performance

may vary from year to year
to refiect the business
pnorbes for the year

The annual bonus s typrcally
based

>809(-:mproﬁ!growu1
> 20% on cashilow

In exceptional crcumstances,
the commuttee has the abiltty

autcome within the krits of
the Plan where it beheves the
outcome s not truly reflective
of overall performance and

to ensure farness to both
shareholders and participants

Measures used for the 2014
short term incentive plan and
proposed for 2015 are set
ot i the Annual Report

on Remuneration on page 60
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Performance Share Plan
(PSF)

To ncentivise the delvery
of profit growth and retumns
to shareholders

In addition to the above efements of remuneration, the committee may consider it appropnate to grant an award under a different
structure in order to facilitate the buy-out of awards on recruitment, exercising the discretion avalable under the tisting Rule 94 2 R

Operzhon

Final awards ander the SMMP
will be made m 2015, after
wiuch the Plan will expere:

Parbcepants may swest up to
25% of salary p.a_ in Brammer
sharas under the SMP. Shares
must be held for three years

to qualify for any matchang
opportunity

Any maiching shares wiuch
west are required 1o be held
for a further 2 years before
beng released

The remuneration committee
has the ability to grant
performance shares or
nil-cost options under the PSP,
To date, the remuneration
committee has awarded ml
cost options

The remuneration committee
has discretion to allow
dvidends to accnie on
awards which are paid on
shares that vest

Vested awards are required
to be held for a further 2 years

Clawback and malus applies
on unvested awards and
vested awards in ther 2-year
holding perod in exceptional
cwrcumstances such as gross
misconduct or matenat
misstaterment

Oppaoriity

Participamts may eam up io
one matching share for each
nvesied share with d such
shares having been grossed
up for tax purposes

The PSP prowides for annual
awards of performance shares
or nil-cost options up to

an aggregate hmit of 175%

of safary in any given year

Actual awards are deterrnined
with reference to the
caompetitiveness of the overall
package

16 7% of maxamum vests for
threshold performance, 66.7%
for stretch performance, and
full vesting for exceptional
performance

the 2012 awands vill lapse

n 2015 as the perfommance
condd:ons have not been met
The performance condiicns
apphbed to SMP awards are
reviewed before each award

for the 2015 SMP award, are
set out i the Annual Report
on Remuneration on page 61

The vasting of awards is
subject to

> the Company’s performance
over a 3-year performance
penod

> contmued employment

Awards mn recent cycles have
been based on achieving
stretching EPS and relative
TSR targets The performance
conditions applied to PSP
awards are reviewed before
each award cycle to ensure
they remain appropnate and
aligned with busmess strategy
and shareholder mierests
Should the commitiee opt

to make changes to the
measures, the weighting

on EPS and relative TSR
combined will be not less
than 50% of the total award

Measures used for outstanding
PSP awards, and proposed
for the 2015 PSP award, are
set out In the Annual Report
on Remuneration on page 60

The committee also retans discretion to make non-significant changes to the policy without reverting to shareholders
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Changes from the Policy effective 1 January 2015, approved by sharcholders at the 2014 AGM

The tablz above summansas Brammer's remunsrabion policy for Deectors winch will apply irom 1 Jamuary 2016, subject to approval
at the 2015 AGM. Ul 1 Jamary 2016, the Policy approved by shareholders &t the 2015 AGM will verman in place. The mamn changes
proposed are {o-

> csase graming awards under the SV,

> increase he maximum annuest borrs opportundy or Executive Dvectors fom 100% to 125% of satary, bt rmandate deferad of 20%
of any eamed bonus nts Brammer shares for 3 years,

> ncrease the Executve Drector PSP opportundy from 150% to 175% of salery; and

> niroduce malusiclawback provisons or all share awards granted under the new pobey.

Payments from existing awards

Execuive Drectors remain digibie (o receive any payments eamned under awards made prior to the approval and implementation of
the remureration policy detaled n this report, Le. before  January 2016 The awards which fafl mto ts cattegory may noude, but
@e not timeted {0 awards made under both thwe SWIP and PSP Schemes.

Rationale for selecton of performance measures and basis for setting targets

The measures selected by the commiites for the annual bonus and thes respectve weghtings reflect Brarmmer's busness pronies
for the year Anmual performance targers ane set to be stretching and acisevable, takaing o account the Company's strategic goals,
the econonmc ermaronsment, and the Group's annual operating plan.

Leng-tenm ncentve performance targets are also reviewed by the commuttee pnor to each award to ensuse they reman atgned with
the long-tenn strategy of the busness and are appropnataly streiching and achvevable The PSP and SVP are based equally on 3-
year redaive TSR (Total Sharsholder Retirn) and 3-year absolute EPS growih TSR helps afign particypants wth sharehelders” mterests.
It is measured relatve Lo a relevant FTSE broad market tndex to help solate the mpact of management's contiibubon to growth n
shareholder value from external market factors. EPS growth is used to incentmise long-term growth in revenue and cost management.
A profit measure 15 also used n the annual bonus 1o reward progress along the way, and cash generation s also ncenivsed (o encourage
tght management of cash and workung capital.

The remuneration commuites revievys the performance condrisons atlached to share awards pnor to the siart of each cycle to ensure
they reman appropnate Any matenal changes in targets would be subyect to pnor consultabon with shareholdars.

Dhfferences between executive dorector and general employee remuneration

The policy and practice with regard Lo the remuneration of semor executives below the Board s consistent with thet for the executve
directors The company seeks to offer competiive packages that reward good or excellent performance accordingty. It 1s our goal to
ensure that basic packages are consastent waith market dynarmucs but that stretch performance targets, o achieved, resutt n significant
benefit to both the employee and the company

The remuneration pobicy for the wider group 1s based on the same principles and philosophy Remuneration at all levels is dessgned
lo motivate the delivery of our growth dnvers, create a performance onentated cutture and reward both long and short teym business
objectives

Seruor executives participate in the same fong-term incentives as the executive directors with the same performance measures appled,
alihough the fevels of awards vary with the semonty of the directors in question The company does not cunently operate an al employee
share plan

Share ownership guidelines
Executiva directors are expected to build and maintain a shareholding worth at least 1009 of therr salary wathin five years of therr
appointment  Executve directors’ comphance with thess guidelines 1s shown i the table on page 62

Pay-for-performance scenano analysis
The graphs below provide estimates of the future reward opporturity potentiafly avalable to executiva directors and the split between
the different elements of remuneraton under three different performance scenanos “Minimum', ‘Target' and 'Maxsmum'’

CEO

Maximurm Jedi 1815 31176

10 15 20
W Fixed M Singlo-year vanable  #il Muluple-year variable

15

Patential reward opportunities flustrated above are based on the pohcy apphcable fiom 1 January 2016 (subject to approval) apphed to
the base salanes in force at 1 January 2015 For the annual bonus, the amounts dlustrated are those potentially recenvalie in respect of
performance for the 2016 financial year [t should be noted that the PSP awards wolild only vest on or after the third anniversary of grant,
and will also be subject to a two year holding penod The projected values for PSP awards exclude the mmpact of share pnce growth
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The Mnrmum scerano refiects salary, pension and benefits (Le. foexd mmuneratbon) wiech ae the orly dements of the execurive directors’
resTumsration packages not lnked to uture performance.

The Taroet scenarno reflects ixed remunerabon as above, plus bonus payoud of 30% of satary and PSP threshold vesing at 18.7%
O DT,

Tihe Maamun scenano reflects fixed femuneraton, plus &8 payout of A moermives,

Apgpwoach to recnsiment remuneration
Pay element Policy on recruitment Maximum opportunity
Sy Based on size ard nature of responsibdities of the proposed role; the nfa

cawidate’s expenence; imphcations for tolal remuneration positionang vs.
market pay levels for comparable roles: ntemnal relateibies; and the

candidate’s current salary
Pension On samilar basis to other executives nfa
Benelits May inchide, but not limiad to, private healthcare, health msurance, n/a
contribubon to home telephones, car allowance and potentaity refocation
expenses
Annual bonus As descnbed m the pohcy table, pro-rated for proportion of year sesved 125% of salary
Long-term mcentves New appointess may partipate i the PSP on sanilar termns to other 175% of sajlary
executves
Recrutment policy in determuning appropriate remuneration for new executve drectors, na

the commuttee will take into conssderation all relevan? factors (inchiding
quantum, the nature of remuneration, where the candidate was recruted
from etc.) to ensure that arrangements are m the best mtenests of Brammer
and its shareholders. The committee may also make an award in respect
of a new appomiment to ‘buy out’ ncentrve arangements forfeided on
leaving a previous empigyer. In domng so, the committee will consider
refevant factors includmng any performance condibons attached to these
awards and the likelthood of thase condstions bemng met. The committee
may avai itself of Listing Rule 9 4 2 R if required to buy out awards on
recrurtment on an equal fax vatue basts

Other recruitment events  Policy on recruttment Maximum opportunity

Internal promotion When appointing a new executive director by way of promotion, the n/a
policy will be consistent with that for extemal hwas, as detailled above.
Where an indsvidual has received contractual commitments prior to ther
promotton, the Company will continue to honour those amangements,
however any such arrangements would be expected to transition over
time to the arrangements descnbed above

Non-Executive Director When recrurting a new non-executive director, the committee will structure  n/fa
pay in hine with the exasting pohcy Base fees and additional fees will be
s kne with the fee schedule in place at the time

Consideration of shareholder views

When deterrmining remuneration, the committee pays close attention to the views of its shareholders and to general investor guidelines
The committee 15 always open to feedback from shareholders on its remuneration policy, and commuls to undergoing shareholder
consultation in advance of any significant changes to remuneration policy Details of the 2013 Directors® Remuneration Report (‘DRR)
vote and the Committee’s response to shareholder feedback are prowvided in the Annual Report on Remuneration Dunng 2014, the
company engaged n dalogue with all of its major shareholders in connection with the proposed changes to the Remuneration Policy

Consideration of employee views

When reviewing and setting executive remuneration, the committee takes into account the pay and employment conditions of employees
across the Group The Group-wide pay rewew budget 15 cne of the key considerations when reviewing the salanes of the executve
directors  Although the Group has not carmed out a formal employee consultation regarding Board remuneration, it does comply with
local regulations and practices regarding employee consultation more broadly
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External appointments of Executive Directors
Becutve directors may ancept exiema apponiments with the pnor approva of the Chamman, provded that sudh appontments do not
preudice the execuive’s ability to full ther dubes for the Group. Any fees fr cutside 2ppomiments would be relained by the directon.

Service condracts and exit payments policy

Becutve drector service comiracis have no fxed term and are subiject 10 a notce pefiod of 12 months fom both the exeowive and
the Group. Exacutve director service contracts 2 avalable to vew al the Growup's regrstered oiice. The dates of the executive drector
sarvice comracts and the elievant nobce penod are as foliows:

tan Fraser ceo 1 Judy 1998 Rofng 1 year
Paud Thwate D 24 January 2002 Roleng 1 year

When considenng these contracts, the cormmitiee has due regard to the provisions of the Code. It is the committae’s rvterrion that
any future execuiive cirectors will be subyect to synidar notice penods

I a contract 1s (o be termanated, the commriiee will determene such mibigabon as it consders fr and reasonable i the arcumstances
and the compensahon that may be pasd It wil take into account the best practice provsions of the Code and take tegal advce on the
cormpany’s kabitty to pay compensaton and the appopnate amount

In thes regard, the senace contracts for {an Fraser and Paud Thwate contan a bagundated darmages clausa. In the event of a change of
conirol of the company and termanabon of employrment, save in crcumstances whers ther employment is termnated by reason of
rewrement or where summarny dismessal 15 wammanted, the company s obliged to pay to the director a sum representing basic salay,
pension benefit, car aliowance and bonus (based on the average bonus payments made over the previous three years) for a pesiod of
one year These amangements were put n place n 2003 For new executve appostments, kguidated damages provisions on change
of conirol shall be restncted to basic salary, pension benefit and car allovrance only

In addibon {o the contractual provsions regarding payment on lermanahon set out above, the Company's incentive plans and share
schemes contan provisions for termenation of employment as foliows

Component
Annual Boaus

Share Matching Plan (SMF)
(final awards to be made
in 2015)

Performance Share Plan {PSP)

Bad leaver
No bonus payable

Matching shares are forferted

Qutstanding awards are
forfeited

Good leaver

Eligible for an award to the
extent that performance
conditions have been sahsfied,
pro-rated for the proportion
of the financial year served,
with committee discretion

to treat otherwisa

Qutstanding awards will

be pro-rated to the date

of leaving with committee
discretion to ether smmediately
assess whether or not
relevant performance cntena
have been met, or to test

at end of relevant performance
penods

Qutstanding awards will

be pro-rated to the date

of leaving with commuittee
discretion to ether mmediately
assess whether or not
relevant performance critena
have been met, or to test

at end of relevant performance
penods

Elgible for an award 1o the
extent that performance
condihions have been satisfied
up to the change of control,
pro-rated for the proportion

of the financial year served,
with committee discretion

to treat otherwise

Outstanding awards will
normally vest and be tested
for performance over the
pened to change-of-control,
and matching shares will be
pro-rated for trne based on
the proportion of the penod
served, with committee
discretion to treat otherwise

Outstanding awards will
normally vest and be tested
for perforrnance over the
period to change-of-contral,
and be pro-rated for time
based on the proportion

of the peniod served, with
committee discretion to treat
otherwise
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The company's practce is (0 eppomi non-execiine direcions under istters of encgagement rather tham urdier sendice contracts. These
letters of engagement szt oud terms of appointmend, usually for three years, although 8 is generally anticpated that $he perod will be
exdanded for a second term of thiee years with the agreement of the Board ard the non-executive director, sithough e-appontrent
& not avtomabe. i certan amumstances non-executive diecios may be rvied to serve further orms  their contmued aopomtment
« con=dered to be in the mierests of the Gmup. These sppointments may be termmeted on tivee momihs” nobce by either party.

The fees of the Non-executve drectors, ather than the chamman, are determuned by the Board {exduding the non executive direciors)
on the recommendaton of the chammen and the dhief exmcirinve. The rermunesation of the Charman s determned by the Scard on
the recommendaion of the other non-executne directors. in both cases the recommendations are supported by imdependent advice
Consideraon 1s given (o the tme commimett and responsihiiics of the roles, Fees ae nommally revievsed svery few years with the
tast reviewr camed out by the Board in May 2014 These fees ave refatad to the ime spent on the Companys buseess and are sot at
tewets simdar to those of comparable compamees. The Charman and other Non-exceautive drectors do not parcpate n bomss, share
ncenive or pension schemes.

Dertais of the policy on fees pad 1o cur Non-exacutve Drectors are set oul n the iabls befow:

Purpose and fink to strategy  Operation o -
To attract and retan Fee levels are reviewed Non-executiee Drector fee None
Non-executive Directors aganst market practice from  mcreases are apphied in hne
of the highest calibre with time to ttme (by the Charrmnan wath the outcome of the fee
broad commerctal and other and the Execubve Dreclors ' review
expenence relevant to the the case of the Non-executve Any o the
Company Dwector fees and by the vicreases
Non-executive Diector fee
Remuneration Commiltee - “ -
n respect of the fees payable will typically be in ne with
to the Chasman) general market levels of
Non-executve Diector fee
Additional fees are payable mfaton
acting hasman
gﬂ:ema?:mdmm in the event that there s a
with
ARemuneration Committees matenal msalignment

Non-executive Director
Bill Whiteley

Temry Garthwarte

Charles Irving-Swift

Duncan Magrath

Andrea Abt

Fee levels are reviewed by
reference to FTSE bsted
companes of soilar size and
complexity. Time commitment,
tevel of involvement required
and responsibility are taken
nto account when reviewmng
fee levels

Fees for the year ended 31
December 2014 are set out
in the Annu:al Report on
Remuneration on page 62

Posthon

Chairman {from 17 May 2012)
Non-executive Director
Non-executive Director

Senior Independent
Non-executive Director

Non-executive Director

the market or a change m the
complexaty, responsibility or
tme commitrnent requred to
fuifil a Non-executive Dhrector
role, the Board has dscretion
to make an appropnate
adjustment to the fee level

Date of appomtment
July 2008

1 June 2004

1 March 2010

1 March 2012

1 July 2014

Mr Garthwaite will not be seeking re-election at the AGM in May 2015

The latest wniten terms of appointment are avalable for mspecton at the Company's registered affice and at the Company's Annual
General Meeting The time commitment expected of each Non-executve Director 1s set out in ther wntten terms of appomtment

Next date of re-election

May 2015

May 2015

May 2015

May 2015
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Part B: Arnual report on remuneration
The oliowing secton provdes detals of how the remunenztion pobcy was enplementad during the year,

Role of the reecramneration committee
The commtize, on behalf of the Board, determmnes and appeoves the remuneration pobcy for the Group and 28 eements of the
remumesahon amangemenis or execulve dimctors.

On the Board's behal, the commitee approves the general recruirment terms, remumeraon benefits, employment conditons and
severance tems o sersor exacubves and detenmines the spaaific recnument terms, remuneraben benefs, employmant condtions,
pension fights, compensathon payments and severance tems for the executve direciors. It also approves the nufes and assoowied
guidetnes for the granting of egusly basad incentves under the Brammer share plans, whach curently ae the Performance Share Plan
and the Share Matching Plan

The remuneration commuiiee has its own temms of reference, which are approved by the commities and the Board. Tihese were reviewsd
to ensure compliance with the lzlest version of the Code  They are displayed on the Company’s welbsize

The Charman ot the Company and the Charrman of the remuneration commuttes are available to shareholders to dscuss remunerabon
polcy

In 15 defberatons, the cormmitiee gves full considaration 1o the princgles of good governance as set oul n the Code.

Remuneration commttee membershup in 2014

The ramunerabon commstise in 2014 was composed of four ndependem Non-executive Drectors, Chartes lnvrg-Swrdt & the Chairman
of the commettee, and s other members are Tenry Garthwaite, Duncan Magrath and Andrea At (jomed July 2014). The remuneraton
commitiee mei four times dunng the year, Atiendance at meetings by mdwdual members 15 detaded m the Corporate Governance
Statement on page 43.

The Charrman and CEQ usually attend meetngs of the remunerabon commitee at the mvitabon of the Chasmman of the remuneraton
committee, and the Company Secretary acts as secrefary to the commitiee No Diector s preserii when his own remuneration s
being discussed

A summary of the maor topics discussed n 2014 s detaded below

> Salary kevels for Executive Drectors and semior management

> Bonus outcomes

> Approval of 2014 PSP and SMP awards and vesting of the 2011 PSP and SMP awards
> Replacement of the SMP Scheme

Advisers

The committee 1s adwised by Kepler Assoctates, wha were appomted by the commutiee n 2010 after a market review and competitive
selection process Kepler Associates 1s a founding member and signatory to the Code of Conduct for Remuneration Consultants,
detaits of whuch can be found at www remunerationconsuttantsgroup com. Dunng 2014, the committee has taken adwvice from Kepler
Associates on market and best practice wath regard {0 certain semor execulive pay and share incentive arangements QOther than
adwvice 1o the remuneration commuittee, no other services were provided by Kepler Associates to the company The fees paid to Kepler
Associates in respect of work camed out in 2014 totafled £36,605, and were based on time and matenals

Summary of shareholder voting at the 2014 AGM
The followng table shows the results of the binding shareho!der vote on the Remuneraton Policy and adwisory sharehokder vote on
the 2013 Annual Report on Remuneration at the 2014 AGM

Rerrunerzbon Policy Annual Report on Remunaration

Totad number of votes % ofvotes  Total number of vores % of votes cast

For {including discretionary) 107,522,681 89 99% 106,339,697 9992%

Against 134,567 001% 87,672 008%

Total votes cast (excluding withheld votes) 107,657,248 100% 106,427,269 100%
Votes withheld 562,201 1,792 178

Total votes cast (including withheld votes) 108,219,449 108,219,447
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Single total figure of resmuneration for executive directors
Tre iabls betow sets out a sngle Sgure for the tofal remuneraton receved by each exeoutve drecior for the year ended 31 Dacember
2094 and the peior year:

I Fraser Fa Thaate
Coporems of smgle Tgure v otd rerumerstion 24 L ZNIE W4 E 2m3g
Base salory 415,000 380,000 265,000 248,000
Taxahiz bensis? 16,000 16,000 13,000 13,000
Pension 103,750 121,600 63,600 61404
Sngle-year variatie? - <0725 - 59.2i0
Wuktinlo-vear vanakle - 035,485 - 610.075
Total 534,750 1.543.820 341,600 991,689

1. Taxabie benelits mcolude prvate health care and car alowance

2. Annual borws pad for performance over the rdevant Snanoal year, Annual bomus & paid i cash. Further detzils on perfomance
crtena, achevement and esulbng awards can be found on page 60

3. Vals of lmg-terrn meentve awands which vested on perdformance (0 37 Decemiber for may vest shortly thereafler) of the redevany
yea Tius ncludes for 2014 the estimated vaue al vestng of 2012 SMIP and 2012 PSP awards, details of whech can be found
below, based on the 3-month average share price to 31 Decernber 2014 of 313.%p. For 2013, 100% of the 2010 SMP and 2010
PSP awards vested on periommance (0 31 Decemnber 2013 and the dosng shame pace on 17 March 2014 was 488 Sp for the PSP,
and on 18 Mach 2014 was 483 Sp for the SMP For 2014, no awards will vest under aither the PSP or SMP Schema.

Single total figuse of remuneration for non-executrve directors
The table below sets out a single figure for the total remuneration receved by each Non-executve Director for the year ended 31
December 2014 and the pnor year

Components of sngle figure B vixizley Tarry Gartivwage Charies trvang Serdt Buncan Magrath Arxtraa Abt
for totaf rernunezton a4 £ 2013 € 2AM4E 2013 € 214 € B13€ 014 ¢ 20.3¢ 2014 € 2053 €

Fees 126,666 110000 48846 45000 47426 42,000 43250 37000 18,717 nfa
Taxable benefils, Pension,

Single-year vanable,

Multiple-year vanable nfa na nfa n/a nfa n/a nfa na n/a n/a
Total 126,666 110,000 48,846 45000 47,426 42,000 43250 37000 18,717 na

See page 62 of the Annual Report on Remuneration for further detaills of Non-Executive Director fees.

Rewview of Group performance
Set out below are two graphs showing the comparny’s total shareholder retumn ("TSR™) over the last six years and over the last three years

The first chart compares the vatue of £100 nwvested in Bramimer shares, including re-invested dmdends, on 31 December 2008 compared
1o the equvalent nvestment in the FTSE All Share Support Senaces Sector Index and FTSE Small Cap Index (excluding lnvestment
Trusts) The committee has selected these groups gven that Brammer s a member of both of them, and i the case of the FTSE
Small Cap Index, it 15 the group aganst which its TSR performance s compared under the Share Matchung Plan poor to 2013 and
Performance Share Plan pnor to 2012 For 2012 and later PSP awards and 2013 and later SMP awards, the performance comparator
15 FTSE Mid Cap x IT and s also ncluded below for that reason  The table below shows the single figure for the CEO over the B-year
penad 2009 to 2014

Total shareholder retums over six years

£800 —— Bratraner

£700 -—— FTSE MitCap xiT

£600 === FTSE SmaliCap T
=~=== FTSE Support Services

£500
£400

Dac 08 Dec 09 Dec 10 Dec 11 Dec 12 Dec 13 Dec 14
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Feramca year 2000 200 anv xm2 2013 2014
CEO sngle figure £463k fR1g9k £3.168k £2 183k £1,544K FS35

Arruel bomus @ of maxd 0% 100% B9 3B% 23.85% 0%
SVIP vesiing (% of max) 27% 26% 100% 100% 100% 0%
PSP vesting {% of mad o% 0% 100% 10053 100% 0%

The grach belowr shovs il sherohalder retum over the last tvee years as i refiects the three year periommancs pedcd G the Perfomeance
Share Plan and Share Matching Fian,

Total shareholder relusnns over Ueee years
£250 e EMCAECTTMY

200 — FTSE SaliCoxp T

Dec 11 Dec 12 Dec 13 Dec 14

Remuneration of executive directors

Basic salary

Basic satary 1s reviewred at 31 December each year The comnutiee Seeks to pay salanes which take account of indindual performance
and are appropmately competitive The committee uSes compansons with caubion 1o avoxd noreasing remuneation levels without a
coresponding improverment in pesformance.

2014 was a year of consolidation for Bramymer Adjusted PBT was broadly at at £35 1 miion andd Total Shareholder Retumn was 39%
over the 3 year penad to 31 December 2014.

From 1 January 2015, the salanes for lan Fraser and Paul Thwaste ncreased 0 £423,300 and £274,275 respectively

Nama 2014 sabary 25195 saary % moease
lan Fraser £415,000 £423 300 2%
Paud Thwate £265.000 £274 275 35%
Pensions

Pension contribubons for 2014 were 25% of salary for the CEO and 24% of salary for the CGFO Pension contnbutions will be at the
same level n 2015

In 2014, the company made a contribubon to Paul Thwaite’s SIPP (Seff vested Personal Pension) of £0 {2013 £15,741) No contnbubons
were made to lan Fraser's SIPP during the year (2013 also nif) Dependants of both drectors are eligible for payment of a lump sum
in the event of death n senice

Cash allowances in hleu of pension contributions made to lan Fraser dunng the year were £103,750 (2013 £121,6800) Cash allowances
in heu of pension contributions made to Paul Thwatte dunng the year were £63,600 (2013 £61,404)

lan Fraser 15 a member of the Brammer Services Retrement Benefit Scheme This s a defined benefits scherme which s funded and
approved by HMRC The table below sets out the disclosures required for this pension under the UK Listing Rules and the Large and
Medium - sized Comparues and Groups {Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 For the avoidance of doubt, the defined benefits
drawn by tan Fraser set out below relats to service completed up to 28 February 2006 and are separate from his current pension
arangements

Deractor's contnbutions Accumudated tota increasa m acorued

to pension scheme accrued penson at increase m accrued pension dumng the

dunng the year 31 December 2014 (2013) penson dunng the year year {net of nflabon)

Age at 31 Dacember 2014 £ pa Ca £pa £pa

59 - 11,900 (11,500} 400 Q
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1. The acoumuiated total acomued pension as at 31 December 2013 bas been adustad dor inflabon n aniving at the norease n the
accrued pension 2t 31 Decarrher 2014,

2. Al igures have been rounded 1o the nearest £100. His penson s eweved anmually on 1 Januery m bne with the Scheme Rudes.

3 A1 January 2064 kem Fraser's pension: noreased 0 ©11,900 per arnum. Due o the fevel of price infiaton over the period Septamber
2013 to Seplember 2014 thae wil be an merease 1o km Fresar's pension as at 1 January 2015 of 2.3%.

4. tan Fraser’s dependans are endides to benedis on hs death of 2/3 of the penson bafore commustaton, increesad $Trn date of retremend
to date of death m ine with Scheme penson increases.

5. The penson increases in payment at the rate of the annual ncrease n Retad Price Infabon up to a masamum of 5% pa and subgect
to a rmuremm of zaro.

Benefits

Other benelts prowndad to the executive directors are n fme with the poficy on pages 50 to 52 and m 2014 nduded pavate healthcars
bemefits, pernanent haalth msurance fto ssoure mcome in the event of Mheaith or disabilty), e assurance, contribubon io home telephones
and a car slowance,

Annual bonus
The commritee sets bonus targets to create annual ncentves for executive draciorns to perform al the hughest level and to belp further
abgn thesr mterests wih those ¢of sharsholders. Bomuses are nol pensicnable.

For 2014, executve directors could eam up to 100% of satary an the achwevernent of quantfied finencial tangets. The rermunerabon
cammmitiee set pertonmance targets hased on achieving stretchng profits and cash genesabon. Uy to 80% of salary could be payable for
achieving the profits target and (provided a threshold proiit hurdle has been acheved) 20% for achevng the cash generation target.
fan Fraser and Paul Thwatie eamed boruses of €0 and 00 respecively for 2014 (2013. £80,725 and £59,210 eamed respectively) as
the s PAI target of £37 miion was not acheved.

The remuneraton commitiee has considerad bonus prinaiples for 2015 Given the curent economic cimate and the uncertantes
over the trading envarossment in Eisope, 1t has been decided that the 2015 bonus metrics will agan be based on profit and cash flow
targets For 2015, as i 2014, the {argels will be split profit 80%, cash fow 20% as shown mn the tablke below:

Cele maragement/Aworiang
Prodt Hefone tax caphal wrprovernenrt Maxmum bonus of
Nama % of satary % of satary St of sakxy
lan Fraser BO% 20% 100%
Paud Thwarte 80% 20% 100%

The commtiee mntends to disclose the financial performance targets for 2015 retrospectively n next year's Annual Report on Rermuneration,
sutwect to these no longer bemng considered by the Board to be commercially sensitive.

Performance Share Plan (PSP)

The Brammer pkc Performance Share Plan, together with the Share Matching Plan descrbed below, ts the pnmary long-term incentive
for key sequor Brammer executives. Under the Performance Share Flan, performanice shares or ni-cost options may be awarded with
a value at grant of up to 150% of basic salary Actual award sizes each year are determined with reference to the competitiveness of
the overall package These shares vest on the achievement of stretchung performance targets (together wath continued employment)
The targets are set by the commuittes to be stretchung but actievable hawng taken external adwice

The commuttee gamed approval for the rewised Performance Share Plan at the 2012 AGM. The PSP rewards 3-year TSR relative to a
FTSE general ndex, and 3-year growth in EPS above AP1 Awards m 2012, 2013 and 2014 vest subject to achievement of stretching
performance targets as follows

A for 50% of the shares under the Performance Share Plan

EPS growth of Brammer over three years Vesting percentage of relevant proportion

Less than RPL + 10% 0%

RPI + 10% 16 7%

Between APl + 10% and RPI + 25% Between 16 7% and 66 7% on a straight-ine basis
Between RP| + 25% and RPI + 50% Between 66 7% and 100% on a straight-ine basis
RPI + 50% or more 100%

B for 50% of the shares under the Performance Share Plan

TSR ranking of Brammer aganst the FTSE Mid Cap (excluding Investment Trusts) Vesting percentage of relevant proportion

Below median ranking 0%

Median ranking 16 7%

Between medran and upper quartile ranking Between 16 7% and 66 7% on a straght-line basis
Between upper quartle and upper decile ranking Between 66 7% and 100% cn a straght-lne basis
Upper decile ranking (top 10%) 100%
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Addihonally, for any of the TSR elemnent to vest, the remureraton commitiee must be sabsfied that the recorded TSR s 2 genuine
wleciion of Brameners underheng fmancial periormance over the perionmance penod. Thete s N oppoTiunity to retest perdomnancs
# the performance condizons are not satslied over the thmree year parlormance penod. in determining whether performance tergets
have been met, ndependent vendiczton s sought as appropnate.

Conditional awards of nl-cost optiors of 1505 of salary were made to executive directors m 2014, The theee yean performance period
over which TSH performance will be measured began on 1 January 2014 and will end on 31 Dacermibar 200 6. The committee evpecis
to make avwzrds in 2015 on the same bass as n 2014, ard with the same opporiurty of up to 150% of salery

Share Matching Plan (SMP)

n 2005 the company establiished the Brammer Share Matcheng Flan {the “SMET), to operale alonpside the Performange Share Flan.
in the remuneration commities’s wew, the SMP strengthens the aignment betwween the interests of executrves and shamsholders as ¢
ks part of the execiurive’s revards to holding an avestment m Brammer shares.

Matichung awards (granted in the form of nilfnormenal cost awards) are only granted provided that shares benefically owned by the
employes are first nvesteg n the SMP {“twesiment Shares™). invesoment Shares worth up 1o 25% of the employes’s basc sdlary can
be lodged i the SMIP each year, with matching awards then beng granted on a maxmum matching award rabo of 1:1 fwith ths reto
applyng to the pre-tax nurnber of sheres that are lodged in the SMP). tvestment Shares for these purposes cam be any exstmg
shares deemed beneicially owred by the employes and lodged in the SVIP &l the tsme thal the maiching award & granted.

The vesting of a maichwng award depends upon the Investment Shares continuing to be hedd m the SMP, the sa'sTaction of the pesiormance
condiions [see below) and the execute’s comtmued employrment

if a parbcypant sells ther rvestment Shares at any tme dunng the three year performance penod this reduces the nurnber of matchimg
shares that can be eamned (on a2 pro-rata bass)

Vesting of one hatf of each matchang award vl be determined by the company's normalised EPS growth over the thvee year performance
penod. Vesting of the other half of each award s determined by the company’s performance 0 terms of s TSR relatve to a pesr
group of companies over a three year penod.

The vesting schedules that apply to the 2012 Share Matching Plan are as follows
A for 50% of the matching shares under the Share Matching Plan:

EPS growth of Brammer over ttwee years
Less than RPY + 10%

RPl + 10% 25%

Between RPI + 10% and RP1 + 25% Between 25% and 100% on a straght-Ene basis
RP + 25% or more 100%

Vesting percentage of relevant proporton
0%

B for 50% of the matching shares under the Share Matchmg Plan:

TSR ranking of Brammer aganst the FTSE Small Cap
(excluding Investment Trusts)

Vesting percentage of 50% of relevant proportion

Betow median ranking 0%
Median ranking 25%
Between median and upper quartle ranking Between 25% and 100% on a straight-ine basis

Upper quartie {top 25%) ranking 100%

For 2013 SMP and subsequent awards, the vesting schedules are as above, but the TSR comparator group will be afigned to the PSP
awards namely the FTSE mud cap {exchuding vestment Trusts) There is no opporfunity to retest performance f the performnance condibons
are not satisfied over the three year performance penod In determining whether performance targets have been met, independent
venfication i1s sought as appropnate 2015 will be the final year in which the SMP s operated

The performance conditions that apply to awards under both the SMP and PSP have been chosen to encourage executves to deliver
% supenor TSR performance against an appropnate group of peer comparties and {i) growth n eamngs per share

Vesting of 2011 SMP and PSP awards
Shares awarded n March and August 2011 under the EPS element of the Performance Share Plan which vested in March and November
2014 respectvely vested in full as the EPS performance cntenon for maximum vesting was achieved

In addition, the 25% of shares under the Performance Share Plan which are inked to TSR performance also vested in full as the TSR
performance cntencn for maxmum vesting was achieved In additon, the 50% of the awards under the Share Matching Plan, which
relate to company TSR performance, also vested in full as the maximum performance cntenon was achieved

Vesting of 2012 SMP and PSP awards

Based on performance to 31 December 2014, Brammer's TSR was below median agamnst the FTSE Small Cap and the FTSE Mid Cap
{excluding Investment Trusts} and EPS growth was below RPI+10%, and therefore 0% of the 2012 SMP and PSP awards are expected
to vest on 21 March and 25 June 2015, respectvely
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Rermumneration of non-executive directors
Fees am nonrally reviewed every fow years with the kast edew camed out by the Board in Aprd 2014, The fees were kst momeasad
as fom 1 May 2014 {and prevously flom December 2010} They reman unchanged for 2003, as folipws:

Fota Forn 1 Moy 204 T 1 Wiy 2018
Chainman fes £135.000 £110.000
Non-execuive Dorecior base fee £42.000 £37,000
Caormeretiee chaimman fee 8,000 £5.000
Semor independent director fee 5,000 £3.000
Audited information

The rermainder of the remunershon repost s audized sdonmaiion with the excepton of the secton entded “sendce contracts” and “dreciors”
ieEesis”.

Fommat share ovnership quidebnes are in place for executive directors. Under the guxddlines, executve dractons are expeciad to buid
and mairtan a shareholding worth at least 100% of their salary withn five years from appomitment. Both executive drectors satsly
thes gudeline

Sheres held Strares hoky Shores hetd
Neme Ownedoutngrt  Under il cost opton{s} Sumtuperﬁrmane Suawec to octermal Valum 25 % salary (3} Ggdne met?
lan Fraser 936,277 1,941,425 649,838 - 1.833% /s
Paut Thwate 1,043,026 909,494 421,544 - 1,972% '

1. Baludes value of shares subyect to performance. Base salary s that which s efiective 31 December 2014 The value of shareholdings
15 based on the closing prce of a Brammer share on 31 December 2014 {341 5p).
2. Shares under nil option consist of all options inciuding those where the performance atena have not yet been met.

The beneficia mterests of the directors and ther mmediate famiies m the shares of the company acoording to the regester of directors”
mierests are set oul below

Ovrdinary shares of 20p &zﬁmdﬂudz» Mmrystaasd?&: On.ﬁla'ym w 20p

31 Docember 2014 31 Dacember 2014 1 Decamiber 2013 31 Decarter 2013

Shares Nil-cost ophwons Shares Ni-cost optons

Bd Whiteley 50,755 - 50,755 -
Terry Garthwaitte 10,000 - 10,000 -
lan Fraser 936,277 1,291,587 1,315,151 1,098,902
Paul Thwate 1,043,026 487,950 1,024 873 802,095
Charles Irving-Swait 7,000 - 7.000 -
Duncan Magrath 5,000 - 5,000 -

Andrea Abt - - - -

1. There were no changes n the above mentioned interests between 1 January 2015 and 17 February 2015.

2. No director was matenally interested in any contract of signficance with the company dunng the year

3. Dunng 2014, the highest mid-market pnce of the company's shares was 509p and the lowest was 265p The year-end pnce was 341 5p

4. Nil cost options consist of all options where the performance critena have been met, the options have vested bul have not yet
been exercised

Dmrectors’ options

Performance Share Plan
Market price on vaue Granted  Value Viested

award grant 31 Dec 2013 Granted vasted Lopsed 31 Dec 2014 £000s £ 000s Vestng Date
tan Fraser 268p 128,737 (128,737) - - 626,306 Spnng 2014
lan Fraser 245p 221,633 221,633 Summer 2015
tan Fraser 374p 152,406 152,406 Spnng 2016
lan Fraser 483 5p 127 955 127,855 618,662 Spnng 2017
Paul Thwarte 268p 83955 {83,955) - - 408,441 Spnng 2014
Paul Thwarte 245p 144,490 144,490 Summer 2015
Paul Thwarte 374p 99,465 99,465 Spnng 2016
Paul Thwarte 483 5p 81,7086 81,706 395,049 Spnng 2017

The middle market prce for an ordinary share at close of business on 17 March 2014 when the relevant shares vested was 486 5p
Followang the advice receved from Kepler Associates in relation to the fulfilment of the performance cntena, 100% of the awards
granted i 2011 vested in 2014 The closing middle market price for 17 March 2014 (being the last closing pnice before the 2014
Awards were made on 18 March 2014} was 483 5p
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Share Matching Pian
et proe on

aummigrad 31 Dec 33 Graren Vesten Lopsen 31 Dec B4 Yoo Grameo Yol = Mesterd Vosung Dzt
lam Frasen 275p 63948 (63.928) - - 309,189 Spmng 2012
e Fraser 350 54680 54 609 Sprag 7015
Izn Fraser 374p 52918 52918 Sprng 2016
kan Fraser 483 5p 40.237 40,237 194545 Spang 2017
Paud Thwezite 27Mp  M.703 (41,703 - - 201,634 Spong 2014
Paull Threvaite 350p 35654 35,654 Spmng 2015
Paul Thesite 374p 34538 34,536 Spring 2016
Paul Thwate 483.5p 25,503 25693 124,225 Spmng 2017

The moddie market price of an ordnary shane at the dose of business on 18 March 201 4 when the mlevant shares vested was 483.50.
Foliowng athice receved from Kepter Assocates &y refabon to the tiiment of periormance ontema, 100% of the matching awards
granted m 2011 vested m 2014 The dosing muddle market pnce for 17 Masch 2014 (bewg the last dosng price before the 2014
Avzards were made on 18 March 2014) was 483.5p.

The performance condibons applymg to Performance Share Plan and Share Maiching Plan awands are set out above.

Dilution Emits

Untlt 2003, the company salis®ed vestngs of awards under both Plans fom markat purchased shares sourced from the Brammer pic
Employee Share Ownershwp Trust (“the Trust™). For calculating the d@ution linets, such awands have not been deducted untl such bme
as the awards are satsted. The vesting of the 2011 awards under the Periormance Share Plan and Share Maiching Plan n 2014 was

satrsfied from a combinaton of market purchase shares sourced from the Trust and 2llotment of new shares. There s no vesang of
the 2012 awards under the PSP and SMP i 2015

In ine with ABI Gundelines, the following kmits apply to the number of shares winch may be ssued under the company’s shae pians

> The number of ssued, ssuable and treasury shares that may be allocated under dl employee plans adopted by the company s
restncted to 10% of the issued ordinary share capital of the company over any ten year penod. As at 17 February 2015 there was
headroom of 5 037m shares {i e. 3 94% of share capital) after deducing outstanding awards and opbons (exciuding lapsed awards
and ophons).

> In additon, the number of issued, ssuable and treasury shares that may be allocated under the “discrebonary” executive share
plans adopted by the company {the PSP and SMP) shall be resincted to 5% of the tssued share capital of the company m the ten
year perod commencmg from the 2005 annual general meeting when the Share Matching Plan was adopted As at 17 February
2015, there were a total number of outstanding awards of 6 08m shares (l.e 4.69%% of share capital} with 1 33m ateady having
been allotied to sabsfy earter awards. For any awards which vest over the 5% bmut, the awards will be satsfied by purchasing
shares on the open market

Dikibion Emuts
Executive plans (5% bmrat)

Al plans (10% EBmit

Hl Used ¥ Headroom

Relative importance of spend on pay
2013 2014 % changa

Drstnbubions to shareholders £11 5m £13.4m 17%
Employee remuneration £120 3m £135.7Tm 13%
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Percentage change in CEO rermuneration

The tacle below shows the perceniage chamge in CEO remumeration o the prior year compared 10 the average percantage change

in rermLnerabon jor a ofher ernployees in accordance with the GC 100 guidarmee, the conrperison uses a per caprtta figure, and aceodmgly

the Sigures reflect the ol chenge v average salary costs aomss the whole business, echeding nevw starters and leavers, nesidably

themnsfore chamges to the tevels of semvonty and mix in the o2 empioyme ©t base wil be reflecied in the average costs caloulizzons.
B oEnge 2013 to 2014

CE0 Crher empdoyees

Base salary 2% 2%
Taxable benedis 0% 0.7%
Sngle-year variahio ~100% 6.5%
Tota! -65% 2%
External appointments in 2014

Neuther of the executve directors held any extemnat appomiments dunng 207 4.

Approwed by the board of directors on 17 February 2015 and signed on its behalf by
Charfes lrving-Swifl
Cranman of the remuneration commitiee




Statement of directors’ responsibilities

Statement of drectors’ responsibiities in respect of the Annual Report,

the Drectors’ Remumneration Report and the financial statements

The direciors are responsidle for preparning the annual repor, the drecions” remuneraton repornt and the financid statements i accordance
vasth applcatie kaw and reguiabons.

Company taw egises the drvectors o prepare firancd sigtements for each Grancil yeer. Under tha kzw the direciors have dected
o prepare the goup fmancid statements n aocondance with fdematonat Francid Reperting Standards (FRSs) as adoptad by ihe
European Union, and the parent compary {"company™} fnancial statements mn accondance writh United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accoumting Practice {United iingdom Acoountng Standards and appleable kw). Under company taw the directons must not approve
the fnancial statements unless they are satislied that thay gve a true and far wew of the state of aftairs of the growp and the company
and of the profit or loss of the company for that perind. I prepanng these fmancial statomentds, the directons are required to:

> select suitable accouning poldies and then apply them consestently,

> make udgments and accounting estrmates that are reascnable and predent;

> state whether FRSs as adopted by the Buropean Unron amd applcable UK Accounting Standardss have been followed, subject to
any materal departures disclosed and explamed n the group and parent company financial siatements respectvely; and

> prepare the fnancat statements on the going concen basts unless i s nappropriats to presume that the group and comparty wil
coninue i business

The directors are responsibie for keeping adequate accounhing reconds that are sufficent to show and exgplan the company's transactons
and disclose with reasorable accuracy at any me the financia posmon of the company and the growp and enable themn 10 ensure
that the financal statements and the directors’ remunaranen report comply with the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the group
financiad statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation They are also responsibie for safeguanding the assels of the company and the
group and hence for talang reasonable steps for the pravention and detection of fraud and other inegudantes.

The directors are responsible for the mamienance and mtagnly of the company’s website. Legsiaton in the United Kingdom governing

the preparation and dissermunaton of financid statements may differ from legisiation n other gasdichons.

Each of the directors whose names and functions are isted on pages 28 and 29 confimn that, to the best of thew knowledga:

> the group firancdl statements, whech have been prepared m accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the Buropean Union gve a true
and far view of the assets, fiabiives, financial posbon and profit of the group, and

> the strategc report and the directors’ report contaned in pages 2 to 42 mchude a far review of the development and performance
of the business and the pos:iion of the group, together with a descnplion of the pmcipal nsks and uncertanbes that it faces.

In additon, each of the directors considers that the Annua Report, taken as a whole, s far, balanced and understandable and provides
the nformation necessary for shareholders to assess the company’s performance, business model and strategy

By order of the beard
Steven Hodkmson Bill Whiteley
Compary Secretary Charman

=
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Brammer plic

Report on the group financial statements
Our opinion
inour cpeon, Brammer ple'’s Growp inencd siztements {he “fnancial stgtements™y:

> gve a tue and far vew of the state of the Group's afiars as at 31 December 2014 and of its proft and cash fiows for the year
then ended,

> have been properly prepared m accordance with Ixtemabonal Financeal Reporing Standards (TRSs™) as adiopted by the Furspsean
Uneon, and

> have been prepared n accardance with the requrements of the Comganies Act 2006 and Asticle 4 of the IAS Regulaton.

> the consoldated balance shest as at 31 Decernber 2014;

> the consolidated ncome statement;

> the consobdated statement of comprehensive ncome for the year then ended:
> the consobdated cash flow statement for the year then ended,

> the consohdated statement of changes in equily for the year then ended;

> the accountng policies, and

> the nolas Lo the fnancal statements, which includs other explanatory miormation.

Certan required disclosures nave been presented elsewhere in the Annual Report, rather than n the notes to the financal strements.

The financial reporing framework that has been appbed in the preparation of the financal statements i applicable law and FRSs as
adopied by ihe European Umon.

Cur audit approach

Overview

Materality

> Overal Group matenafity: £1 5 mikon whech represents 5% of profit before tax, adusted for excepbonal rtems.

Audit scope

> Because Brammer's busnesses across Europe have consistent business nsk piofiles, we focused our work on the largest five
businesses (bemng the UK, Genmany, France, Scandinavia and Spam) which, together, compnsed B4% of the Group's total turnover
and 76% of the Group'’s underlymg operating profit

> In additon, site wisits by the Group team were performed in the UK and in the signfficant acquisition for the year n Scandinawvia.

Areas of focus

Vatuation of pension scheme deficit

Goodwiall mparment assessment

Classtfication of exceptional tems

Accourring for acquisibons and farr value of acquired miangibles
Valuation of rebate ncome recevable

YVvvvy

The scope of our audit and our areas of focus
We conducted our audit in accordance wath International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) {“iSAs (UK & lreland)™)

We designed our audit by determining matenafity and assessing the nsks of materal misstatement n the financeal statements In parbcular,
we locked at where the diectors made subjective judgements, for example in respect of signiicant accounting estimates that involved
making assumptons and considenng future events that are mherently uncertain  As in all of our audits, we also addressed the nsk of
management overnde of internal controls, including evaluating whether there was evidence of bias by the directors that represented a
nsk of matenal musstaternent due to fraud

The nsks of matenal nusstatement that had the greatest effect on our audit, including the aflocation of our resources and effort, are
dentified as “areas of focus” in the table below We have also set out how we talored our audit to address these specific areas n
order to prowvide an opinion on the financial statements as a whole, and any comments we make on the results of our procedures
should be read in this context This 1s not a complete list of all nsks dentified by our audit




Independent auditors’ report to the members of Brammer plc

Area of focurs

Howr owr audit addressed the area of focus

See the Accownbng Poboes and Firancia Risk Management sections for the directors” dsclosues of refiated acconmiing pollicies
and key accouning estimates. See note 27 for the detaled disclosures on the pension scherme deficd.

Valuation of pension scheme deficit

The Group operates hwo defined bemefit pension schemes with
an aggregat=s net Ksbildy of £38.6 milfion (being £36.6 million
for the UK scheme and £2 milion for the Nethertands scheme),
which s significant i the context of bath the overall balance
sheet and the result of the Group.

The vaksatson of this net Kabilty is dependent on the applicaton
of s,gnificant judgements i the actuadal assumphons, in
particutar discount rates, future AP and mortakity rates, and

on the expectad retumns on vestments.

Unfavourablle changes in any of the key actuanal
could have a matenal impact on the cale dxtaon of the net Exbilty.

Tha penswon scheme assets are nivested principally i pooled
funds with a smalfler proportion relating t0 an nsurance pohoy
held against a subset of the scheme’s pensioner kabilities

Sea the Accounting Polices and Financial Risk Management sections for the daectors’ disclosures of related accounting policies
and key accounting estrnates. See note 8 for the detalled disclosures on goodwall.

Goodwill impairment assessment

The directors have recognesed an impawrment charge of £3 6
milion i the year to reduce the value of the Czech goodwill to
nil, leaving a remaiung Group goodwill balance of £118 milhon.
The directors also mparwed the associated mvestment n the
parent company’s balance sheet. The imparment and the
remaming goodwill balance are matenal in the context of the
result for the Group and the overall balance sheet respectively.

Although we tested the whole goodwil] balance, our work i1n this
area focused particularty on

> the mpairment recognised in respect of the Czech busmess,
because there 1s the nsk that this was mpared more than
necessary, and

> the goodwill associated with the parts of the busmess where
headroom (being the difference between the projected
value of the business and the camying value of its associated
goodwill) was lowest (Italy and Belgium).

We focusad our testmg an the UK defired bensfit pansion
scheme as the gross assels and kzbiics of the Nethertemds
scheme are not maierial in the coméaxt of the aggregate Group
balances.

Wie read the achsarl report that was pregared by an independerst
frm of actuanes and used by the directors in esimating the
value of the group’s Eabilly m respact of the scheme. We then
challenged the key assomptions used n that actuarka valisation,
being the discount rate, futm AP and mortalily rates by
companng them to typical ranges used for such assumptions,
taking sto account the indstry iin which the group operates
and other specific characterstics of ths pension scheme.

The actuanal assumptions were withan the typical ranges for
synidar pension schemes.

We obtaned mndependeamt confirmatons of the excstence and
valuzhon of the scheme assets from the extemnal nvestmernt
man2gers and cusiodians of the peoled funds, and obtaned
evdence of the effectve operahon of the controls at these
prowders. In testing the msured kabifibies, we chacked that the
asset value recognised was equaf to the vahsation of the msured
Eabihes. We also reard the terms of the insurance agreement
and checked the pensioners on which the vaduation was based
were those iisted in the agreement.

Our testmg of the investments hetd by the pension scheme
at the year-end wlentified no exceptions.

We tested the discounted cash flow analysis used by the
directors i making their assessment of the carnrying value of the
goodwill associated to each previous acquisrion, reperforming
the calculabons to check thesir accuracy and agreeng the
figures used to the detatled country-level Boand approved five
year plan.

We challenged key judgements made by the dwectors, n
particular the discount rate and projected growth rates used
To do this, we compared the discount rate used to the range
of typical discount rates used in similar, diversified

and we considered whether the dwectors had incorporated

all relevant macro-economic and country-specific factors, as
well those specific to the group, 1 determmng ther growth
rate estimate We also tested the drectors’ hustonc estimation
accuracy by companng previous projected growth rates to
the actual growth achieved

We found that, in estmating the projected growth rates in each
country, the directors had conswdered macro-economic and
country-specific factors as well as those specific to the group
The directors, supported by the Regional Business Analysts,
also challenged the projections prepared by the in-country
management

For the Czech goodwill, we performed the same procedures
as we did for other pieces of goodwill considered whether the
decision to impar the whole amount was appropnate in the
circumstances We agreed with the drectors” decision to fully
wrte down the Czech goodwill.

For the other countries, headroom s lowest in ltaly where
sensitivity analysis indicates that in a number of scenanos

the headroom would be elminated The bolt-on acquisition

of Tisaf in July 2014 and Sino in November 2014 provided an
opportunity to integrate and develop the ltalian business using
the Brammer growth drivers In the directors’ view, it was too
early to consider the Halian goodwill as mpaired, we concurred
The directors expressed an intention to closely monitor italy’s
performance going forward
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Area of focus

How ouwr audit addressed the area of focus

See the Accounting Polices for the directors’ disclosures of relaied acceuntng policies and key acooumtng estimates, See pote 4

for the detalled disciosures on exceptiona! kems
Ctassification of exceptional items

An exceptional charge of £9.5 milion & relat:on 1o restuctunmg
activiies camied out in the year is recogrised as part of the
net exceptional charge i the consolidated smcome statement.
Owr testing was focused on the accuracy of the amounts
recorded and the appropriateness of their classification as

excepbional items in accordance with the accouning posScy
s&t ok on page 81.

W2 assessed the nature of thesa Rams as tp whether they
represented activites autside of the nomal scope of the
Group's business and, thersfora, whether ther classificaton
as exceptonal was appropriate. We then tested a sample
of the excephonal tems by checking the amounis reoorded
10 iInmvoices or simiiar sunnortng docurmentabon.

We found the dlassification and disclosuse decsions made
by the directors 1o be in ine with the accourtng policy.

See the Accounbing Policses and Financial Risk Management sections for the directors' disclosures of retated accounting pofices
and key accountng estimales. See note 23 for the detaied disclosures on acquisaeons.

of acquared intangibles

The Group has made 15 acquistions i the year, ranging from
the significant acquesthon of Lnne in Scandinavia to 2 number
of small bok-on 2oqursshons in the UK and Europe.

For each acquisibon, owr work was focused on the judgements
necessary to estimate the far value of

> the assets and §abiites acquired, particularly the acquired
intangbles, beng customer ksts and brands, whose vatuation
is mherently subjective; and

> the defemred considerabion to be pand by the Group, the value
of winch is dependent on the futusre results of the acquired
business, where applicable.

The fair value of the assets and Eabidies acquired and the
consxieration paid by the group dwectly affect the carrymg
amount of the acqured assets and habilibes m the goodwill
in the group financial statements and the cost of nvestment
in the parent company financial statements

For the customer  ksts amnd the brands acqured as part of these
acqusihons, we obtaned the models used by the daectors

1o estmate thew far values and used our valuation expertrsa
and our knowledge of the busmiess to.

> check that the methodology used 1o estamate the far value
was consistent with current market practice when valuing
assets of that nature;

> assess the dieciors’ key assumpbons used to value the
assels, bemng the projected growth rates and discount rate
used, and

> compare the methadology and assumphions used acoss
the acquisiions made dunng the year and = previous years
to check that the drectors had been consistent, while zlso
reflecting factors specific to an acquesibon or a pont n tame
as appropnate.

For those acquisitions where an elernent of the purchase prce
was subject to future performance, we tested the estmates
of the amounts that would be payable by

> checking that the calculation of the deferred consideration
was i accordance with the sale and purchase agreement;
and

> challenging that the projected growth rates in the directors’
forecasts prepared for this purpose were consistent with
assumphons used elsewhere m the financial statements
or, where there were differences, whether those differences
reflected facts and crcumstances specific to the acquued
busmess.

We found that the projected growth rates used in the vatuation
of the acguired intangibles and the cakeulation of the deferred
consideration were consistent with those used elsewhere in the
financal statements.

We also reperformed the catculations of goodwill arsing on
the acquisitions, checking that the other signdficant {but less
judgemental) farr value adjustments (pnmarily to the camying
value of nventory and recognition of provisions and liabilities)
were consistent with the Group's accounting policies and
specific crcumstances extant at the date of acqusition

Given the proximity of a number of small acquisibions to the
year end, the directors have yet to make ther final assessment
of acquired mtangibles and far value adjustments These will be
assessed and finalised dunng the first half of 2015 We checked
that the disclosure of these was complant with the accounting
standards

Our overall testing of the acquisitions did not rdentify any
significant findings




Independent auditors’ report to the members of Brammer plc

Area of focars

How our aadit addressed the area of focus

See the Accounting Polices and Firancial Risk Management sechons for the directors® discloswes of related acoounting policies

2rvd Key accouNding estmates,

from its key suppliers based on iis levet of spend with those
supphers.

The rebate years with these suppliers are co-tamanous with the
Group's franceal year end and the majonty of thes rebate income
was accrued for at the year end. Gaven that these supplier
arrangements can be complex and can have a significant impact
on reported mamins and results of the Group, we focused our
tesing on the year end aconusd rebatz balance and the estinates

We met with the Group Finance Director and other members
of ranagement with significant imvolvernent in supplicr
arangaments to recordinm our understanding of the controls
that the group has i place in retation io the recording of
rebate ncome.

W obiained amd read the ebate agreements that the Group
has with those supplers fom whom the lamest amounts
were due al the year end and checked that the calculations
of the year end rebate accrued ncome had baen performed
n accordance with them and with the Group's accounting
pohcies. We also agreed the value of purchases from the

underpswang it. suppliers in those calatations to the accounting ledgers.

The Group also makes signsficant rebate payments to customers., We requested and received independent confinnations dwectly
These rebates are proportionate to the volume of spend by from these supphbers of the rebate amounts that they owed to
the customer ang are cumulaiive. Our area of focus i relation the Group al the year end. The confimabons we received agreed
to these s the completeness of the accrued abidiy for rebates to the amourts of accrued rebate recognised by the Group

s 2 the year end We also assessed the acowracy of the directors’ estimates
by companng the rebate ncome accrued for o1 previous years
10 amounts subsequently recenred.

To test that the rebate income recened after the year end was
recorded n the comrect penod, we traced post year end rebate
ncome recerved to the supporting documentaton and found
no axcephons.

Regarding customer rebates accnted for, we obtanad and read
rebate agreements and recalcudated a sample of the amounts
accrued for at the year end, without identifying any exceptions.
We assessed the completeness of the fist of accrued rebates
by companng it to the kst of langest customers by spend in

the year, the kst of rebates accrued at the pnor year end and

a bsting of rebates paid durng the year, looking for any suppliers
that might have been omustted from the bist. We did not wdentrfy
any such supplers.

How we tailored the audit scope
We taored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed enough work 1o be able to give an opinion on the financial statements

as a whole, taking into account the geographic structure of the Group, the accounting processes and controls, and the ndusiry n
which the Group operates

The Group operates across six Furopean reporting segments, including a head office funchon within the UK segment.

Brammer’s businesses across Europe are largely homogeneous They each operate the same business model and ther business nsk
profiles are very similar This consistency lends itself to an audit approach that focuses on the larger busmesses and, accordingly,
tumover and operating profit coverage are standard measures we use for determnng whether we have sufficient auchit evidence to
support our audit opirion

Of the Group's six reporting segments, we dentified five (being the UK, Germany France, Scandinavia and Spain} whuch, m our view,
required an audit of thewr complete financial information due to therr size These five segments compnsed B4% of the Group’s total
turnover and 76% of the Group's undertying operating profit In additon, specified procedures over higher nsk areas such as cash,
inventory and prowisions were perfarmed in Poland, which contnbuted a further 5% and 7% to the Group's total turnover and underfying
operating profit respectvely

When planning our audit, we communicated with the component audit teams 1n each of the six terntones where detaled audit work
was o be performed to make sure that they had a clear understanding of the work that we needed them to do and that we had a
clear underslanding of any local nsks or issues they had identified as part of ther planning We continued to communicate with the
component teams as the audit progressed to make sure that we and they could react 1o any matters ansing

The Group team follows a programme of wisits to component engagement teams on a rotationzal basis, to discuss the results of therr
audit work with them, with the UK and Scandinavia (at the planning stage and at the year end due to its acquisiion in the year} being
visited this year (2013 UK, France and Germany) For the remaining businesses, we receved a written report from the component
auditors and discussed any matters ansing by telephone
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Far the parts of the growp wihers componens: awdions did not pesfom auds-evel procedures, we conducted high level reviews of the
resulis, discussed them with the Regional Busness Analysts, and considesd the results of any wienal audit work undertaken. This,
together with procedures peronned & Group level over areas such as pensions, goodwil, exceptonals, rebaies and other intanglble
assets, geve us the evidence we needed for our gpamon on the Group fmencal sizisments as a whols.

Materiality

Tre scope of our audit wes muerced by our appicaton of matemaity. We set certan guantizive thresholos for metteraity. These, together
with qualitaive consderatons, helped us to determmine the scope of o audit and the nature, trmng and extent of owr audit proceduses
and to evahzx'e the eflect of missiEemenrs, both indviduzlly and on the financal statements as a whole.

Based on our professiond) judgement, we determined maierally for the Bnancd siatements 23 a wivde as iollows:
Overall group materialdy £1.5 mikon (2013 €1.6 mithon).
How vie determned &t 5% of prodé betore tax, adjustad for the excepbonal ilems.

Rationale for benchmark appled We helieve tha the profd before tax, adusted for the excepbonal items, prowdes us with
a constsient year on year basis for determinmng matenality by elmmnating the non-recunmnmg
mpact of these dems.

We agreed with the Audit Commitie that we would report 1o them misstatements wentfied during our audit with an Income Statement
eiiect above £0.1 milior: (2013. £0.1 milon) or a Babance Sheet missigiements above £0.25 milion (2013 £D.25 miion) as wel as
msstatements below that amount that, n ow wiew, waranted reporting for qualitative reasons

Going concem
Under the Listing Rules we are requred o review the directons’ siatement, set out on page 42, in retation to gong concesn. We have
nothng to report having perfonmed ouwr review.

As noted n the directors’ statement, the directors have concluded that it i appropriate to prepare the financal statements using the
gong concern basss of accourting The going concenn basis presurmes that the Group has adequale resources to remam m operation,
and that the dvectors intend it to do so, for at least one year from the date the financel statements were signed. As part of our audit
we have concluded that the directors” use of the gong concemn bass 15 appopnate.

However, because not all future events or condibons can be predicted, these statements are not a guarantse as to the Group's abfity
10 conbnue as a goayy concermn.

Other required reporting

Consistency of other information

Comparues Act 2006 opimons

I our opiron

> the mnfonmabon given n the Strategc Report and the Drrectors” Report for the fnancial year for which the financial statements are
prepared s consstent with the financial statements, and

> the mformabon given n the Corporate Governance Statement set out on pages 46 to 48 wath respect io nternal control and nsk
management systems and about share capital structures s consistent wath the financial statements.

1SAs (UK & Ireland) reporting
Under ISAs (UK & trefand) we are required to report to you d, i our opinion

> information in the Annual Report 1s We have no exceptions to report
> matenally inconsistent with the inforrmation in the audited financial statements, or ansing from this responsibility
> apparently matenally incorrect based on, or matenafly mconsistent with, our knowledge
of the Group acquired i the course of performing our audit, or
> otherwise mesleading

> the staternent given by the dwecters on page 65, n accordance with provision C 1 1 of the We have no exceptlions to report
UK Corporate Governance Code {“the Code”), that they consider the Annual Report taken arising from this responsibility
as a whale to be far, balanced and understandable and provides the information necessary
for members to assess the Group’s performance, business model and strategy 1s matenally
inconsistent with our knowledge of the Group acquired in the course of performing our audrt

> the section of the Annual Report on page 47, as required by provision C 3 8 of the Code, We have no exceptions to report
descnibing the work of the Audit Commiitee does not appropnately address matters ansing from this responsibiity
communicated by us to the Audit Committee

Adequacy of information and explanations received
Under the Comparses Act 2006 we are required ta report to you if 1n our opirion, we have not receved all the nformation and explanatons
we require for our audit We have no exceptions to report ansing from this responsibility
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Under the Companies Act 2006 we are requred 10 report to you i, m our ocpmion, ceriain dedosures of directors’ remumeraton
speciied by kw are not made. We have no exceptons to report aiang fom this resporsiblity.

Corporate governance staterment
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are recuired to aport 10 yow d, in cur opimicn, a coiporace goverrence: sizternent has not been
prepared by the parent compamy. We have no exceptions o report arismg from this responsdiity.

Under the Lising Rules we are required 0 review the part of the Conporate Govermance Statement refatmg to the parent comypany’s
complance with rene provisions of the UK Comporate Govennance Cods. We have nothng 1o rgport hiaving periormmed owr revew.

Responsiilities for the financial statements and the audit

Ow responsibillities and those of the directors

As explasned more fully i the Statement of Drectors” Responsteddes, the drectors are respensbie for the preparason of the fnancizl
staternents and for being satisfied that they ghve 2 true and o wewr

Our responsibiity 1s to audit and express an opetion on the financad statements i accordance with appbcable kaw and ISAs (UK &
keland). Those standands nequare us to comply with the Auditing Practces Soard's Ethecal Standands for Auditors.

Ties report, including the opsions, has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as a body m acooriance with Chapter
3 of Part 16 of the Comparees Act 2006 and for no other purpose We do not, in gving these opneons, accept or assume responsibiity
for any other purpose ot to any other person to whom ths report 1S shown or e1i0 whose hands it may come save where expressly
agreed by our pnor consentt m wiiing.

What an audit of financial statements involves
An audit nvolves cbitaning evdence about the amounts and disclosures in the financal statements suffcent to gve reasonable assirance
that the financial statements are free from matena musstatement, whether caused by fraud or enor This includes an assessment of

» whether the accounting polices are appropaate to the Group's crcumstances and have been conssstently applied and adequately
disclgsed,

> the reasonableness of significarit accounting estinates made by the directors, and

> the overall presentation of the mancial staternents

We prmarily focus our work in these areas by assessing the directors” pdgements aganst available ewdence, fomeng our own udgements,
angd evahiahng the disclosures in the financal statements

We test and examme informabon, using sampkng and other auditing techruques, to the extent we consider necessary to provide a
reasonable basts for us to draw conclusions. We obtam audit evidence through testing the effectiveness of controls, substantve
procedures or a combination of both

In additon, we read af the financial and non-financal information n the Annual Report to identify matena mconsistencias with the audited
financial statements and to dentify any information that 1s apparently matenally meorrect based on, or matenally mconsistent wath,
the knowledge acquired by us in the coursa of performing the audil. If we become aware of any apparent matenal msstatements or
inconsistencies we consder the imphications for our report

Other matter
We have reported separately on the parent company financial statements of Brammer plc for the year ended 31 December 2014 and
on the information in the Directors’ Remuneration Report that is described as havng been audited

hm-am {Seruor Siatt!'to-r'}‘ACu&toor?}\/\

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Manchester

17 February 2015
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Consolidated income statement

For the yaar ended 31 Deoermber 2014

Year to Year
31 December 31 Dece—ter
2014 2013
Notes o fm
Reverue 1 1236 6319
Cost of sales 494 {445 6)
Geoss profi 2294 2053
Disiribution costs {200.8) (165.5)
Amortsaton of acqured sitangiles “amorirsabon™) and acquesibon related oosts 4.8) 2.5%
Total sales distribuhion ang atmaestraive costs {205.6) {168.09
Operabng profit 1 233 373
Operating profit before amortsabon, acquiston refated costs and excepbonal items 1 12 30.8
Amortisation and acquesition related costs ‘.8 ©.5)
Excephonad tems 4 {126) -
Operating pro&i 3 238 373
Fnance expense 2 6.3 (=5
Fnance income 2 0.2 0.1
Profit before lax 3 17.7 329
Profit before tax before amortisation, acquesston refated costs and exceptona items 35.1 354
Amortisabon and acquestion related costs (4.8 2.5)
Exceptonal tems 4 (126) -
Profit before tax 17.7 329
Taxabon 5 62 88
Profit for the year attnbutable to equety shareholders 115 241
Al actvities retate to continumng operabons
Eammungs per share - total 7
Basic 9.2p 20.5p
Dituted 8.9 199
Eamings per share - pre amortisation, acquisiion related costs and excepbonal items 7
Basic 20.7p 22 1ip
Diduted 202p 214p

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

For the yvear ended 31 Decentber 2014

31 Decembor 31 Decernber
2014 2013
£m Em
Profit for the year 11.5 241
Other comprehensive expense
ltemns that are not subsequently reclassified to the income statement
Actuanal losses on retrement benefit obligations (10.0) 61)
(10.0) {6 1)
ltems that may be subsequently reclassified to the income statement
Net exchange differences on transtating foreign operations (11.5) 09
Effectve portion of changes in far value of cash flow hedges - 01
(11.9) 10
Other comprehensive expense for the year, net of tax (21.5) {51}
Total comprehensive (expense)/income for the year (10.0) 180

Iterns in the staternent above are disclosed net of tax The ncome tax relating to each component of other comprehensive (expense)

income 1s disclkosed nnote 5

The notes on pages 76 to 107 form part of these financial statements




Consolidated balance sheet

At 31 Deoerriar 2014
3 Decesnber 31 Deceriex
24 p-igk)
Hies T ol
Assets
Non-cusrent assets
Goodhril 8 1185 @2
Acquired nizancihlk: assets 2 236 92
Other mtangible assels 8 164 13.4
Propesty, plant and equipment ] 237 179
Deferred tax assats 18 123 109
1945 1423
Carrent assets
Inveniodes 0 1339 1086
Trade and other receivables u 1X0.4 1125
Cash and cash equivaents 12 110 17.7
2753 238.8
Liabdities
Current habifibes
Financial kabitibes — bormowngs 14 (=¥ {£.0)
Trade and other payables i3 {(152.5) {137.3)
Demvaire financeal instruments 5 {0.1) -
Provisions i5 (3.6 o6
Deferred and contngen: consideration 17 {0.1) 03)
Current tax Ezbities (L] (5.4)
(160.8) (147.6)
Net current assets 1145 g12
Non-current Rabilibes
Financal kabilibes - borrowangs 1 2.0 (66 6}
Defermed tax Eabifites 18 (14.8) © 5
Dervativa fancal instruments 15 - 02
Deferrad and contingent consideration W7 7.2 {0.2)
Retrernent benefit ocbigatons 27 {38.6) 278
{153.3) (104 3
Net assets 155.7 1292
Shareholders’ equity
Share capital 19 259 236
Share prerum 182 182
Transiation reserve (1.7 02
Cash fiow hedging reserve (0.1} 01y
Retaned earnings 123.4 877
Total equity 155.7 1292

The notes on pages 76 to 107 form part of these financial statements

The financial statements on pages 72

Bill Whiteley
Chairman

7 were approved by the Board on 17 February 2015 and were signed on its behalf by
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity For tne year encian 31 Decamber 2514

Cashfiow
Shamp Trere Tmeery Heogrng  Trarskeen Feteren
Cageat P Strees Fesane Fexonve Eammgs oA
fm ) om £ £m ] &m
Batamoe ai 1 January 2013 235 18.2 {o.1) o2 (5.4 86.7 12;0
Proiit for the year - - - - - 2.1 24.1
Other comprehensve expense - - - a1 09 {B.1) 3.1}
Total comprehensive noome - - - 01 09 180 18.0
Transactons wit owners
Shares ssued dunng the year 0.1 - - - - - 0.1
Purchase of own shares - - .4 - - - e.4
Transéer on vestng of own shaes - - 23 - - £2.3) -
Share-based payments - - - - - 2.7 2.7
Tax oredit on share performance plans - - - - - 0.3 03
Drndends - - - - - {11 5) {11 5%
Total transactions with ovmners 0.1 - {0.1) - - (10.8) {10 8)
Movemen! n year o1 - 0.1) 01 09 72 82
At 31 December 2013 236 18.2 {©.2) 01 {0.2} B79 1292
Prodit for the year - - - - - 1i5 115
Other comprehensve expense - - - - {11.5) (100} {21.5)
Total comprehensive expense - - - - {11.5) 15 (10 0)
Transachons with owners
Shares issued in respect of the placing* 23 - - - - 501 52.4
Purchase of own shares - - (1.6) -~ - - (16)
Transfer on vesting of own shares — - i3 - - {13} -
Share-based payments - - - - - 01 01
Tax charge on share performance plans - - - - - os 08
Dmdend equivalents pad under
share perfonmance plans - - - - - 02) 02}
Dvidends - - - - - (134) (134)
Tota! transactions with owners 2.3 - 03 - - 345 365
Movement in year 23 - (0.3} - {11.5) 360 265
At 31 December 2014 259 18.2 0.5) 0.1) (1.7} 1239 155.7

“Ordinanly, the excess of the net proceeds over the nomenal value of the share caprtal issued would be credited to a non-distnbutable
share premmum account

However, the placing of shares completed m Apn! 2014 was effacted through a structure wiuch resulted i the creation of a resenva of
£50 1 milion that was credited to retained earrings under section 612 of the Companies Act 20086, of which £4 7 mulion is consedered
to be norn-distnbutable

Total non-distnbutable reserves s considered to be £22 1 million




Consolidated cash flow statement

For the year encted 31 Dacarmiser 2004

Yeaw to Year o
31 Decexnber 31 Dacemrbar
2014 2013
Netes £m £
Cash generated from operabons 2 13.7 45.5
Interest receved 02 a.1
Intarest paid {4.9) £
Tax pandt 78 {75)
Funding of pension schemes less pension expense induded n operatng profit on .3
Net cash (used n)Vgenerated from operating activities 1.0} 331
Cash generated from operaiing actartes before exceptional tems 59 35.0
Cash cutfiow from acquasibon refated costs (=¥ ] 0.7}
Cash outfiow from exceptonal items 3.9 2.2
Net cash (used in)/generated from operating actinties (g 0] 331
Proceeds from discontnmued busnesses 4 05 -
Acqustion of busnesses net of cash and overtrafis acoured) {40.8) -
Defened consdaraton pad on poor acquesibons 7 i ] 4 2)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 03 0z
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {9.8) 70)
Additons to cther intangble assats {6.5) 67
Net cash used in investing actwvities {56.6) (77
Cash flows from financing actaties
Net proceeds from ssue of orcinary share capsial 524 01
Net proceeds from ssue of privats placement 14 37.2 340
Nat repayment of icans {23.0} {20 3)
Net increase in finance leases 0.1 -
Dniadends pasd to shareholders [ {13.9) (115
Purchase of own shares 9 {1.6} (2 4)
Net cash generated from/(used in} financing activities 1.7 01
Net [decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents 21 5.9 153
Exchange {loss)ygan on cash and cash equivalents (0.9} 02
Net cash at beginning of year 175 20
Net cash at end of year 10.7 175
Cash and cash equivalents 12 11.0 177
Overdrafis 14 (0.3) ©2
Net cash at end of year 10.7 175

The notes on pages 76 to 107 form part of these financial statements
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Accounting policies

General iformation
Brarner plc & a compeny incorporated and domcied n the UK, and fisted on the Londcen Siock Excharge. The addiess of e registered
ofce s disclosed on page 124.

The prcipdl acoounting polcies adopled m the preparaton of these consofidiated Fancal stzternents are set oot below. These
pohcies have boen consistently apaited to A the years presented. unless othenwiss stzied.

Basis of preparation

These consoiidated Sinancal staternenes have been prepared n accondance with Intermabonal Financal Reponing Stemrtends as adopied
by the European Umion (IFRSs as adopted by the B, IFRIC nterpretations and the Campanies Act 2006 applicabls (o companies
reportng under RS, The financal stalements have been prapared om a going comoerm bass under the Nstoncal oost comvendon, as
modified by Enancial assets and financal kabifives Gnchudng denvalve nstnrments) 2t &y value through profi? o loss under IFRS. A
summary of the more mocrtant growup accountng colicies is set out below, togeather with an explanation of where changes have been
made {0 prevous policies on the adopion of new accountng standards n the year

The preparaton of fmance statements in condormity wath FRS requikes the use of cartan key accounting esimeates and assumpthons,
&t dso requires maragemeant o exarcise iis judgement i the process of appiying the growp’s accountng polices. The areas rvolang
a tigher degree of judgement or complexily, or areas wherms the assumptions and estmates are sigrificant to the comsoldated Fnancal
stalzments are delaled in the Inanca ssk management secton. Although these estimates are lbased on managements lbest knowledge
of the amount, events or actons, actua resulis ulbiately may diffier from those esbimates

New standands, amendments to standards or interpretations
The followang new standards, amendments to stendards or nterpretabons are mandatory for the frst bine for the firarcal year begnrng

1 Jenuary 2014. No standards have been early adopied by the group. None of these standards and mterpretahions has had a matenal
effect on the group's fnancial statements.

Apphcatis jof frene.d vexs

Starclan o riaprenaon Comters QIS O O deR
IFRS 10 Consolidated fmancal statements 1 Januay 2014
IFRS 11 Jont arrangements 1 January 2014
IFRS 12 Desclosures of interests n Other Enbties 1 Januay 2014
Amendment. IAS 27 Separate financa statements 1 January 2014
Amendment AS 32 Fnancal mstruments  Presentaton 1 January 2014
Amendment 1AS 36 Imparment of assets 1 Janwary 2014
Amendment IAS 39 financial nstiuments  recogrubon and measurement 1 January 2014
IFRIC 21 Levies 1 January 2014
IAS 27 {revised 2011) Separate financal stalements 1 January 2014
IAS 28 (rewised 2011) Associates and joint ventures 1 January 2014

Standards, amendments and interpretations that are not yet efiective are as follows

Appicable for franca years
Standard or nterpretabon Contand bagrrmng on or after
Amendment IFRS 9 Financial mstruments  classificabon and measurerment 1 January 2015
IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers 1 January 2017
Group accounting
Subsidianes

Subsidiares are those entites in which the group has an nterest of mare than one half of the voting nghts or otherwise has power to
govern the financiad and operating pokicies The existence and effact of potental voting nghts that are presently exercisable or presently
convertible are considered when assessing whether the group controls another entity

Subsidianes are consobdated from the date on which the group has the ability to exercise control, and are no longer consolidated
from the date that control ceases

The group applies the acquisition method of accounting to account for business combinations The consideration paid or payable in
respect of acquisitons compnses amaunts paxd on completion, deferred consideration and payments which are contingent on the
continued employment of former owners of businesses acquired




Accounting policies

identfiable assets acquired and Iebites and condngent kab¥tes assumed m a busness combimahon are measued mitaly at Eir
value al the acquistion dists. Where necessary, the accouning policss of acqured subsidianes are adusted to brng them oo fne
wxth those used by the Group. The excess of the consideraton {exchucing payments contngent on utue ermpicymend) over the far
value of the identfizhle net assets acquired s recorded as goodwll

Paymentds the are contngent on future employment and trensacton costs and expensss such as profesuona) fees are changed to the
income siatement. Acquisition redzted costs are expensed as incured.

Inler-company tansactions, balances and unredised gans on transactons between group compaves are elminated. Unreagised
losses are diso eimnaied but consdered an imparment of the asset rarsienred. Where necessary, the ancountng palicies of sulbsidaries
have been aligned i order to ensure consiscency weth the policies adopted by the group.

Foreign curvency transiation

Functional and presentaton currency

ltems ncluded n the fnancial siatements of each entily i the group are measired using the currency of the prmary economic emyvimnment
m whuch the entily operates ("the functoral cumrency™). The consoldatad financal siatements are presented @ Sterlmng, which s the
funchonal and presentabon curency of the pament.

Transactions and balances

Foregn cumency transactions ane transiated nto the funchondl currency usaing the exchange rates prevaling at the dates of the rarsachons.
Foresgn exchange gamns and losses esultng from the setfliement of such transactons and from the transtabon at year-end exchangs
rates of monetary assets and kabdites denomina’ad n foragn cunences ae recognsad in the ncome statement, excemt when defered
0 equty as qualifyng net nvesiment hedges

Gioup companes
Income siaternents, balance sheets and cash flows of foreign entrles are translated inlo the group’s presentalion cunency as follows

{a) assets and Ezblites for each balance sheet are transtated at the closing rate at the date ¢f that batance sheet;
{b} income and expenses for each mcome statement are transtated at average exchange rates for the year; and
{c) all resulting exchange differences are recogrised as a separate component of equity

On consokdabon, exchange diffierences ariaing from the transiation of the net svestment in foresgn entriies, and of bormowangs designated
as hedges of such nvestments are taken to a translation reserve within shareholders® equity The exempbon under IFRS 1, alowng
these exchange diiferences to be reset {o zero on adoption of IFRS has been utiised. When a foresgn entidy 15 sold, these exchange
differences are recogiused m the mcome statement as part of the gan or loss on sale

Goodwill and farr value adustments ansing on the acqusitton of a foreign entity are treated as assets and §abilittes of the foreign entity
and translated at the closing rate

Property, plant and equipment
All property, plant and equepment are stated at hustoncal cost less depreciation Cost includes the onginal purchase pnce of the asset
and the costs attnbutable to bnnging the asset to its working condition for s intended use

Depreciabon s calculated on the straight-ine method to wnte off the cost of each asset to ther residual values over ther estmated
useful ives as follows

Land and buldings

Freehold buildings Indnadually estimated subject to a maximum of 50 years
Leasehold properties The termn of the kease subject to a maxmum of 50 years
Equipment 3-10 years

Land 1s not depreciated

Where the carnyaing amount of an asset 1s greater than its estimated recoverable amount, it ts wntten down immediately to its recoverable
amaount

Gams and losses on disposals are determined by companng proceeds with camying amount and are imcluded m operating profit

Repairs and maintenance are charged to the income statement dunng the financial year m wiuch they are ncurred The cost of major
renovabions 1s included in the camying amount of the asset when it 1s probable that future economic benefits in excess of the ongmalty
assessed standard of performance of the existing asset will flow to the group Major renovations are depreciated over the remaining
useful ife of the related asset

The assets’ residual values and useful ives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropnate, at the end of each reporting penod
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Accounting policies

Intangihle assets

Goodwill

Geodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acqussiton over the far value of the group’s shere of the et assets of the acguired
subsdary at the date of acquessiion. Goodvall on acquessbon of subsidanes oocuTmng on o a'er 1 January 1898 sincluded it mtangitle
assets. Goodwrll on acgustons that cocumed pror to 1 January 1998 has been charged m full $o axaned eamings o shamsholders™
equity; such goodwdi inas not been retrospectinvely caprtafised.

Fyior to 1 Jamuery 2004, (the dae of ranswon to IFRS) goodwll was amortsed over s estimated uselud ke; such amortisaton ceasang
on 31 Decernber 2003. Goodwill is sudxect to rmparment review, both annually and when there are indicators that the canymng value
may nol be recoverable. A wnle down s made if the canmying amount exceeds the recoverable amount. Any snpamment is recogrsad
mmedatsly as an expense and © not subseguently reversed.

Goodwil is alocated fo cash-generabing urits for the purpose of impasment testng The allocaton s made to those cash-generating
urils or groups of cash-generating units that are expected to berefit from the busness combnation nwinch the gooded arosa, identSed
according to operating segment.

Acouired intangibles

Acqured intangibles prncpally compnse cusiomer relationships and trade names recogmsed as separately sddentfizhie assets on

acqursitions and ae valued at cost fess accumuated amortsabon. Customer relabonshps are consxiered to have estimated usefid
kves of between 5 and 20 years and amortised accordingly on a stranght ne basis,

Other intangibles

Software development

Cosls assooated with mantainmg computer software programmes are recogrvsed as an expense as ncurred. Costs that are directly
associated wth dentrfiable software: systems operated by the group and will generate economc benefits excesding cosis beyond
one year, are recognised as miangible assets Dwect costs ndlude staff costs of the sofiware developmend team and an appropnate
porbion of direct overheads
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as a capital improvement and added to the ongnal cost of the software. Computer software development costs recogrused as assets
are amortised using the straight-line method over thesr useful bves, not exceeding a penod of 7 years.

Development costs relaling to suignificant strategic projects

Incremenial costs naured n the design and development of new products, processas and sensces 0 the formation of newr management
teams are recognesed as an mtanghile assel once the techmical feasibiity and projected future profitability have been established together
with a delaied business plan These development costs are amorbsed using the straght-ine method over thes usefi ives, not exceeding
a penod of five years

Impairment of long Iife assets

Property, plant and equipment and other non-cument assets, ncluding goodwill and intangible assets are reviewed on an annual basis
to determme whether events or changes m creumistances mdicate that the camymg amount of the assets may not be recoverable If
any such indicaton exsts, the recoverable amount of the asset I1s estimated as esther the hsgher of the asset's net seling pnce or vaue
nuse the resultant imparment (the amount by which the camying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount) s recognised
as a charge in the consohidated income statement

The value n use ts calculated as the present value of estmated future cash flows expected to result from the use of assets and ther
eveniual dispasal proceeds In order to calculate the present value of estmated future cash flows the group uses a discount rate
based on the group's estmated weighted average cost of capital, together with any nsk premium deterrmined approprate  Estimated
future cash flows used mn the imparment calculation represent management's best view of the hkely future market condibons and
current decrsions on the use of each asset or asset group

For the purpose of assessing iImpairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels at which there are separately identifiable cash flows

Finance and operating leases where the group is the lessee

Leases of property, plart and equipment where the group 1s subject to substantially all the nsks and rewards of ownershp, are classified
as finance leases Finance leases are capitalised at the nception of the lease at the lower of the farr value of the leased asset or the
present value of the minimum lease payments Each lease payment is aflocated between the kability and finance charges so as to
achieve a constant rate on the finance balance outstanding The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are ncluded
in financial habwities - borrowings  The property, plant and equipment acquired under finance leases 1s depreciated over the shorter of
the useful life of the asset or the lease term

Leases where a significant portion of the nsks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases

Paymenis made under operating feases {net of any incentives receved from the lessor) are charged to the income statement on a
straight-ina basts over the penod of the lease Incentives receved are recorded as deferred income and spread over the term of the
lease on a straght line basis

Where reference 1s made in the Annual Report and consolidated financial statements to finance leases, this includes hire purchase
agreements




Accounting pclicies

Inventosies

bveritories ane stated at the lower of cost, determined on a weghted average cost fonmuta, and met reelizehle vallue, Cost of mventony
represands materal and a proportion of procursment overheads. Proveons e rmace Sor siow moving and chsolete demms. Net regisshle
vehie is the estimated sefkng price in the andirery cownse of business, less seling expenses.

Trade receivables

Trade recenables are camed at ongnalinvoice emaount less prowvsion made for imparmsnt of these receivablies. A provision for impanment
of trace recevables is eswablshed when there is objective envidence that te group will rot be able to collect & amounts due according
o the origimal temrms of receivables. The amouwe of the provision s the diference between the canryimg amount and the best estmate
of the amount recoverabie

Trade payables
Trate payables are non-interest beanng and are stated at ther nomenal valie. Trade payaties ae inttaly recognsed at Gy value and
subhsequendy hetd at amortised cost

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are canied in the balance sheet at cost. For the cash fiow statement, cash and cash equvalents compnse
cash i hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-tem highly Baued investments with ongeredl matimties of theee months ar
less., and bank overdrafs. Bark overdirafis are included within bomowings im current Eabfibies on the balance sheet.

Tre amounts recognised for deferred and contingent consrderation are the directors’ best estimates of the actisal amounts whoch wil
be payable and excludes payments contingent on future employment. Deferred consideration s discountad at an appropriate nek-
free rate. Delered consderation relates o acquesihions made afier the appbcaton date of IFRS 3 frewvised) ‘Busness combmabons™
and accordingly changes n esumnaies are reflected in the income statement.

Fair value measurement of contingent consideration

Where contingent considerahon 15 forfedable n some of the istances m wivch the vendors might leave the business, certan amounts
payable under contmgent consideralion amangements resulting from busness combrabions m these financal staterments are treated
a&s remunerabon in accordance with IFRS3 frevsed). These are assessed at far value and charged to the noome statement during the
penod over winch the group necerves the benefit of the vendors’ employment seriices. The detenmmation of thes fair vatue s based on
an estmate of the future performance of the business which 1s dependent on the acqered busness's parformance aver a speatfic
future imeframe and 15 therefore subyect to esttmation uncertainty. These amounts are disclosed within acqursibon related costs n the
ncome statement

Employee benefits

Defined Contribution schemes

A defined contribubon plan s a pension plan under which the group pays fixed contnbutions nto a separate entity {a fund) and wil
have no legal or constructve obligations to pay further conbributions if the fund does not hold suficient assets to pay ali employees
benefits relating to employee service in the cument and prior years Contnbubons are charged to the ncome staternent in the year in
wiuch they anse

Defined Benefit schemes
A defined benefit plan 15 a pension plan that defines an amount of pension benefit to be provided, usually as a functon of one or more
factors such as age, years of senvce or compensahion

The operating and financing costs of such plans are recognised separataly i the ncome staterment, service costs are spread systermancaly
over the lives of employees and financing costs are recogrised in the years in which they anse  Finance costs are neluded in distribution
costs

The kiability recogrused i the balance sheet n respect of defined benefit pansion plans s the present value of the defined benefit obligation
at the balance sheet date less the far value of plan assets The defined benefit oblgation 1s calculated annually by mdependent actuanes
using the projected unit credit method The present value of the defined bensfit obligabon 1s determined by discounting the estmated
future cash outflows using interest rates of government securntes, which have terms to matunty approxmating the terms of the related
hability

Actuanal gains and losses ansing from expenence adjustments and changes in actuanal assumphons are charged or credited to equity
in the staternent of comprehensive income Past-service costs are recognised immediately in ncome

Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are payable whenever an employee’s employment 1s terminated befors the normal retrement date or whenever
an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits The group recogrises termination benefits when it 1s
demonstrably committed to either terminate the employment of current employess according to a detarled formal plan without posstbiity
of withdrawal or to provide termination benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy Benefits faling due
more than 12 months after balance sheet date are discounted to present value
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Accounting policies

Profit sharing and bomss plans
Lighirbes for prof sharing and bones plans are expectad to be setfied within 12 months and are measued af the amourts sxpectad
to be pad when they are seified.

Share-based payments

The far vabees of employee shae opbon and share periormance olans are calculated at ihe daie of grant ueng the Black-Scholes
model. In accordance with IFRS 2, “Shere-based Payments” the resulting cost & oharged to the moeme staiement over the vestng
penod of the opbons and plans. The total arncunt to be expensed over the vestng penod is detenmened by rsfererce 1o the far value
of the optons grarted, excluding the fmpact of any non-market vestng conditons. The charge n refabon 1o erployee shame oplons
and shame performance plams with market vesting conditons s caloulated usng scenano modeling and is the expected outcome of
meetng the periprmance onterz. Nonwmarket vesting condtons are ncluded n assumpbons abowt the number of options that ae
expected to vest. At each balance sheet date, the value of the charge s adjusted to =flect expected and achual levels of optons
weskng ior changes i mon market vesting ontera,

Treasury shares

Tre cost of the purchese of own shares s taken directly to eserves and s nduded in etzoed eamings

Bomowings

Bomowings are recogrsed miially at fair vakue, net of transaction costs maurred, and are subsequently stated at amortised cost. The

transachon costs mowred ae amortised over the expected bfe of the faciity Borrowsngs are classified as current Eabiiies unless the
group has an uncondiioral aght to defer settlernent of the habiity for at ieast 12 months after the balance sheet date

General and specific bormovang costs directly attrbutable to the acouesiiion, constructon or production of quakfyng assets, which are
assets that necessarly take a substantal peniod of tme to get ready for ther ntended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, untl such time as ihe assets are substantzly ready for ther ntended use or sale

Derivative fi il i
The group does not enter nic speculative denvatve contracts  The group uses denvative financial nsttuments to hedge s exposure
to forexgn exchange and interest rate nsks ansing flom operabonal and financing actvbes R princpally ermploys forward foregn exchange:
conbracts and interest rate swaps 1o hedge the nsks associated with interest rate and foregn curency fluctuations retabing to certam
firm commitments and heghly probable forecast transachons.

Certam denvative financial mstruments are designated as hedgng mistruments m ine with the group's nsk management poficies  Hedges
are classried as follows"

> cash flow hedges when they hedge exposure to vamabiity in cash flows that s attiibutable to a particular sk that 1s associated
with a forecast transacbon.

> far value hedges when they hedge the exposure to changes m the far value of a recogrised asset or hability

The group documents at the inception of the transaction the relationship between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as
ils nisk management objectives and strategy for undertalang vanous hedging transactions Yhe group also docurnents its assessment,
both at hedge meepbon and on an ongoing basis, of wheather the denvatives that are used in hedging transactons are ighly effective
n offseting changes in far values or cash flows of hedged tems

All denvative financial Instruments are nhially recogrused in the balance sheet at farr value and are subsequently remeasured to therr
fair value at each balance sheet date The farr value of forward exchange contracts s calcutated by reference to current forward exchange
contracts with similar matunty profiles The fair value of inierest rate swap contracts is determined by reference to market values for
similar instruments and 15 the amount that the group would recerve or pay to terminate the swap at the balance sheet date

The farr value of a hedging denvative is classified as a non-current asset or hability when the remaining matunty of the hedged ttem s
more than 12 months and as a current asset or labidity when the remaning matunty of the hedged tem s less than 12 months

Hedge accounting
All denvative financial Instruments are inibially recognised in the balance sheet at far value and are subsequently remeasured to ther
farr value at each balance sheet date

{(a) Cash flow hedge
The effectve portion of changes in the far value of denvatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges 1s recognised In
equity The gain or foss relating to the ineffective portion 1s recognised immediately in the Income statement

Amounts accumulated n equity are recycled in the income staterent in the years when the hedged tem affects profit or foss {for example,
when the forecast sale that s hedged takes place) The gam or loss relating to the effective portion of interest rate swaps hedging vanable
rate borrowings is recognised n the mcome statement However, when the forecast transachion thatis hedged resuits in the recogniion
of a non-financial asset {for example, inventory or fixed assets), the gains and losses previousty deferred in equity are transferred from
equity and included in the inmal measuremant of the cost of the asset The deferred amcunts are ulbmately recogrused in cost of goods
sold in the case of iInventory or in depreciation in the case of fixed assets




Accounting policies

When a hedging mnstrument expires or & sold, or when a hedge no ionger meets the cntena for hedge accountirg, any cumuiatve
gamn or foss exdsting n equity at thel tme rerrains n equity and is recognised when the forecast trensacton s ubmeately recognised g
the mcome statement. When a forecast transacton & no longer expected 1o oo, the cumudatve gain of oss tht was reporied m
equily & mmediziely ransiemed to the inoome siatenneny.

{b) Net investment hedge

Hedges of nat investrments in foregn opersions are accounied ‘or simiarly o cash flow hedges. Ay gan or ioss on the hedgng mstument
relating to the effectve portion of the hedge s recognsed m otfver comprehensmve income. The gan or loss retating to the mefiectve
porton s recogrsed mmediately in the income statement. Gans and fosses accumudated n ecuity ae incladed n the mcome statenment
when the forengn operation is partially disposed of or scid.

Cusrent and deferred mcome tax

Camrent tax

The cument income tax chame = caloulated on the basis of the tax krws enacted or substantvely enaciad at the baance sheet date
m the counines where the group’s subsicianes and associzies operaie and generatse taxable mocome.

Defemred tax

Defened income tax s provided m i, usng the balence sheet kabiity method, on tempotary differences ansing between the tax bases
of assets and kab#tes and ther camying amounts m the franca) statements. Cunent or suhstantvely enacted tax rates are used n
the determination of defarmed income tax.

Deferred tax assets ane recognisad to the extent that it s probxablle that future taxable pofit will be avalable aganst whoch the temporary
differences can be utised

No deferred lax asset or kabiity 15 recognised in respec of temporarny difierences assocuated wath rvestments i subsickanes, branches,
assocates and jomit ventiures, where the group s able to control the tming of reversal of the temporary difierences and o is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse n the foreseeable futire

Provisi
Promasions for estructuning costs and legal clamms are recogrised when. the group has a present legal or constructave obigation as a
result of past events, 1t is probable that an outflow of resturces will be required to settie the obligation, and a rofiable estimate of the
amount can be made Restructunng provisions siciude lease testnmation penalties and employee termnagon payments, Where the
group expects a provison 1o be resmbursed, for example under an insurance contract, the resmburserment 1s recogaused as a separate
asset but only when the resmbursement s virtually certain

Prowisions are measured at the best estimate of the amount to be spent and are discounted where matenal.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are dassified as equity incremental costs divectly atinbutable to the ssue of new shares or opions are shown n equity
as a deducton, net of tax, from the proceeds

Revenue recognition

Revenue compnses the nvaiced value for the sale of goods and services net of value-added tax, customer rebates and discounts, and
after ekrminating sales withm the group Revenue from the sale of goods s recognised when significant nsks and rewards of ownership
of the goods are transfemred to the buyer which is usually on despatch

Dnndends
The final drdend 15 recogrused in the group's financial staternents n the penod in which 1t is approved by the group’s shareholders
The mterm dmidend 1s recognised when paid

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decrsion-maker
The chvef operating deaision-maker, who 1s responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments,
has been identified as the Board

Comorate costs are allocated to segments on the basis of external turnover

Exceptional tems

IAS 1 - ‘Presentation of financal statements’ requires matenal fems of mcome and expense to be dsclosed separately Exceptional
items are tems which, in management’s jJudgement, need to be disclosed by wvirtue of ther size or maidence in order for the user 10
obtamn a proper understanding of the group’s financial performance

Acquisthion related costs
Acqursition related costs compnse external transaction costs pertaning to the group’s acquisition strategy and other acquisition costs,
mainly the cost of maintaiming the group's internal acquisihons department
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Financial risk management

L Financial risk factors

Tre group’s activifies expose i to a veriety of financial nsle- nrarkeet sk gncluding foregn exciange prce reslkd, omdd mak, kaguididy ek,
cash fovr and terest rate s The group’s overall sk management programme focuses on the unprechcisthilly of francial madets
ard secks to mmaonise potenrial adverse efects on dre groagp's franca perfomance.

Risk management 5 canied oul by a centref treasuny department (group treasury) umdier poficies apymoverd by Be Boand of dreciors.
Growup treasury denbifies, svaluates and hedges financial risks in dose co-operalon wih the goups epering unts. Tre Board provides
wriitien prmciples for overal sisk management, as well as written policies covering specrfic amas, such as foreign exchange risik,
nierest-rale sisk, creal nsk, use of non-cemalive Brancal nsiruments, and Twesting excess bquidity. Dervatwe Enancia instruments
are used o hedge exposure © fuctustons n oreign exchange ra‘es and nterest r@es n aocodiance vwith group policy.

{a) Market tisk

{1) Foreign exchange risk and hedging activities

The group operztes intemauonally and 1 exposed to &xeign exchange nsk anfsing from currency exposures, prmanty with respact to
the Euro and Stexing. Forengn encizange nsk anses pumarly from recognised assets and kablites and aiso net mvesiments m forsign
CpETanons.

The group has signdficant svestments n foraagn operglions, whose net assels are exgposad to foregn currency ransiaton sk, Cumency
exposure arising from the net assets of the group's forexgn operations is managed primarly hrough hedging bortwngs denomenatad
in foegn cunrencies aganst the net assets of foregn operations denominated in the seme currercies, The group documents these
hedging relatonshys at ncepton end assesses, bath at ncepbon and on an on-goung basis, whether ey ame highly efiectve. Whers
the hedges are nghly eflectve, gams or losses on the borowngs are recognised n eguety The gans or tosses refatng to the meffective
porbon are recognesed smmediately i the moome statement.

Forexgn operations operate pamarly in local cusrency or have mnnal net exposure to foregn curencees,

The impact on revenus and operatng profit of Stering weakenng against the Euwro is reflacted in the segmenta analyes (note 1) which
showrs the resulis at the 2014 actual avesage exchange rate (€1.244 £1) and at the 2014 ‘'managament rate’ (€1.25 i)

(0} Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The group's meome and operating cash flows are substantially ndependent of changes in market nterest rales. The group's interest rate
nsk anses from long-term borrowings  Borrowings issued at vanable rates expose the group o cash iow stierest raie nsk. Borowings
ssued at foed rates expose the group (o far value interest rate nsk.

As tha group 15 pnncipally financed by a €100 milkon fioating rate revelving credit faciity the group uses mnterest rate swaps 1o manage
exposure to fioating interest rates At 31 December 2014, the group had m place miterest rate swaps wiuch had the effect of foang the
rate on a notonal pnncpal debt of €30 miion The group classifies such swaps as cash flow hedges ang states them at fay value
which amounted to Babilties of £0 1 miion (2013 habilty of £0 2 mifion) recogresed on the batance sheet. Durng 2013, the group
supplemented s exxsting borowing facliies with addivonal long-term funding by entenng into a $100 milion {or curency equivalent)
private shelf facility which was extended to $175 million in December 2014. The pnvate placement notes issued under this faciity,
{otaling €85 millon at the end of the year, bear nierest at a fixed rate. Accordingly, as the maonty of the group’s bomrovangs now effectively
bear fixed rate mterest there 1s Ettle exposure to fluctuations in vanable interest rates.

The group seeks to mmumise cash deposits held at banks, surplus cash s used 10 repay external debt The group manages fiquidity
with a combination of short term cash forecasts that look three months forward on a roling bases and identify short term cash surpluses
and requrements Long term cash requirements are identified with a five year financial planning moded that uses scenano based

ptanning to assess the mpact of the group’s strategic plans on profitability and liquadity

{b} Credit nsk
The group has no significant concentrabons of credit nsk. I has policies in place to ensure that sales of products are made to customers
with an appropriate credit history

(c) Liquidity nsk

Prudent iquidity nsk management imphes maintaining sufficient cash and the avalebdity of funding through an adequate amount of
committed credit faclites Group treasury ams to mantain flexbdity in funding by keeping committed credit lines avallable. Management
monitors roliing forecasts of the group's iquidity positon on the basis of expected and projected cash flow

(d) Contractual obligations

The table below analyses the matunty profile of the group's financial hiabwhties based on the remaining penod from the balance shest
date to the contractual matunty date Short-term creditors, including trade creditors and accruals, are excluded from the analysis as
thay ara considered to form part of the group’s day-to-day operating cycle




Financtal risk management

At 31 Decemnber 2014
Less than | yesr 25 yams Rl them S y=25 Total
om om om o
Long tarm debt ohlgations {mote 14) 3 262 E6.3 956
Fnance lease obligathons fnote 14) 02 02 - 04
33 26.4 663 96.0

At 31 December 2013
Less than 1 year 2-5 ymars Micre than S years Tt
£m £ Im £m
Long tenm debt obligations {mota 14) a7 332 333 70.2
Fnance ease obfgations (note 14) 0.1 0.1 - 02
3.8 333 333 70.4

Lang term debt obbgabons compnse the panepal amouwnt of Somowngs where the: bomowings are drawwn down against a fachizy wisch
1s avaidable for more than one year. Under the revohng credit faclitly each drawing s a separats utibsation and mterest is payable at
the matunty of each viksation. No utisabton s made fr a penod greater than six momhs.

Deferred tax, deferred considerahon, and post employment benefit Eabifibes are not ncluded n the table above. During 2010, the group
agreed a deficrt funding plan wath the tustees of the Brammer Services Lamited Retrement Baneft Scheme, which pronides for the
group o make paymenis of 2.8 milion, ndexed for smilzhon, in the years 2011 to 2023 inclusive.

11. Capitat risk management
The group’s obyectives when managng capstal are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concem in order to provide reumns
for shareholders and to mantan an opumal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The group considers the gearng and capital structure of the business penodicaly and adjusts as approprate. in Aprd 2014 a ptacng
of 11,300,407 new ordnary shares, representing approxamately 9 6% of the total issued share capital, was mate m order to reduce
the group’s borowmngs after the Lonne acquesibon and {0 allow the group 10 pursus other acquestbon opportunibes

The group monators capial on the basts of headroom aganst s commutted borrowing faciites, compiance with the covenants imposed
by the commtted borrowing facdibes, and the group's ability to rase further equity capidal.

The group was 1n full compiance with all its financal covenants throughout each of the years presented

2014 2013

£m £m

Total borrowings (note 14) 963 706

Less Cash and cash equavalents (note 12) {110} (77
Net debt 853 529
Total equity 155.7 1292
Total capital 24%1.0 1821

In Judy 2011 the group signed new bankang facilities for a five year term which provides up to €100 miion {£77 6 muBon) of debt
finance At 31 December 2014 the committed faciity 1s €100 0 mdlon (2013 €100 O mifhon)

In 2013, additiona! long term funding was obtamed through the issue of €40 million of unsecured prrvate placement notes (€20 mdion
i June, with a further 1ssue of €20 mulkon in July) beanng interest at a fixed rate of 3 36% and matunng n July 2023 These prvate
placement notes were 1ssued under a prvate shelf facihty which prowides a maximum facdity, which 1s uncommitied and unsecured,
up to $100 mullon (or currency equivalent) The remaining notes (€35 4 millon) were issued n January 2014 with a seven year term
matunng m January 2021 and beanng mierest at 3 56%

n 2014 an addiional prvate shelf facility was agreed providing a maximum facility, which 18 uncommitted and unsecured, up to $75
mulion {or currency equivalent) In December 2014, the group issued €10 million of unsecured private placement notes beanng interest
at a fixed rate of 2 36% and matunng in January 2025 under this faciity In January 2015, a further €30 million of notes were 1ssued
with a 10 year term matunng in January 2025 and beanng interest at 2 36%
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Financial risk management

The group's headroom against s commutted fackly was as ollows:

e 2033

i T
Commdtted group oy 7756 832
Cumrent udliszhon 258 330
Headroom {(note 14) 518 302

Undex the terms of the commutied fackty the group s permitied to entar into up ko £58 milon of additmre gross borewangs cutsde
this faclity. This excludes the ssue of private placerment notes i relabion to the $175 milbon povate shell faciity.

Estmaies and prdgements are contnually evaluatad and are based on hisioncal expenence and other factors, inchuckng expectatons
of future events that are believed to be reasonahle under the cicumstances.

The group mekes estmeates and assumpbons concerming the future. The resudting accounting eshmates will, by defiriton, seldom equal
the retzted actud resulis. The estimates and assumpaions that have a ssgniicant nsk of causang a matenal adjusiment to the canmyng
amounts of assets and Eabdbes within the next fnancal year are discussed below

{a) estimated impairment of goodwiil

The group tests annually whether goodvall has sulfered any impaiment, ;1 accordance weh the accountng policy statad on page 78
The recoverable amounis of cash-generating units have been determined based on vale-in-use calculations. These calculatons
requre the use of estmates {noie 8).

(b} determination of deferred and contingent consideration payable

The amount of deferred and contingent considerabion recogn:sed in respect of acquesbons s subect to connuous evaluabon by the
directors. Any subsequent revision to the amounts recogrised following the year of acquisiion will impact the group’s results as thase
adiustments are reflected n the meome statement and included as a comporent of acquesstion related costs.

{c} retirement benefit obligatons

The present value of the pension obiigations depends on a numier of factors that are determmed on an actuanal bass using a number
of assumphons. The assumpbons used in determiung the net expense for pensions inckede the discount rates  Any changes in these
assumpbons will impact the carryng amount of retrement benefit pbligations

Note 27 detais the actuanal assumptons used in deterrmining the casrying amount at 31 December 2014

{d) marketing support from suppliers

Accruals are recogrised for cash contribuhons recervable from suppliers of certan stratege products, when cash recepts are not receved
in the year to which the contrbutions relate. The slement of judgement surrounding the calcutation of the accrual at each year end s
low as agreements with suppliers are supported by signed contracts, and confirmations of the achievement of refevant targets based
on histonc performance levels are obtamed from the suppliers at the year end There has been a high level of comelation n past years
between the accrual recognised at the year end and subsequent cash recepls.

{e) valuation of acquired intangible assets

IFRS 3(R) requres separately identifiable ntangible assets to be recognesed on acquisitions. The pnncipal estmates used in vahung these
intangible assets are generally based on the future cash flows forecast to be generated by these assets, and the selection of appropaate
discount rates to apply o the cash flows

{f) Classification of exceptional items

Certain tems of ncome and expense are classified as exceptional tems due to therr nature or size arxd are presented separately on
the face of the iIncome statement in order to prowide a better understanding of the Group’s financial performance Exceptional gems,
together wath amortisabon of acquired intangible assets and acquistion related costs are exchuded from undertying performance measures
in order 1o present a mora meaningful measure of the undertying performance of the business




Notes to the financial statements

1 Segmental analysis

The Board has been wdamifed as the dhef operating decson-maier. The Boad reviews the growp's imemal reporing as the beasis for
group is pnmarty contolisd an a oguntry by country basis, in ine with the legal shwuctyre. Fofiowing our Scandinavan acqusiton m
January 2014 ihe graup has amendad s intennal reperting to add Scandinava as a newy operalmg segment fiom 2074,

The group's mntennall reportng s primerlly tesed on performance reports run at ‘manageme exchange rates —exchanges rates whech
are set at the begimng of each year, For 2014 the maragement aie used was €1.25; £1. which s unchanged from the pnor year,

Accordiingly the segment sdoanation Detow s shown & the ‘managerment” exchange rates with the exchange efiect beng a reconclimg
rtem between the segment resudis and the iotals reportad n the fimanciel statemants &t actual exchange rates. The maragement rate
apphes (o ncome statement, batance sheet and cash fiows.

The Board assesses the performance of the operatmg segmenits based on ther underdymg operatimg proft, which comprises proft
before mterest and tapaton, exclueding amorbsaton of acguired intang bfes, acqustion relaed costs, and non-recumng or excegtona
ems such as restructunng costs and impaimments when the impairment s the resul of an isolated, nonecuering event.

Segment assets inchude property, plant and equaoment, olhez mtangble assels, sveriones, and trade and other recevables. AS wier-
segmenta trading s on an ams-ength basis.

Year ended 31 December 2014 — Continuing operations

Fastern Gumooe

UK Gerrany Frace Span Berdln Scandram & Oher Totadl

£m om £m £m m on om £m
Revenue
Tota revenue 2B70 1242 B34 510 539 538 78.9 73712
inter company saes (1.8 3.1) 2.1) (18 {1 % 0.7 (1.0} (11.8)
Sales 10 external customer s 285.2 121.1 863 492 528 53.1 779 7256
Exchange effect 2.0}
Total sales to external customers 7236
Underlyng operating profit 15.5 7.5 48 60 26 2.5 21 111
Exchange effect 0.1
Total underyng operating profit 492
Amorsation of acquyed mtanghbles {(1.8)
Acquisrion related costs 3.0)
Excepbonal operating rtems {12.6)
Total operating profit 238
Finance expense 6.3)
Finance moome 02
Profit before tax 17.7
Tax {6.2)
Profit for the year 115
Segment assets 1179 436 42 4 262 24 4 224 36.7 3136
Exchange effect {92}

3044

Goodwii 1185
Acqured intangbles 236
Cash 11.0
Defered tax 123
Total assets 469.8
Other segment items
Caprial expenditure
- other mtangible assets 11 03 03 04 03 02 39 6.5
— property, plant and equipment 59 08 07 08 04 05 08 9.9
Exchange effect {0.1)
Total capital expenditure 16.3
Amortisation/depreciation
- other ntangible assets ©2 03 [(\R )] ©on {02) @1} {2 6) {3.6)
- property, plant and equipment (19) 04) 04) 03 {0 5) 02 07n {4.4)
Exchange effect 0.1

Total amortsaton and depreciation

79
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Notes to the financial statements

1 Segmental analysis

Year ended 31 December 2013 — Continuing operations

Egererm Srnipe
w Garany Srance Spam Bords & Corgr Total
£m B <m om oo & £m |
Revenue
Total evenue 2979 1150 81.6 453 5.7 563 84738
Inter company saes (£.6) 2.9 2.1) {z.5} {i.4 k] {(14.5)
Sales to extemal customers 2933 1129 ™5 42.7 50.3 5.4 65333
Exchange effact ig6
Total sales to external customers 55319
Undarlying operating profit 210 6.5 42 4.7 2.6 - 350
Exchange effect 08
Total underlying operating profil 388
Amortsabon of acquered ntangibles {i-2}
Acqirshion related cosis (t-3
Tolal gperatng poofit 373 !
Finance expense 4.5) |
Finance income 2.1
Profit before tax 329 ‘
Tax 8.8} |
Profit for the year 24.1 ‘
[
Segment assets a1 354 340 23.2 242 328 2474 !
Exchange effect 4.7
252 1 !
Goodwil 912 E
Acqured intangibles 9.2 !
Cash 177 !
Deferred tax 109 |
Total assets 381 1 ’
Other segment items
Capital expenditure
- other intangble assels 04 0.5 04 03 02 48 66 |
— property, plant and equipment 26 06 02 03 18 16 69 i
Exchange effect 02 }
Total capital expenditure 137 \
I
Amaorusaton/depreciation !
- other mtangible assets - ©n on {0.1) 02 {18 3 |
- property, plant and equipment (16) 03 {03) ©3 ©4) (0 6} {3 5} |
Exchange effect {03} :
Total amortisation and depreciation 6 1) |

The table below detaills the ‘'management rate’ used and the actual exchange rates used for the pnmary exchange rate of Sterling to 1

Euro for the year and the comparative year

2014 2013 '
|

Management rate €1.25 €125 '

Actual average rate €1.244 €1182

Year end rate €1289 €1202

An analysts of goodwill by operating segment 1s included in note 8




Notes to the financial statements

2 Finance expense and ncome

ne 203
o s
Fance expense
Bark overdrafts and short tarm borowngs 1.0 07
Loans 16 23
Prvate placement note interest payshies 26 08
Interest on AS 19 rebement beneft ooligebons 11 05
63 45
Finance mcome
Bank and other short temm deposts 2 0.1}
6.1 44
3 Profit before tax
2014 2013
on o
The follcwing items have been ynicduded n amving at profit before tax.
Stafi costs (see note 24) 1353 1203
Cost of ewentones recognised as an expense and mcluded n cost of sales {see note 10) 491.7 444 6
Depreciation of property, plant and eguspment (note 9)
- Owned assets 43 35
- Under finance leases 0.1 0.
Amortisation of other mmangibles fincluded in distribubion costs) note 8) as 25
Amortrsation of acqured ntangibles fncluded n ‘amortisaton and acquistion related costs’
on the face of the ncome staterment) {note 8) 18 12
Acquesibon redated costs fincluded n "amortisabon and acquisihion related costs’
on the face of the income statement) 3o 13
Operating leases on property, plant and equipment 159 141
Repanrs and mantenance expenditure on property, plant and equipment 1.1 12
Trade recesvables smparment {note 11) {0.1) {04)
Gan on disposd of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets - 0y
External mvestments — profit on sale (see note 4) {0.5} -
Impament of goodwall (see note 8) 3.6 -
Restructunng costs 9.5 -
Net exchangs losses 05 01
Auditors’ remuneration
Services provided by the company’s auditors and associates
Fees payable for audit of parent company and consolidated financial statements 0.1 01
Fees payable for other services
Auditng of financial statements of assocates of the company pursuant to legislation
{including that of countries and temtones outside Great Brtan) 0.4 g2
Tax services 01 a3
Other services 05 o1

Acquisition related costs for the year ended 31 December 2014 nclude expenses and professional costs incurred on the acquisiton
of the Lonne business {in January 2014) together with fourteen other boit-on businesses acquired dunng the year Details of these

acquisiticns are given in note 23

Other services provided by the company’s auditors and associates pnmanly refates to due dibgence services
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Notes to the financial statements

4 Exceptional items
2114 Exceptional items

pd

Inchuded n operating profit

Buck & Hcloman recrganmisaion oosis
Impairment of Czech goodwil
Proceeds from disconirued busmess

Total exveptioral dams

BIBese

A total pre-tax operatng eoceptonal charge of £12.6 miion was recognised m 2014. This included the followmng chames arsing fom
the final phase of miegratng the Buck & Hickman busness: a £2.5 miion chargs for propenty retated costs upon the dosure of the
Buck & Heoloran Netional Drstribution Centre n Coventry and the merger of all supply chain operabons o the UK, mncluding an onerous
lease provesion charge of ©1 2 millon, A rrther £2.5 millon charge refates to headoount restructieng from the merger of the UK supply
chan andi finance suppont nctons dunng the year.

Folowng the acqusiions made dunng the year, othes restructunng actviies wn continental Europe resulted o further headoount and
other restructunng cosis of £4 5 milion beng incumed and recognised as an exceptond charge These acbons were taken in order
to oplnmuse our opergbons and reatse identfied synargies from the acquesions ncluding branch mergers. ofice re-localions, headoount
rabonaksation and charges ansing from the reprofiing of stock, brands and product ines on combined stockholdings.

A goodwill impasmnent charge of £3.6 million was made n the year n respect of the Czech business — see note B for further detals.

A credit of £0 5 milion was recognsed refating to the profit on disposal of our remaming mwestment n Lmangston Group Lirsted whach
had previousty been fully vatten down The profit on disposal has been recognesed as exceptonal as the previous koss on disposal of
the Lrvingston business was also recognised as an excepbonal item

2013 Exceptional items
There were no exceptional dems in 2013.

5 Taxation
2014 013
£m Bm
Current tax
Cument year (5.9} (9.6}
Poor year 14 0.2
(4.5} @ 4}
Deferred tax (note 18)
Current year {0.3} 0.8
Pnior year {1.4) ©2)
{1.7) 06
Taxation {6.2) (88)
Tax on tems taken to equity
Current tax on share based paymenis {0.1) 02
Current tax on pension schemes’ movements 04 04
Deferred tax on pension schemes’ movements 1.9 06
Deferred tax on share based payments (0.9) 05

Deterrad tax on exchange movements posted to reserves 0.1 05




Notes to the financial statements

5 Taxation

Factors affecting the tax charge for the year
Tie eflocine tax rate for the year of 35.0% s hugher 207132 higher) than the stendamd raie of conporation tax m the Unted Kmgdom.
The diffiorences are eplemred betove,

a4 b
frm o
Profit before tax 177 29
Profit before tax muttiplied by standand ratte of corpo@ation tax
m the UK of 21.5% (2013: 23.25%) (=¥ ] {7.6)
Eflects of
BExpenses not deductitle for tax purposes 0.1 1.3
Raducton in contingent tax Eabites - 0.7
Differer tax rates On Qverssas eammgs 049 {0.8)
Adusstments in respect of previous periods - 0.3)
Goodwll impament {05 -
Tax losses not recogresed (0.9 -
Ralease of deferred tax related to share plan awards {049 -
Impact of change i lax rate - 0.3
Toial taxaton 6.2 ®8.9)
Owerall efrective tax @te for the year 35.0% 271.0%

The standard rate of corporabon tax m the UK was redaced from 23% to 21% with efiect from 1 Aprl 2014, Acoordngly, the company's
profit chargeable to corporation tax for the pnor year was taxed at the effectve rate of 23.25% and at 21.5% in the current year. A
further reducbon in the UK corporation lax rate from 21% to 20% (effectve fom 1 Aprl 2015) was substantrely enacted on 2 July
2013 Accordingly the UK deferred tax assets and Rabiiies have been calculated at the substantvely enacted rate of 20%

6 Dividends
2014 2013
£ om
Final 2013 paxd July 2014 6 80p (Fnal 2012 6 40p) per 20p share 88 75
Intenm 2014 pasd November 2014 3.60p {2013 3 40p) per 20p share 46 40
134 115

In addition the directors are proposmng a final dmdend in respect of the tinancial year ended 31 December 2014 of 7.1p per share that
will absorb an estmated £9 2 mulion of shareholders’ funds it will be pard on 2 Judy 2015 to shamholders on the regester of members
on 5 June 2015
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Notes to the financial statements

7 Eamings per share
Basic eanmwngs per share s caloulatad by dvicéing the eamings atiributable {n ordinary shareholders by the weighted average number
of ordimary shares outstanding during the year, excliuding thase held i the emmployes share trust which ame teated as cancelled.

For dkred eamings per share, the wexghied average number of ordnary shares nssue s adiusted 1o assume conversion of afl diutve
potental ordinary shares. The only dass of potentaly diutve ordinary shares are the company’s ordnary shares contingently issuable
ender the group’s long term mcenive plan

Reconcilanons of the earmngs and wesghted averags mumber of shares used n the calautabons ane set out below

4
Exrangs  Eamangs per share Earsngs per share
£m Basic Diuted

Average number of shares n ssue (000} 125,554 123943
Total pence pence
Profit for the fnancal year 115 92 89
Amortisatian of acguered mtanginles (“amortsabon™

and acquesshon reltated costs 4.8
mparment of goodwdl 3s
Exceptional items {excluding enpasmment of goodvrd) 9.0
Tax on exceptonal dems 2.1
Tax on amortsaton and acguesiion redatad costs 0.8)
Earmungs belore amortisation, acqusizon retated costs and excepbonal demms 26.0 20.7 202

The wesghted average number of shares for the year reflects the impact of shares issued as a result of the placmg in Aprl 2014
(11,300,407 orcénary shares ssued).

2013

Eammgs Earmngs per shara Earnngs per share

Basc Dduers

£m
Average number of shares n issue (GO0} 117,562 121,250
Total pence pance
Profit for the financial year 24 1 205 129
Amortsabon of acquired mtangbles (famortsabon”)
and acquisthon related costs 25
Tax on amortisabon and acquision related costs {06
Earrings before amorisation and acqussihon retated costs 260 221 214

8 Intangible assets

Goodwilt Acqured iniangibles  Other - Software development
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 January 91.2 898 171 171 28.5 221
Exchange adjustments {8.5} 14 2.9) - {0.5) 01
Additions - - - - 6.5 67
Acquisiions 39.2 - 18.4 - 0.5 -
Dsposals - - - - {1.5) 049
At 31 December 121.9 a12 326 171 33.5 285
Accumulated impairment and amortisation
At 1 January - - 79 67 154 132
Exchange adjustments (0.2} - ©.7) - (0.4) 01
Charge for the year - - 1.8 12 35 25
Acquisitions - - - - 0.1 -
tmparrment 36 - - - - -
Disposals - - - - (19 o4
At 31 December 3.4 - 9.0 79 171 i54
Net book value

At 31 December 118.5 912 23.6 92 16 4 i31
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8 Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodvfll aisng represents the excess of the corsiderzion over the vallue of the assels acquired.

Acquired intangibles

The acquired mitargihles recogrsad en the anouiston of the Limme busmess in Jamuery 2014 comprised £4.9 milfion of trade names

which are considerad to have anintdeinie fide and £5.0 miion of customer relabonshnps which are considered to have estmated usetd
$ves of 20 years.

The acqured miangihles recodgrised on the other smaller, bolt-an acquisitons maoe dunng the year compnsed £4.5 rrilion of cusomer
refationships which are comsdered o rave estimated usehd ves of between 5 arnd 10 vears.

The camying valee of acquered miangibles compnses £9 5 milkon of trade names and £14.1 milton of customer relatomships,

The canyng value of acguved nianghbles recognsed on earber acourstions princpally comprses customer relationsiips whach ame
consdenad to have esbmated useid ves of between 5 and 10 years.

Other intangibles
Other mitangidles pancpally comprsa sofiware development. bn addihon certan incremental costs meured n the development phase
of signeficant strategic progects have been capealised and ze amortised over 5 years.

The amortisation of software development expendiure and stratege project development costs capitatsed has been charged in
distribubon costs.

Goodwil is camed at cost less amortisation to the date of tramsstion efiectve 1 January 2004, subject to review for poiental smpasment,
In accordance wath IAS 36 ‘Imparment of Assets” mparment tesing has been camed out by comparning goothwill phes assocated
operating assets with the expected value in use, calculated as the net gresent value of discounted future cash flows expected to be
derved from the assets

Goodwil rs allocated to the group’s cash generating units defined as the geographecal split of countnes s whach the group operates.
An operating segment-level summary of the goodwill allocation 15 shown below

Analysis of Goodvrill by operating segment

2014 2012
tm om

UK 209 18.4
France 6.1 55
Germany 340 344
Span 79 51
Benelux 88 8.3
Scandmava 206 -
Eastem Europe and Other 202 195
1185 a1 2

As explaned m note 1 above, following the acquisition of Lonne mn January 2014 the group has amended 1ts internat reporting and
accordingly a new Scandinavian operating segment has been added This change has been reflected in the table above

The expected value in use has been calculated using assumptions ansmg from management’s data and metnes used on an engong
basis These assumptions refiect managerment’s past expenence ansing fiom the apphcation of the group strategy.

Key assumptions are

> The cash generating operating units {*CGUs") are defined according to the country of operaton and related goodwill has baen
allocated on this basis

> The recoverable amount for each cash generatng operating und 15 determined from value-in-use calculations based on approved
budgets and five-year plan Pre-tax cash flows projected forward assume a growth rate into perpetuty not in excess of expected
GDP growih rates m each country These growth rates vary from 1 1% to 3 5% (2013 0 8% — 3 9%}

> The group’s methadology 15 10 use a projection penod of five years being the maamum penod over which detaled cash flows for
each CGU are prepared For penods after this five year peniod, the methodology applies a long term growth rate to denve a termmnal
value

> The key assumptions in these calculations relate to future revenue growth rates, gross margmn percentage and the discount rates
apphed

> Anominal pre-tax weighted average cost of capital {("WACC™ of 10 25% (2013 11 919%) has been used to discount future cash flows
Although based on a company specific WACC, it has been adjusted to reflect tugher long term financing costs than the company
currently expenences The WACC has been adjusted for tax and inflation rates in each of the countries that the company currently
operates
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8 Intangible assets

Pro-tax distount rake Pre-Taw oot rEe nfhalicys rate fon e
Cash gararsing unl 2014 I e M3
UK 9.74% 11.31% 204% 2 .D4%
France 11.18% 13.00% 112% 1.61%
Germany 10.74% 12.49% 157% 184%
Spain 10.67% 12.40% 1.05% 1.27%
Benclix 9.99% -~ 11.13% 11 60% — 12.94% 1.13% - 1.23% 0.82% - 1.21%
Scandinavia 10.38% nfa 1.43% n/a
Eastern burope & Other 839% - 10.32% 9 74% - 11.09% 1.13% - 2.86% 1.23% — 3.00%

Sensitwty tests have been parformed. The key sensitaty s forecast trading proft and apphing a sencrtraty m trading proft generates
ansrparment M the Czech Repubdc busiress, whach s ncluded in the Eastern Brope & Other oparating segmant. The Czech business,
a OGU dentdied n 2013 as having margnal headroom, has continued to experence challiengng markst condibons and has posted
losses 1 2014 These losses have ansen due to the Blegal actions taken by one of the former owners of the business, in relation to winch
a loss daim setiement has been receved i the year. A tumaround programme has been mstigated by management and, athough a
modesi improvernent has been seen, the process s taking longer than engmally anticpatad. As a resift, the camyng value of this
CGU s less than s recoverable amowtt, resulting in the Czech goodwill beng fully smpaired. The wparment charge of £3.6 miion
has been includad as an excepbonal dem vathin the consoidated ncome stalement. No other class of asset was smpared.

The CGLI wath the next lowest headroom s Haly, which postad strong growth i 2014, Based on thes past expenence and taking nto
account current market condivons, managerment have concluded that there will be no detenoraon n the trading profit over the projection
penad whch will ssgnaficantly rnpaci fulire cash flows  As a result, no reasonably possible change n the key assumpbons woukd msult
in amatenal mparment of any of the CGUs, with the exxccepbion of the Czech Republic. Should such a change ocows, this would represent
a inggenng event to ndicate an mparmert; review may be necessary. In accordance with IAS 36 ‘Imparment of Assets”, a Al sipasment
review wauld then be undertaien on the relevant assets withn the CGU

9 Property, plant and equipment

2014 013
Land and g Equip Total 1and and buldngs Equpment Totat
m tm £m £m £m om
Cost
At 1 January 19.4 393 S8.7 16.7 363 530
Exchange adustments {0.6) {1.4) {(2.0) 01 G4 05
Addtons 1.5 83 98 26 44 70
Acquisibons 0.1 34 35 - - -
Reclassificaton _ - - - {©0.1) o1
Drxsposats - (14) ] - a7 0N
At 31 December 204 48.2 68.6 194 393 587
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 110 29.8 408 97 285 382
Exchange adjustments (0.3) (0.9) {12} - 05 05
Charge for the year 10 34 4.4 13 23 36
Acquisitions - 2.0 20 - - -
Reclassificaton - - - - 01 01
Drsposals - (11) (1.1} - (18 (i 6}
At 31 December 11.7 332 49 10 298 408
Net book value
At 31 December 87 15.0 23.7 84 85 179
2014 2013
£m £m
At 31 December
Assets held under finance leases (land and buildings and equipment included above)
Cost 1.3 13
Depreciation (1.0} {1 Q)

a3 03
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10 Inventories

The group consumed £491.7 milton 2013 £444.6 milion) of itveniory durng he year

Fnshed goods mventones of £133.9 miion (2013 £108 6 mikon) comprise entraly goods for resalis. Fimshed goods nvemicnes of
£3.0 mon (2073: £4.3 mifhon) are canted at v valus tess costs o sell beng lower than cost.

11 Trade and other receivables

2014 203
fm om
Amounts dup veithen one year

Trade receivables 1224 018
Prowtson for imparnment of recesaties 1.0 (2.4}
Net trade receivables 120.7 99.5
Other recenvables 6.1 97
Prepayments and accrued income a6 3.3
1304 1125

The mavement in the prowssion for impasment of recervables s analysed as ollows
204 2513
om om
At 1 January 24 3.3
Income statement {credit) ncluded in distribubon costs {0.1) 0.9
Acqursthons 05 -
Recovered (0.8} {0-2)
Whitten off (as uncollectable) 0.3 {0 3}
At 31 December 1.7 24

Concentrations of credhit nsk with respect to trade recevables are immited due to the group’s customer base bewng large and unretated
Accordingly, management consider that there s no further credit nsk above the cument prowission for impamment

Certan European subsidianes of the group transferred recevable balances amounting to €12.9 mifkon (£10 0 mifion} (2013 €6 4
million, £5 3 mifion} to banks, under bills of exchange without recourse, 1 exchange for cash at the year end.

12 Cash and cash equivalents

2014 2013

fm &m

Cash at bank and m hand 10.9 176
Short term bank deposits 0.1 01
11.0 177

Cash and cash equvalents compnse cash in hand and deposits which are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which
are subject to masignificant nsk of changes in vatue and have an onginal matunty of three months or less at acquisiton

13 Trade and other payables

2014 20143

£m £m

Trade payables 1226 1120
Other taxes and social secunty 11.7 84
Other payables 0.1 03
Accruals 18.1 166

152.5 1373
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14 Financial liabikties — borrowings

e 2013
[2 Y £
Carent
Unmsacwrsad bark and ather bosmowings 03 €2
Unsecured toans less than one year 31 37
Fmence lease commutments due withn one year 02 01
36 40
Non-cunrent
Unsecured bank lcan repayable
Between one and tivo years 262 g7
Between two and fve vears - 325
Over fne years 663 333
925 685
Finance lease commitments
Between one and hwo years o1 01
Between two and tve years 01 -
Over five years - -
02 o1
927 66.6

Bank loans are denommated pnmarily in Euros and in Sterling which bear interest based on EURIBOR and LIBOR respectvely. The
effeciive nterest rate on bank borrowings for the year to 31 December 2014 was 4 8% {year to 31 December 2013 4 5%)

In July 2011 the company entered nito a five year revolving mulicurency credit finance faclity winch prosaded for borrowangs of €100.0
midon Thys facikly can be drawn until it expires on 30 June 2016 The amount of finance avaitable under thes facility as at 31 December
2014 was €100 0 million (£77.6 miion)

In 2013 the group supplemented its existing borrowing faciites with additsonal long-term funding raised by the issue n June 2013 and
July 2013 of two tranches of €20 midhon of pavate placement notes totafng €40 mifion m total These private placement notes are
tssued under a private shelf facility, are unsecured, bear Interest at a fixed rate and mature m July 2023.

Dunng 2014, the group issued an additonal €45 4 milion of pavate placement notes in two tranches, €35.4 miion m January and
€30 miffion n December These notes mature it 2021 and 2025 respecinvely, are unsecured and bear nterest at a fuced rate.

In January 2015 a further issue of €30 million of pnvate placement notes was made - these notes bear interest at a fixed rate and
mature in 2025

15 Financial liabilites

Fair values of financial liabiliies
The group has mainly Euro denommated borrowings which it has designated as a hedge of the net investment i sts subsidianes n
continental Europe The far value of these Eura borrowings at 31 December 2014 was £58 5 milion (2013 £33 3 mullion}

The foregn exchange gan of £5 3 milion {2013 gan of £0 3 million} on the translation of these borrowings into Sterling at the closing
exchange rate has been recogrused in the translation reserve

Where market values are not avadable, far values of financial assets and habiites have been calculated by discounting expected cash
flows at prevating interest rates and by applying year end exchange rates The carmying amounts of short-term borrowings approxmate
to book value and there are no significant differences between the book value and far value of non-current bormowings

The table below analyses the matunty profile of the group’s financial labihties based on the remaning penod from the balance sheet
date to the contractual matunty date Short-term payables, including trade payables and accruals, are excluded from the analysis as
they are considered to form part of the group’s day-to-day operating cycle The amounts disclosed in the table below are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows including an estimation of the future nterest cost
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15 Financial habilities

Mateily of financial Rabilities
The maturity proflle of the camyng vaiue of the groups non-cuent febdides was as liows:
Freree Doy Dervatne
et fowmrs o GrEe e l=tittes Totd
an €m & fm m
At 31 December 2014
n rmore than cne year but not more than wo years {26.2} £0.1) (.13 - 274)
in more than twoe years bt mot more than Bve years - .13 5.7 - 5.8)
Ik mare than &ve years {66.3) - 0.4 - {66.7)
2.5} 02 7.2) - 89.9)
At 31 December 2013
n more than one year bui not mom then too years 3.3 0.1 0.2 - 2.6}
in more than two years but not more than fve years {39.2} - - 0.2} 39.4)
tn more than {ve years 3E89) - - - $38.9)
{81 4) {0-1) 0.2 {2} 819

The group's financial Eablises under the private placement koan notes ase at ficed mizrest rate and compnse dravwn Euro loan notes.
The group’s remanng financal Eabdibes are al at fioating rates and compnse drawn Sterling and Euro bank fackibes whech are manly
central mutb-curency com mitied nes. The unutiised portion of these central commtted bries amounts o £51 8 miflion (2013 £€50.2
muibon} winch s avaiable to the group up lo 30 June 2016 and cames interest based on cumency USOR

Derivative fi ia) Babikt
Derrvative financial Rabiies compnse the far value of mterest raie swaps used for hedging the group's interest rate nsk. The far vatues
reflected above have been determined by reference fo ava'lable market nforrnahon at the batance sheet date.

The financal nsles to which the group 1s exposed are those of market nsk, credit nsk, kquidity nsk and capital managemant nsk. An
explanaton of each of thess nsks and how the group manages them s set out n the: financial nsk sechon on pages 82 1o 83

Leval 2 hedgng denvatves compase the (aw value of mtesest rate swaps used for hedging the group’s inferest rate nsk. The far values
are estmated by discounting expected future contractual cash flows using prevaiing nterest rates and valimng any amounts denormna‘ed
n forexgn currencies at the exchange rate prevatiing at the balance sheet date These financial mstruments are mciuded on the balance
sheet at far value, denved from observable rmarkel prices (Level 2 as defined by [FRS13 Financal Instuments Drsclosures) There
wera no transfers between Levels 1 and 2 dunng the vear, and there wera no changes in vatuabion techmgues dunng the year

The far value of the followng financial assets and kabilites approximate ther carrying amount

> trade and other recervables
> cash and cash equvalents
> trade and other payables

Minimum lease payments
The minimum lease payments under finance leases fall due as follows

2014 2033

£&m £m
Not later than one year 0.2 01
Later than one year but not more than five years 0.2 C1

More than five years - -

0.4 02
Book value of finance lease habiliies 04 02
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16 Provisions

Propery 2010 43
Resnoireg ehigors Ot Total Tartah
&m o m o m
At i Januery o4 - 02 [T ] 27
BExchange adhustment Q1 - - o.1 0.1
Charged o the income sfatement i the year (rote 4) 45 25 - 70 -
Utised i the year {3.6) 03} - 19 22
Refsased n the year - - 03 023 -
At 31 December 1.4 22 — a6 06

Amounts falkng due:
Wihan one year a6 06
In more than one year but not move than two years - -
Totad 36 06

The charge to the awcome staterment in the year above compnses the headeount and ciher resinuctunng cests relatng to acqusitions
mads n the year, together with property related costs incurad on the dosure of the Budk & Hickman natonal distribubon centre.

In addition to the charges to the mcome statemeant above, the exceplional charge for the year aso indluded cosis mowred on the
wte-down of fixed assets and on the reprofiing and rabonaksing of stock knes, These asset watie-down charges do not form part of
the movements wathun the provision.

The provisions are eoecied to be utiised wathen one year. Other provisions related to wamanty clams.

Property obigabons prowision compises an onerous lease provision relating to the dlosure of the Buck & Hickman MNational Destributon
warehouse (n Coventry which was recently vacated by the group as part of the inal phase of ntegrating the Buck & Hickman Dusiness.,
Thes prowision 1s based on an assessment of the bkefihood of the group being able to sublet the warehouse n the short-term based
on a report from an mdependent valuer, and compnses the rent, rates and estmated diapidations. This onerous f2ase prowvision s
subyect to uncertainty in respect of the prospects of subletting the property and the final negotiated setdernent of any dilapidaton
clams with the landiord

17 Deferred and contingent consideration

204 2013

fm £m
At 1 January 05 47
Exchange adjustment (0.2 -
Acquisiions 73 -
Pad {0.3) 42
At 31 December 73 05
Amounts falling due

Within one year 0.1 03
In more than one year but not more than two years 1.1 02
in more than two years but not more than five years 5.7 -
in more than five years 0.4 -
Total 73 05

The amounts recogrised on acquisition are management's best estmaties of the amounts which will be payable Both the amounts
and the timing of future payments are uncertain as they are dependent upon the future performance of the businesses acquired
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18 Deferred tax
2014 2014 24 A b r K Wie
Aoreioran Pemson Srare fax
coptd Steanoss Neztliy PG eses ProusrE Yozl
&m B om om £m tm
Assets
At 1 Jenuary - 56 32 2.1 - 109
Exchange adjuszment - - - {0.2) - 02}
Taken to equty - 19 0.9 - - 10
Income statement credit - - 0.4) 10 - 05
At 31 Oecermrber - 7.5 1.9 29 - 123
Liabdites
AL 1 Jarmary (5.0 - - - 8.5) (3.5)
Exchange adustment - - - - 1.0 1.0
Deferad 3% 0N a0qUISITIONS 0.1 - - - (4.5} (4.4}
Adusiments ansng from change in
tax rale {faken to moome siatement} c1 - - - ©.1) -
Taken to equaty - - - - 0.4 04
Income statament charge 0.4} - - - (1.8 23
At 31 December (1.2} - - - {13.6) {(14.8)
2014 2012
£m £m
Net total
At 1 Jarnuary 14 01
Exchange adjustiment 08 02
Deferred tax on acqusiions 1.4) -
Net amount taken to equity 14 09
Income statement charge 1.7 06
At 31 December {2.5) 14

Deferred tax 15 calculated m full on temporary differences under the hiability method using a tax rate applicable to the relevant pnsdiction
Deferred tax assetls have been recognsed n full on taxabile losses and provisions where realisation of the tax benefit from these temns
15 probable The deferred tax on losses not recogmised amounts {0 £3 4 miion (2013 £3.6 rmulion).

No deferred tax s recogmsed on the unremitted earnings of overseas subsidianes and associates as there will be no addiiona! hability
ansing on repatnation to the UK. Based on current capital investment pians, the group expects 1o be able to claimn capstal allowances
i excess of depreciabon in future years at a ssimidar level to the current year

The movemnents in deferred tax assets and kabdiies (pror to the offsetting of balances within the same unsdiction as permitted by
IAS) dunng the year are shown above Deferred tax falling due after more than one year amounts to £2 5 mifion (2013 €1 4 mulkon)

19 Share capital

2014 2014 2013 2M3
Nurmber £m Number £m

Ordinary shares of 20p each

Allotted and fully pad

At 31 December 129,404,481 259 118,004,074 236

Resolution One passed at the General Meeting held on 29 October 2009 removed the hirmit on the comparny on its abilty to 1ssue
shares Accordingly the company has no imit on authonsed share capdal (2013 no firit)

Placing

On 9 Apnl 2014 the company announced an issuance of 11,300,407 new ordinary shares at 475 pence per share through a placing
with institutional investors, representing 9 6% of the total 1ssued share capital at a 2 66% discount to the prevading market pnce The
placing was 1 B5 times oversubscnbed and raised a net £52 4 milion proceeds, being gross proceeds onissue of £53 7 million less
expenses of £1 3 milkon
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19 Share capital

Ordiranlly, the excess of the net proceads gver he nominal value of the share capdal issued would be cred ted to a non-dstriutabis
share prerrium aocoust. However, the placng was effected throwgh a siructire which resulted n the excess of the net proceeds over
the nomra! vatue of the share capisl being recognsed within /etamed eamengs wmcler section £12 of the Companies Act 2008, Of the
£50.1 mikion recognisad within retaned eamngs, £4.7 milon s considered o be nom-dstritytahie

Purchase of own shares

Durnng the year the company aoqured 468,510 of its own shares of 20p each twowgh the Brammer pic Employes Share Ownership
Trust {“the Trust) for an aggregats consderabon of £1.614,758, which has been deducted from shareholders” equity. The shares are
held by the Trust 0 meet vestags under the goup’s performance share plans and shere matching plans. Tranches of these pens
vested duning the year and 335.045 shares were tansiemed 1o dieciors and semcor maragers im oroer (0 mest vestings under these plans.
2.091 opitons veere exercised during the year under the group s emplloyes share option schemes wilh exerarse proceeds of £2,080

At 31 Cecembier 2074 tne Trust held a total of 128,056 shares n the company in ordar to meet part of the compenys Eabiives under
the performance share plans and share matchung plars. The Trust deed contans a wanver prowsion n respect of these shares.

Ovdinasy shares issued
During the year the Trust subsoribed for 100,000 ordnary shaves of 20p each at par

20 Share based paymentis

Movemenis on share plans dunng the year were as follows

1 January Exprosed Vestag but 31 Decemrber  Oxie Yom which
Price per share 2014 Grartsxt Vested ot exercoed” Lagsed a4 exprosakte Expry gte
Executive share option schemes
1995 scheme
90p 12874 - - — {12,874 - 15Apr 2007 15 Apr 2014
99.5p 62,000 - - - {62,000} ~ 6Sep2007 6Sep2014
1997 scheme
99.5p 2,091 - {2,091) - - - 6S5ep2007 6Sep20i4
Total 76,965 - {2,091) - {74,874) -
Performance share plan
Op 511,126 - - - - 511,128 Spang 2012
Op 127,733 - (19.421) - - 108,312 Autumn 2012
Op 906,055 - - - - 906,055 Spang 2013
Op 147,472 - (72,527) - - 74945 Autumn 2013
Op 484,932 - {AB4,932) 440,516 - 440,516 Spang 2014
Op 269,388 - {259,388) 181,434 (4,254) 177,180 Autumn 2014
Op 931,516 - - - {931.516) - Spang 2015
Op 594,351 - - —~  (594.351) = Autumn 2015
Op 842,478 - - - - 642478 Spnng 2016
Op 417 406 - - - (10,796} 406,610 Autumn 2016
~ 648,434 - - - 648434 Spang 2017
- 444 367 - - - 444 367 Autumn 2017
Total 5,022,457 1,002,801 (836.268) 621,950 (1,540.917) 4,360,023
Share matching plan
Op 511,212 - - - - 511,212 Spning 2012
Op 412,118 - - - - 412,118 Spnng 2013
Op 367 530 - (367,530) 246,802 - 246,802 Sprng 2014
Op 342,209 - - - (342.209) ~ Spnng 2015
Op 302,135 - - - - 302,135 Spnng 2016
- 246,728 - - - 246,728 Spring 2017
Total 1,935,204 248,728  (367,530) 246802 (342,209) 1,718,995
Total 7,034,626 1,339,529 (1,205,889) 868,752 (1,958,000) 6,079,018

Details of the terms of the Executive Share Option Scheme (*ES0S"} Performance Share Plan ("PSPT) and Share Matching Plan (*SMP")
are disclosed in the remuneration report

*Under the terms of the PSP and SMP, i respect of shares that have vested, employees are entiled 1o exercise their opbon 1o ake
up the shares for a penod of seven years from the vesting date
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20 Share based payments

In aocordance with IFRS2, the far value of equity-setiled shere-based payments to employess 15 determired at the date of grant and is
expensed on a straight Ine basss over the vesting penod based on the group's estrmate of shares the: wil eveniuslly vest. A crarge of
0. 1 mllleny 20183 £2.7 million] was cecogrsed n the year n respect of enrployee share Oased prymant ofans; the seduction in the charge
camparned with pror year refilects the kepsimg of the 2012 PSP and SMIP share awares which were due to vest in 2015 but whech will
not vest as the as the performance criteniz have not been achieved. The plans &l comprise eguity-settied share tased ransactions.
The f3ir value is measuned wsing a Black-Scholes pricing model. The fair value of the TSR condidons glement of the 2017 £ awands has
been calaudated using scerario-modefing and is the expecied outcome of mestng the perionmance critera The far value per opion

granted and the assumozons used m the caloudabons ae as foliows:

Shams Maichrg Pizn Parfonrernce Stae fien
Axrards granted in the year ended 31 December 2014
Gramt daiz 19 Masch 20142 19 March 2014 27 Augarst 2014
Share pnce at grant dale 486.5p 486 .5p 4230p
Exercise price /a na wa
Number of shares under option Gnebal grand) 246,728 648,434 444 367
Veszng Period fyvears) 3 3 3
Expected Volatlty 0.33 0.33 03]
BExpectad opbon kie (years) 3 3 3
Risk free rate 1.08 108 108
BExpected dvidend yeld 2.10 210 2.45
Possibdty of ceasng employment before vesting 10% 10% 10%
Expectation of mesting performance critena 100% 100% 100%
Far value per ophon 488p 486p 423p

Shaxe Mxiching Pien Pertormarnce Shane Plan
Awards granted i the year ended 31 December 2013
Gram: date 19 March 2013 19 March 2013 12 August 2013
Share prce at grant date 374 0p 374.0p 434 75p
Exescise pnce na nfa wa
Number of shares under option {irutial grani) 302.135 658,923 417,406
Vesting Penod (years) 3 3 3
Expected Volatility 0.38 038 035
BExpected opton life {years) 3 3 3
Risk free rate 0.30 030 0.70
Expected dividend yiekd 2.63 343 351
Possibility of ceasing employment before vesting 10% 1076 10%
BExpectation of meeting performance cntena 100% 100% 100%
Far value per option 374p 374p 434 75p

The expected volatility 1s based on istoncal volatiity over the last three years The expected ke s the average expected penod to exercrse
The nsk free rate of retum s the yeld on zero-coupon UK Govemment bonds of a term conaistent with the assumed option fe
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20 Share based payments

A reconcilztion of option moveriens during ithe year to 31 Deperber 2014 5 shown befowr

2000 204 203 2013
Weighted asesage WuzgTeD auemns
exervioe peiios EXTTES D0
Nesmber Pence Nurnber Perce
Share option and savings related schemes
Ouistanding 3t | Lanuary 76,965 a8 142 257 99
Bxerorsed (2,091) 995 £34.385) S8
Lapsed 74,874 28 (20.905) 102
Quistanding at 31 December - - 76,955 838
Exarcsable at 31 December - - 76,955 -
Performance share plan
Oustanding at 1 Jamuasy 5022 457 - 4,965,280 -
Grented 1,092,801 - 1,076,329 -
Vested and exercised (836,268) - {1.975723) -
Vested but not exercrsed 621,950 - 1096879 -
Lapsed (1,540,917} - {141 309) -
Ouistanding at 31 December 4,360,023 - 5,022,457 -
Exercisable at 31 Decerrber 2,218,134 - 1.692,386 -
Share matching plan
Outstanding at 1 January 1,935.204 - 1,969,679 -
Granted 246,728 - 302,135 -
Vested and exercised {367,530) - 737217 -
s Vested but not exercised 246,802 - 412,118 -
g Lapsed (342,209) - {11.511) -
£ Outstanding at 31 December 1,718,995 - 1,935,204 -
.E_ Exercisable at 31 December 1,170,132 - 923.330 -
£
8
[
8
21 Reconciliation of net cash to movement in net debt
2014 2013
©m fm
Net (decrease)increase m cash and cash equivalenis {5.9) 153
Nel ncrease m borrowings (14.3) {137
(20.2) 16
Lcans acqgared {16.7) -
Exchange 4.5 {07}
Movement in net debt 32.4) 09
Net debt at 1 January (52.9) (53 8)
Net debt at 31 December (85.3) (52 9}
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014 203
£n om
Proft for the year 15 74.1
Tacxrion 62 8.8
Depreceaxhon/amortssion of propexty, plant and equepment and other mtangible assets 9.7 7.3
Share opihons — value of employes senvices ad 2.7
Imparment of goodwil 36 -
Gamn on disposal of property, plant and equapment and miangble assels - 0. 14
Fnancing expense — net 61 4.4
Changes i working capital {exchuding the effect of
exchange movements and fair value adjustments}
Increase m sventory {18.7) 9.7}
increase i trade and other recavables 6.3 2.1
Increase i trade and other payables and provsions 15 101
Cash generated from operations 137 455

23 Acquisitions

On 14 January 2014 the group acqured 100% of Lérnme a leading distriouton of ndustnal products operatng predomenantty m Norway
and Sweden, for an il cash consideraton of NCK 190.1 meon (€19 0 mibon) together with net debt assumed on complabon of
NOIK 188 1 mifion (£18 8 milion).

The acquessbon has been accounted for as a single transaction as, under the temns of the sale and purchase agreement, the group 1s
entiled to the full economic benelits assoctated with 100% ownership of the business

The residual excess aver the net assets acquared ts recogresed as goodwill m the financal siatements.

The consideration pad or payable in the respect of acqusibons compnses amounts pad on completon, deferred conssderation and
paymenis which are contingent on the continued employment for forrer owners of the businesses acquued. IFRS 3 requres that any
paymenis that are contingent on future employment are charged to the mcome statement. All other consideration has been aflocated
agamnst the dentified net assets, with the excess over the net assets acquired recogrused as goodwil. Acquisthion expenses such as
professional fees are chargad to the mcome statement within amortisaton of acquired mtangibles and acqustion related costs i the
Income statement.

In accordance with IFRS 3 'Business Combinations’, the process to dentily the fair values of the assets acquired and Eabdiies assumed,
including the separate idenfication of intangible assets 1s apphed to each acquisiion with assistance prowded by external valuation
specialists where appropnate Untl this assessment 1s complete, the farr value allocation penod remams open, up to 8 maxymum of 12
months from the refevant acquision date

Far value adustments are made to the assets acqured and labiities assumed to the extent that further information and knowledge
come to ight that more accurately reflect conditions at the acquisiion date, and the adustments made have mpacted assets acquured
to reflect more accurately the estimated realisable or settlement value and have impacted habilties to record onercus commtments or
other commitments exstng at the acqusition date but not recognised by the acquree Adjustments have alsc been made to reflect
the associated tax effects

Dunng the year, the exercise to separately identify the intangible assets acquired for Lonne was completed, together with the final
determination of the far values of assets and labdities acquired which are shown in the table below
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23 Acquisitions

isition of L bsi
Bock wit e ar vaie Fan wabue of
2 acpusiion acjstments RENEE AocLiren
m £m Em
ntangible assets - i39 139
Properly, plant and equpment 13 0.5) 06
reniones 83 0.7} 7.6
Recawvables 6.2 o4 o8
Payables {7.3) 09 B2
Cash and cash eguivalents 24 - 2.4
Bank overdrafis 4.0 - .o
Extemnal loans {16.3) - {183}
Teax - current and defered 0.5 @a.n 3.2}
Net assets acquired 9.1) 7.7 {1.4)
Goodwil 218
Consideration wholly satished in cash
{inchuking deferred or coningent consxderabon pre-discounting of £1 5 million) 20.4

Fair value agustrents identriied nclude £0 7 miion provision aganst slow-moving and obsolete swentory foliowing a detaded revew
of gwentory held, £0.5 mion writs down of fied assets to net realisable value, £0.9 milion provsion recogresed melabng o oneous
conitracts, diapsdabons and other commaments exesting at the acquisison balance sheet date, and £0 4 milhon adjustment to recenvables
parmaridly relaiing to customer clasm provasions.

The outfiow of cash and cash eguavalents on the acquisition of Lonne (excluding deferred or contingent consedierabon of £1.6 méion)
15 calcutated as follows

£m

Cash considerabon 18.8
Bank overdrafts {net of cash acqured) 16

204
In addition, dunng the year the group made a number of smafl acquisitons, afl of which were paid for in cash, compasing
Country #onth accusred Arruaised revenues (Em} Product group
Germany March 71 Tools &Generd Mamtenance (“TAGM™)
France Apri 86 Fud Power
Sweden (4 busimesses) Apri to June g8 Beanngs & MPT
Span July 28 Persond Protectve Equrpment
ttaly July 31 Mechancal Power Transimussion ("MPT™)
Netherlands October 22 Bearings & MPT
Poland October 17 Hydraudics & MPT
Czech Republc October 84 Beanngs & MPT
Italy November 29 T3GM
Span Novermber 34 TAGM
UK November 38 Beanngs & MPT
Total 53.8

Farr vakse adjustments refating to those acquisitions made i the first half of the year have been finalised whist those relahing to acquisitons
made in the second half of the year remain ongoing and accordingly the fair values presented are prowsional The exercise to separately
dentify the intangible assets acqured for these acquisitions 1 proceeding in ine with the farr value review




Notes to the financial statements

23 Acquisitions

Detaks of the book vahes together with the provisonal 21 values of these bolt-on acgusidions are shown n the tabie below,
Acquesition of bolt-on businesses

Prowsoral Eroensgret

Sogh, vElue tar wlie arwhe of

=t acquston 2duriTens ST OB

om Em m

Iniangible assets - 45 45

Property, plant and equipmen 0.7 0.1) 05

Imventoes 78 (1.6) 6.2

Recenables .7 0.3 115

Payabies {11.5) 0.5) {(12.0)

Cash and cash eguivalertds 33 - 33

Bank overdrafis {3.5) - 3.5)

Exterrd loans {0.4) - 0.4}

Tax — current and deferad (0.6} os {1.4)

Net assets acquired 75 1.3 83

Goodwil 174
Consideration to be wholly satisfied m cash

{including deferred and contmgent cons:derabon pra-discounting of £6 0 milon) 26.2

The outfiow of cash and cash eguvalents on the acquistion of the bolt-on bisnesses (exchuding deferrad or contingent consideration
of £6 0 milion) 15 calcufated as follows

tm

Cash consderation 202
Bank overdrafts (net of cash acquened) 02
204

Far value adjustments wientfied prmarily relate to inventory prowsions for slow-moving and obsolete mwentory and ditapxdations
provisions on leased property

Acqusibons made dunng the year ended 31 Becember 2014 contributed £68 5 mifion to the group’s revenue and £2 3 milion to the
group's profit after tax

The estimated contnbutions of al the businesses acqurred dunng the year to the results of the group, as If the acquisiions had been
made at the beginnmg of the year are as follows

2014

€m
Revenue 98.2
Profit after tax 35

Thes nformation s not necessarily ndicative of the results of operatiens that would have occured had the purchase been made at the
beginning of the year presented or the future resuits of the combined operations

Acquistion refated expenses of £3 0 milion were incurred on these acquisttions which are disclosed within amortisation of acquired
intangibles and acqusition refated costs in the income statement.

The goodwill recogrised above includes certain intangible assets that cannot be separately identified and measured due to ther nature
The acquisitons prowide significant opportunities for further development of the group's growth sirategy Such opportunity and the
assembled workforce inherent in the acquired business cannot be measured as separately identfiable ntangible assets The goodwill
recogrised s not deductible for tax purposes
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24 Employees and key management

2004 a3
fm am
Employee and related costs for the geoup during the year
Wages and salanies 1093 847
Scoal secutity costs 232 201
Othex pension costs fwie 27) 2.7 238
Bty setdled share based payments (nole 20} Qa1 2.7
1383 1203
Kexnber Mlurber
Average number of employees, including executive directors
UK 1,445 1,406
Germany 506 485
France 421 356
Spam 269 234
Benshux 212 216
Scandinava 167 -
Eastermn furope and Other 612 543
3,632 3.241
The composibon of the segments comesponds with the segments shown in noie 1 above
Key management compensation
2014 2013
m om
Short lerm employoe benefits 34 4.2
Post employment benefits 02 0.1
Equity settied share based payments 0.1 27
3.7 70

The key management figures shown above nclude all the directors together wath members of the Brammer executve team as detaded

on pages 30 and 31.

Detaed disclosures of directors’ remuneration are given in the Remunerabon Report on pages 57 to 62 Detalks of directors pension
entitiements, together with detaits of benefits accrued on serace completed up to 28 February 2006 under the dafined benefit scheme
which was clesed to fulure accrual at that date, are given in the Remunerabion Repaort on pages 59 and 60.

25 Operating lease commitments — total future minimum lease payments

Property Velucles, plant and equigpment
2014 2013 2014 2013
Em £m tm £m

The future aggregate minmum lease payments under

non-cancellable operating leases are as follows
Within one year 99 91 5.1 51
Between two and five years 215 184 55 72
After five years 132 102 - -
446 377 106 123
26 Future capital expenditure

2014 2013
£m £m
Commitments for which contracts have been placed 0.2 02




Notes to the financial statements

27 Pension commitments

UK Schemes

The UK group cperztas the Brammer Seavices Limi‘ed Retwermnen? Benel! Schems, whnch wrrtl 28 Febnary 2006, provided berefs
on 2 ina salary and defined contibubon basis. Wireh effect from 1 March 2008, the deined benetit saction of the scheme wes closed
to future accrual Bosting members of the delfimed benefit section were offered memibershp of the defined contibuton section of the
schema. The dafined benetft scheme s funded by the group and contribubors are peid as detenmned by the actuany followng discussions
vath the rustaes and the company. The assels of the scheme are hald n nominse accounts sepasatz from the growp's fnances under
the control of the trusices. An mnvesiment resnesy took place m Novernber 2007 and changes to the exdsting avangement were camed
out ;1 2008. The current fund managers are Legal & Generd Investment Manragement, Fidakly Invesimens, BlackRock fovestrment
Management and Banng Asset Management, under a pooled arvangament in each case. Withn the poedled ind the tnustees beve no
mvesiment mn the share capetal of the company.

The schemea operzes under UK trust taw and the tust is a separate legal entity from the comparty. The scheme is governed by a board
of trustees whech mcludes an ndependent trustes. The tustess are required by law io act in the best nieests of scheme members.
The schems exposes the company to actuarial nsks including longewty nsk, nterest rate nsk, and marke! frvestment) rsk.

Company contribubons to the defined benefit scheme dunng the year were beng made at the rate of 7.2% of contibutory sakary wp
to February 2006. Folowng completion of the trennial actuanal valuaton as at 31 Decermnber 2008, the company agreed a defice
funding plan with the trustees of the scheme to make payments of £2.7 miion per anmuern, ndexed for nflabon, i the years 2010 to
2023 mclusive. Employer conbiibubions for 2045 are currendly estmmated to be £3.3 miion.

The latest completed tiennsal actuanal valuabon of the scheme was camed out as at 31 December 2011, usaing the defined accrued
beneft method {the same method that was used at the previous valuation), by anindependent actuary emploved by Barnett Waddingham
LLP: The assumptons, whech were agreed between the company and trustees, that have the most significant efiect on the resulis of
the valuation are those refated to the rates of mtum on mvestmenis and the rates of mcrease in futize pnce nflahon and pensions.
Over the long term, the returns on rvestiments backang the scheme’s Kab#ties were assumed to be 5.75% per annum before retrarment
and 3 50% per annum after retrement. For pensions n payment fior both current pensioners and non-retred members) the retrm on
undertsng nvestments was assumed to exceed futre pension mereases (in excess of the guaranteed munmuam pensson} by 0 65% pes
annum The valuahon showed that the market value of the scheme's assets was £91.2 millon as at 31 December 201 1, whech epresented
76% of the value of the benelits that had accrued to members at that date. The next thennal valuation 1s due to be completed as at
31 December 2014.

The wesghted average duration of the defined benefit obbgauon at 31 December 2014 s approximately 19 years (2013: 21 years).

Dunng 2013, the scheme purchased an nsurance policy with Pensions Insurance Corporation, covenng a subset of the pensioner
tabdiies The policy was purchased wath the proceeds from the sale of the scheme’s gilt holdings. A value has been placed on the
nsurance pobcy which s equivalent to the fiabdity matched by the pokicy (approximately £19 5 midlon).

A defined contnbubion scheme, the “Brammer Services Defined Contribubon Pension Scheme®, was taunched on 1 January 2002 for
new UK employees joming the group and membershyp of that scheme was coffered to existing members of the defined benefit scheme
with eifect from 1 March 20086, the date at which the defined benefit scheme was closed lo future accrual The charge in the year for
this scherne was £1 4 milion {2013 £1 4 millon)

Dutch Scheme

The pension scheme operated by the group in the Netherlands 1s a defined benefit scheme that prowdes benefits related to service
and salary The ongnal plan based on final pay was closed to new members on 1 January 2003 New employees jomning the scheme
after that date partcipate in a defined benefit scheme based on average pay Brammer Nederfand funds thase plans and contnbutions
are paid as determined by the insurance company The assets of the schemne are held within the insurance company and are separate
from the group's finances

The insurance company has calculated company contnbutions to the defined benefit scheme dunng the year It 1s not expected for
2015 that company contributions will change significantty Past serwce enblements onginating from before 1 January 2000 are not yet
fully funded The funding of these entitiernents 1s included in the contnbutions

The latest actuanal valuation of the scheme was carned out as at 31 December 2014, using the projected unit credit method, by an
ndependent actuary based on data provided by the plan administrators, Nationale Nederlanden The pancipal assumptions used are
isted in the table below

Other Schemes

The group operates a number of defined contnbution schemes overseas and contnbutes to the state pension scheme arrangements
n a number of European countnes  Costs incurred In the year and charges to the income statement in respect of these schermes were
£0 3 miflion 2013 £0 4 milkon)
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27 Pension commitments

IAS 19 relirement benefits

The vefushons used for IAS 19 disclosures have been based an the most recent actuand valuations vpdated to take avcount of the
requrernents of IS 12 in order io assess the kabiibes of the scherme  Assets are stated at ther market value at 31 Decenmber 2074,

7 -4
A3t Docembwer 2014 A: 31 December 2013 At 31 Decertber 2004

Aetenamos
A 31 Decarmbar 7013

flaton rate 320% 3.50% 2.00% 2 00%
Rate of mcrease n salanes nfa n/a 2.00% 2.00%
Rate of ncrease of pensions in paymeni 3.00% 3.30% 200% Z 00%
Rate of ncrease for deferred pensioners 240% 2.70% 200% 2 00%
Drscount rale 3.60% 4.45% 2 25% 375%
Lide expectancy &t age 65 for
Curens pensioners — rales 2250 22 60
Cureni pensioners — famales 2490 24 80
Fuhure pensioners — males 23.90 23.80
Fuhare pensioners — fermales 26.30 26.20
The prnca categones of the schemes' assets were as follows
Fair valus at Fan wslue 2t
3 December XH4 31 Dacemiber 2013
£m £m
UK scheme
Eaubes 723 660
Corporate bonds 149 123
Hedge Fund 81 75
Insurance polcy 19.5 200
Cash 0.2 05
Total far value of assels 1150 1063
Present value of pension hablites {151.6} {133.1)
Deficat (36.6} {26 8)
Related deferred tax asset 73 54
Net pension habiity (29.3) {21.4)
Netherlands schemes
Fixed interest gits 93 6.6
Total far value of assets 93 66
Present value of pension liabilties (113} (7.6)
Deficit {2.0) (10
Related deferred tax asset 0.5 03
Net pension babiity (1.5) @7
Pensions and other post retirement obligations
The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are determined as follows
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
om £m £m £ Em
Present value of funded obhgations 162.9 1407 1258 11286 1102
Far value of plan assets {124.3) {112 9 (i04 1} {95 8) {94 4)
Net Labihity recognised in the balance sheet 38.6 278 N7 168 158
The amounts recognised in the income statement are as follows
2014 2013
£m £m
Current service cost 0.6 06
Scheme administration expenses 0.4 04
Operating costs {included i distnbution costs) 1.0 10
Net interest on defined benefit hability 1.1 09
Total pension expense 21 19
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27 Pension commutments

Analysis of the movement in the balance sheet Eability

2013

fm &m
Opereng s 21.7
BExchange adyrsiments 1) -
Cusrent senvice cost 06 0.6
Scheme admenstraton charges 04 0.4
Net srierest on defined bemesfit kediidy 11 0.9
Employer contrbuions (<%} 83
Actuandl loss recogresed as a resarves maovernent 125 7.5
Closing 336 278
ReconciBation of defined benefit obligation
2na 202
om &n
Opening defined benefit oblgaton 140.7 1258
Exchange adjustments 0.7 0.2
Current service cost 06 0.6
Interest expense 58 5.4
Actuard losses arisng forn changes i demographuc assumptions - 29
Actuanal losses ansng forn changes i financial assumptons 199 9.2
Actual benefit payments 3.9) 3.4}
Closing defined benefit cbihgaton 1629 140.7
Reconcifiation of fair value of plan assets
x4 2013
£m om
Opening fax value of plan assets {1129 (104 )
Exchange adfustments 06 ©.2)
Scheme administration expenses 04 04
Interest Income 4.0 4.5}
{Return} on assets excitrding miterest mcome (4.5) (4.9)
Loss/(gam) on assets 2.8) 03
Empioyer contnbubons [ ry] (33}
Actua benefit payments 34 34
Closing far value of plan assets (124.3) {112 9)
The sensitraties regarding the pnncipal assumpbons used to measure the UK scheme habiibes are as follows
Impact on scheme deficit
Assumption Change m assumgahion £m
Discount rate decrease by 0 1% 30
Inflabion rate increase by 0 1% 26
Life expectancy increase by 1 year 486

28 Related party transactions

Within the definibon of IAS 24 'Related party disclosure’, the Board and key management personnel are related parbes Detaled disclosure
of the remuneration of the Board 1s given in the Directors’ remunerabion report on pages 57 to 62 A summary of remuneration provided

to key management personnel 1s provided in note 24

In addition, dunng the year the group made sales totalting £0 1 miion (2013 £0 1 midlion) to vanous European subsidianes within the
Armstrong World Industnes group of companies, a company in which Charles Inang-Swaft 1s an Executive Director wathin the European

Floormg operations
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Five year record

2014 2053 iz 2081 200
i £ om o &m
Profit and loss
Revenue 7236 6519 6185 5715 4584
Underlying operatmg profl 412 393 373 K] 230
Amortsahon of acquired itangibles,
aoquisition related costs and exveptond tems {174) 35} {1.7} 4.5) G3
Protit on ordirany activibes before finence cosis 28 373 238 273 2.7
Net fnance expenss {6.1) (£.4) $3.4) .8 2.4
Profit on ordirary activites before tax 177 329 262 245 183
Tax it B8 &8 (62 ©.5)
Proit on ordnary actrites aftar tax 115 240 194 8.3 138
mogrmic segments
Revenue 2852 2334 286.3 1926 1462
Operatng profit 155 2310 181 94 8.5
Segment {nsl) assels 559 384 364 3o 59
Genmany
Revenue 1217 1186 1167 1255 1006
Operating profit 7.5 6.8 71 81 57
Segment (net) asses 256 234 241 177 16.1
France
Revenue B86.7 840 855 880 774
Operating profit a8 43 43 42 32
Segment {net) assels 134 143 a0 106 71
Span
Revenue 494 45.2 18 44 6 401
Operating profit 6.0 50 42 35 28
Segment {net} assets 8.0 5.6 64 32 34
Benelux
Revenue 831 532 518 513 46 4
Operating profit 26 2.7 27 27 24
Segment {net) assets 10.0 109 100 96 99
Scandmavia
Revenue 508 - - - -
Operating profit 25 - - - -
Segment (net) assets 21.0 - - - -
Eastern Europe & Other
Revenue 76.7 575 575 695 487
Operabing profit 23 - 09 39 24
Segment (net) assets 38.0 298 304 264 264
Net assets employed
Goodwill 118.5 a1.2 898 800 748
Property, plant, equipment and mtangible assets 63.7 40.2 341 325 212
Other working capital 108.1 830 81¢ 700 575
Net debt (85.3) {52.9) (53 8) (35 3} {36 7)
Deferred and contingent consiceration (7.3) (0 5) 4n (14 4) {80}
Tax (3.4) (4 0) (4 6 8 4} (6 0)
Retrement benefit obligations (38.6) {27 8) @210 {16 8} {158}
Financed by
Shareholders’ equdy $55.7 129.2 1210 1176 870




Five year record

4 02 Iz 2o 0D
rn o om om o

Cash flowr
Net cash miow fom operatmg actvbes 13.7 435 253 282 283
kieres! pad and receved a2 2.6} 23 £2.4) 23
Tax pad @8 7.9 g .1 2.7
Funding of pension schermes less pansion expense

mclsded in operating oo an 2.3 2.4 63 2.5
N=t capetal expendiiure — other intangibles (softwase) {6.5) 5.7} @4y 3 {u.
Net captal expendifure — property, pliant and equipment o5 B8 {5.5) .5) %
Acquisions, deferred and contingent

consacieralion payThents “o.5 @2 (11.5) 23.7) 7.9
Dridends pad (13.9) (11.5) {1022) {7.9) 6.0}
Francsng 484 11.£ 48 152 {112}
Movemen: in cash (226 15.3 (13.3) 1.8y 3.5}
Movermnem o debt and france laases (143 (3.7 {5-8} 56 113
Exchange movements 45 0.7 06 0.6 1.7
Movermneni n net debl B32.4) 0.9 (18.5) i4 3.2
Ratios
Earmungs per share — Basic 92p 205p 16 6p 16.8p 13.0p
Eamangs per share — Fully dikted 8.9p 19.9p 160p 16.4p 13.0p
Eamangs per share - belore amorisabon,

acqueston refated costs, and excepuonal tems 20.7p 22 1p 21.5p 19.8p 138p
Dnidend per share 10.7p 102p S4p 8.4p 6.6p
Interest cover — profit befors amorirsabon,

acquisstion refated costs, and excepbonal items 7.9x 11 4x 13.8x 11.3x 10.1x
EBITDA 49.1 459 425 35.2 274
Retun on organig operatng capetal employed 272% 318% 3M3% 38 1% 310%
Geanng (excluding net pension kability) 46% 35% 39% 26% 37%
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Directors’ report

The dreciors present ther repornt and the audited finencal statements of the comgany for the year ended 31 Desermber 2004,

Principal activits
The compary 5 the holdmng compamy for, and also provides management senvices o, the group.

Business reviewy, resullts and dvidends

The profit for the year was £33.3 miion 2013: proit of £6.7 mikon). The dreciors have recommended that a find dividend of 7.1p
{2012 6.8p} per share be pad whtch wil absorb an estmated £9.2 miton be (201 3: £8.0 milon). Subject to shargholder approval,
the dvidend will be paid on 2 July 2015 to sharcholders on the regester at the dose of busmess on 5 June 2015,

From the perspecive of the company, the key performance ndicators are ntegrated wih the key perfonmance indcators of the goup
and are not managed separatay. Accordngly, the key perforrmance ndicators of the Brammer group, whach inchude thase of the company,
are discussed i the strategc revewr sechon of the group's Annual Report winch do not form et of ths report.

Principal risks and inth
From the perspectve of the company, the principal nsks and uncertaines, including the francal ssks, ae megrated with the princpal
rs5ics of the group and are not imaneged separately Accordingly, the pancpal nsks and uncertainbes of the Brammer grop, witich include
those of the company, are discussed on pages 26 to 29 of the group’s Annual Repoet which does no: form part of this report; and the
fnancial nsk factors, winch include those of the company, are discussed on pages 82 and 83 of the goup’s Annual Report.

Payment to suppliers
The company  a holding comparny and had no trade supplisrs at the end of the financd year.

Drectors and directors’ interests
This miommaiion s shown m the group secton of the Annual Report.

Employees
Thus wiformation s shown n the Twectors’ Report in the group section of the Annual Report on page 35

Tax status
The company & not 2 close company for tax purposss

Independent auditors

So far as each director 1s aware, there 1S no relevant audit information of which the auditors are unaware Each director has taken all
the steps that he ought to have taken as a director n order to make themselves aware of any relevant audit mformaton and to establish
that the company’s auditors are aware of that n

By order of the Board

Steven Hodkinson -
Company Secretary

17 February 2015 ~




Independent auditors’ report to the members of Brammer pic

Report an the parent comparry financial statements
Ouwr opinion
in owr opruon, Brammer pic's parent company fmancial siaternents (he “frencid statements™y

> gve a e and By wew of the sizte of the parent compeny’s afars as =t 31 Depember 2014,

> have been properly prepared n acoordance with Uneied Kingdom Generally Accepted Acoountmg Practos; and
> hane been prepared in acoordancs with the regurements of the Companes Act 2006.

What we have audited
Brammer pics firanoal statemens comprise:

> the halance sheet as at 31 December 2014;

> the siatement of {otl recognsed geins and losses or the year then ended,

> the accountng pofices; and

> the notes to the fmancial statements, whsch include other explanatory mformaton.

The fnencal reporting framework that has been applied n the preparaton of the francial statemenss is apphicable krw and Uretad
Kingdom Accounting Standartis {Un:ied Kingdom Generally Accepted Accountng Practoe).

Other required reporting

Consistency of other mfonmation

in our opon, the Iformeaton given n the Stralege Report and the Dectons” Report for the firanci year for which ihe finencial statements
are prepared 15 consistent with the inancal statements.

ISAs (UK & freland) reporting
Linder imematonal Standards on Audiing (UK and treland) (ISAs (UK & treland)™) we are required 1o feport to you if, in cur opsuon,
nformaton n the Annual Report s

> matenally nconsistent wth the infoemation m the audited financial statements; or

> apparentty matenally mcorrect based on or matanaly mconsistent with, our knowdedge of the company accured m the course of
performng our audi, or

> oherwse nmusieading.

We have no excepbons to report ansng from thes responsibiity

Adequacy of accounting records and mformation and explanations receved
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, i our opirion

> we have not receved alt the information and explanations we require for our audit, or

> adequate accountng records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been recenved
from branches not visited by us, or

> the financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report 1o be audited are not in agreement with the accountng
records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report ansing from this responsibility

Directors’ remuneration

Directors’ remuneration report - Companies Act 2006 opmion

In our opevon, the part of the Dectors’ Remunerabon Report to be audited has been properly prepared m accordance with the Compames
Act 2006

Other Companies Act 2006 reporting

Under the Comparies Act 2006 we are required to report to you i, in cur opinion, certan disclosures of directors' remuneraton specified
by law are not made We have no exceptions to report ansing from this responsibility

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Our responsibiliies and those of the directors

As explained more fully n the Staterment of Directors’ Responsibiities, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
staternents and for being sausfied that they give a true and far view

Our responsibiity 15 to audit and express an oprion on the financial statements in accordance wath applicable law and ISAs (UK &
Ireland) Those standards require us to comply wath the Auditing Practices Board's Ethucal Standards for Audrors

Ths report, mchuding the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as a body n accordance with Chapter
3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purposa We do not, in gving these opinions, accept or assume responstbility
for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report 1s shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed
by our pnor consant n writing
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Brammer plc

What an audst of farancial statements involves

We conducted our andi in accomiance with ISAs (UK & felend). An audit rvolves cbtaming evidisnce shout the amounts and disclosures
m the inanoal statements sufiiciend to gve reasoneble assuramce that the financial statements are fee from material msstetonent,
whether caused by frawd or emor, This includes an assessment of:

> whether the accountng polioes are appropriale to the parent company’s croumstances and have been consstently appied and
adequately disciosed;

> the reasorabicness of significant accountng estimates made by the dirpctors; and

> the overa presentzhon of the Bnencal staterments.

Ve primnarily focus our work i these aneas by assessng the directons” udgements agairst avalats evdence, formming owr own judgements,
and evalating the cisclosires n the Srancial statements.

We test and exarmme infonmation, usang sampling and other aurfiing techaigues, 1o the extemt we consicer necessany to providz a
reasonzble bass for us to draw conclusions. We cbiain audit evidence through testng the efiectveness of controls, substantve
procedunes or g combnabon of both,

In addizon, we read & the financal and nonHinanaa sormaton in the Annusl Report 1o identry materal inconsstencies with “he audited
financal statements and to identrly any sdormaton that is apparenty maenally noomect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the
knowdedge acquired by us in the course of performing the a2udit. | we become aware of any spparent material nusstatements or
inconsistencies we consider the mplcations for our report.

Other matter
wEmmwmmmmmmmmmnmmmm December 2014,

N/ ICa~ | 1O

Martin {Sermvor Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers 11 P
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Manchester

17 February 2045




Balance sheet 2231 Docarber 2004

2014 3
Nt fm .
Fixed assets
Tengble assets i 97 886
frvestments — sheaes in group underntskings 2 197.7 1146
2074 1232
Current assets
Debiors — due after moare than one year 3 1339 089
Debiors — due within one year 3 185 78
1524 1247
Cash at bank and o hand ol 0.1
1525 1248
Creditors — amounts falling due within one year 4 (76.0) (B85.5)
Net cument assets 76.5 593
Total assets less cunent kabiites 2839 1825
Creditors — amounts faling due after more than one year 5 91.6) {66 C)
Net assets 1923 1165
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital a 259 236
Share premasm account 8.2 182
Specal capital eserve 2.t 12.1
Profit and loss account 136.1 6286
Total shareholders® funds 1923 1165

The notes on pages 116 to 121 form part of these financal staterments

The: financal statements on pages 115to 121

Bill Whiteley Paul Thwaite
Charman Fnance direct

by the board on 17 February 2015 and were signed on its behalf by

—

Statement of total recognised gains and losses For the year ended 31 Decamber 2014
2014 2013

Notes £m Om

Profit for the year 7 383 67
Effectve portion of changes in far value of cash flow hedges 7 - 01
Total recognised gains for the year 383 68

The notes on pages 116 to 121 form part of these financial staternents
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Accounting policies

Basss of preparation

The company fnancial statanments fave been prepared on the gomng concam basis and under the nstoncal cost comvernton modfed
for far values and m accordarce with the Compaes Act 2008 and wth apphcable UK accousnting standands, The acoountng polices
have been appled corsistenidy.

A separate profit and loss accouT: deshng vith the esullts of the company has not been presented as penmitted by secton 408.3) of
the Comparves Act 2006.

Fores B
Transactons n foreign cumencies 2 recorded usmg the rate of exchange nubing at the dzte of the transaction. Monetary assets and
zbiibes derominated n foregn amrencies are transiated into Stering at the retes of exchange ruing on the bokance sheet date and
exchange differences are taken to the profit and loss acoount.

Fixed assets
Fxed assets are stated at cost and mclude the ongnal purchase pnee of the asset and the costs attributable to brngmg the asset to
= workng condibon for s ntended use

Softvrare development

Cests assocated with marstizenng compuier software programimes are recognised as an expense as nouned. Costs that are drectly
assocated wath denbiable soitware systems operated by the goup and will generzle economee bengdits excceading costs beyond
one year, are recogmsed as fixed assets. Drect costs nclude staff costs of the software development team and an appropnaie porton
of direct overheads.

Bxpenditure wiach enhances or extands the perfomance of identfisble software systems beyond thesr ongnal spearficabons is mengnised
as a capital mprovement and added to the ongnal cost of the sottware. Compurter software development costs recognised as assets
are amortsed using the straght-Ene method over thew usefl Eves, not exceeding a penod of 7 years.

Depreciation

Tangble fixed assets are stated at cost less deprecabhon Depreciation s provided by equal annud instaiments to wate off the cost of
fixed assets, net of ressdual values, over the expected useful Efe of the asset concermed. In genaral the lives of the assets have been
estmated as follows-

Equnprment 4 -7 years

Investments

Shares n subsidiary companes and fixed asset mvesiments are shown al cost subject to provision for mparment n valuation
Borrowmgs

Borowngs are recognised as the proceeds receved, net of transaction costs ncuned, which are then amorbsed over the expected
tife of the factty

Deferred and contmgent consideration
The amounts recogrnised for deferred and contingent considerabion are the direclors” best estenates of the actimal amount which will be
payable Deferred consideraton is discounted at an approprnate nsk-free rate

Denivative financial instruments
The company uses dervative financral nstruments to hedge its exposure to nterest rate nsks ansing from financing actmties Interest
rale swaps are used which swap a portion of the floating rate loans into fixed rate

Certain denvative financial nstruments are designated as hedging mstruments i kne with the company’s nsk management pobcies
Hedges are classified as follows

> cash flow hedges when they hedge exposure to vanabibity in cash flows that s atributable to a particuar nsk that 15 assocated
with a forecast transacton, and
> far value hedges when they hedge the exposure to changes in the far value of a recogrised asset or fiability

The farr value of a hedging denvative 1s classified as a non-current asset or hability when the remaming matunty of the hedged item s
more than 12 months, and as a current asset or labidity when the remaining matunty of the hedged tem s fess than 12 months

Hedge accounting

All denvative financial instruments are intially recogmised in the balance sheet at far value and are subsequently remeasured to ther
farr value at each balance sheet date Changes in the fair value of denvative financiat instruments that do not qualify for cash flow
hedge accounting are recognised it profit and loss as they anse Where a denvative financal instrument 1s designated as a cash flow
hedge, the effective part of any gan or loss on the denvative financial Instrument 1s recogrised directly in equity, the neffective part of
any gan or loss is recognised immediately in profit and loss




Accounting policies

Pension costs

The company partcicates in a funded group operated defimed benefil penson scheme, the Brammer Services Retremeant Bemelt
Scheme. Under the definihons set outn FRS 17, the Brammer scheme 5 a mult-employer pension scheme. The congany 15 unabile
io idenify #s stare of the underlying aseets and kzhiibes in the schems on a consistent and reasonabls basis and thersioe trects the
schame as a defimed comributicn schame. Pemson cos?s refated 0 delined contribution schemes are charged as comtritutions fa due.

Proviss
Prowvsions n respect of Ezbiftes are made in accordanoe with FRS 12 and are discountad where the efiect 5 material Provisons are
recogrsed when the company has a present obfigaion &s aresult of a past event, «f & probable that a sansfer of economic benalits
vl be required 1o setile the cbibgaton, and a refizble eshmate can be made of the amount of the chigaton.

Share based payments

The far values of employee share ophion and share perfonmance plarns are calcubaind using the Black-Scholes model. in accordance
wath FRS 20, “Share-based Payments” the resultng cost s charged to the profit and koss acoount over the vestng period of the optons.
The total amount to be expensed over the vestng penod s determned by reference o the far value of the opaons granted, excludng
the snpact of any non-rarket vesing condibons. The charge m relation to employee share options and share perfomeance plans weith
market vesing concioons are not deemead to be matenal to the group Non-market vestng condibons are mciuded i assumgrbons
about the rumber of optons that are expectad (o vest. At each batance shieet dats, the value of the charge s adjusted to reflect expected
and actual tevels of options vesing for changes in non market vesting critena.

Current and deferred tax
Cumrent tax
Corporation tax payable s provided on taxable profits at the current rate

Deferred tax

Detfered taxation is recogrused i respect of all mang differences that have ongnated but not reversed at the balance sheet date
where transacbons or events that resuft m an cbhgabon to pay more lax n the futwre, or a nght to pay less tax n the future, have
occurred at the balance sheet date. Dearred tax assels are regarded as recoverable and recogsed n the finencial statements when,
on the basis of avaiable evidence, it s more lkely than not that there will be suitable laxable profits from which the future reversal of
the trreng differences can be deducted The recoverabiity of tax losses 1s assessed by reference to forecasts which hase been prepared
and approved by the Board. Deferred tax assets and {iabiites are not discounted.

Dividend
The final dndend 1s recogresed m the group's financial statements in the penod i which it 1s approved by the group’s shareholders.
The intenyn dwidend s recogrised when pad

Directors’ remuneration, employee share schemes and dividends
Detads of directors’ remuneration, employee share schemes and divdends are ncluded in the group sechon of the Annual Report.
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Notes to the financial statements

1 Fixed assets - tangible assets

me 2013
£ £
Equipment
Cost
AL T Jamzry 173 123
Adcitions a6 31
Transfers [ 1 F, ] -
{xsposals - {C.1)
Al 31 December 2.7 173
Accumitated depreciation
Al 1 Jamuy 87 &8
Charge 23 19
At 31 December 110 87
Net book vatue
At 1 Jamary 86 75
Movement in year 1.1 i1
At 31 December 97 86
2 Fixed assets - investments (unlisted)
2014 213
©m om
Subsidian
At i January 1146 112.8
Addibonal nvestment i exesting subsdianes 421 i8
Investment m new subsidianes 428 -
Imparment of existng subsidiary 1.8 -
At 31 December 197.7 11486

Detatls of the pnncipal operating subsidianes which are esther wholly owned by the company or iis subsidianes are shown on page 124

In the opiron of the drrectors, tha value of the company's investments n is subsidianes is not less than the amount at which it s
stated on the balance sheet

3 Debtors
2014 2013
fm £m
Amounts due after one year
Amounts owed by group undertakings 1339 1069
Amounts due within one year
Amounts owed by group undertakings 15.1 122
Other debtors 0.8 18
Prepayments and accrued income 0.4 06
Corporation tax 1.1 19
Deferred tax (note 6} 1.1 13
18.5 178
152.4 1247

Amounts owed by group undertakings are unsecured and carry interast at varying margins relating to base rate  The loans are reépayable
at any time with the mutual agreement of both parties




Notes to the financial statements

4 Creditors — amoustts falling due within one year

2014 2003

=Y om

Bank overditis 23 70
Amounits owed 1o group undersiangs 454 53.3
Defemed and contmgen: considerabon 13 -
Aconudls 39 4.6
Derhvacme fimancial kebiibes 0.1 —
60 655

Ameunts oned to growp underialangs sre unsecured and cany nderest at vanymg mangms retaling to base rate. The Inars are epayable
at &y trme waith thve onutual agreerment of both partes.

The amounts recognsed on acquasshon in respect of dederred and conngent consmieration ae managemant's besi estimates of de
amounts winch will be payable. Both the amounits and the trming of fisure paymanis ae umcertan as they are dependentd upon the
futune performance of the businesses acqured

5§ Creditors — amounts falling due after more than one year

214 2013
£m om
Rank and other borowngs
Unsecured bank loan repayable
Between one and two years 255 325
Between two and five years - -
Ovex five years 66.1 333
916 658
Denvative financial habiites - o2
"6 660

Details of the bank loans and denvative financial habidibes are gven in notes 14 and 15 of the group financial statements.

6 Deferred tax
2014 203
£m £m
Deferred tax
At 1 January 13 07
Profit and loss account {0.2) 06
At 31 December 1.1 13

The movement in the year and the closing asset pnncipally relate to deferred tax on share-based payments
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Notes to the financiaj statements

7 Movements in Shareholders’ funds

Celle up S Specd

st T it Cashiow  Poiadioss e 23

itz aorourt TESENE  NECpTT TESEG BT Total Total

om m oim B £rn fm om

At 1 Jamnsry 236 182 121 {C.1) 62.7 11656 i20.8
Shares ssued dunng the year 23 - - - 501 524 0.1
Proft jor the year - - - - 383 383 68

Cradends - - - — {i3.4} (134) {(ii.5)

Purchase of own shares inote 8) - - - - {1.6) {1.6) 2.4}
Value of employee services - - - - 0.1 o1 2.7

Movement in yez 23 - - - 740 763 4.3}
At 31 December 259 i82 121 [+R}} 1362 1923 116.5

The special capital reserve s non-distributable £22 1 mifon of relaned earmngs & considered 0 be non-distributable.

8 Called up share capital

2014 2014 013 2013
Maxnber om MNumber &m
Ordinary sheres of 20p each
Alotted and ully pad
At 31 December 129,404,481 259 118,004,074 23.6

The Company has no Emit on authonsed share capeial

tn the penod from 1 January 2015 to 17 February 2015 no shares were issued on the exeraise of options under the company's share
opion schemes.

Placing

On 9 April 20114 the company announced an 1ssuance 11,300,407 new ordinary shares at 475 pence per share through a placing with
nshitut:onal mvestors, representing 9.6% of the total 1ssued share capital at a 2 66% discount to the prevading market pnce The
placing was 1 85 times oversubscribed and raised a net £52 4 million proceeds, being gross proceeds on issue of £53 7 milion kess
expenses of £1 3 millon

Ordinanly, the excess of the net proceeds over the normunal value of the share capital issued woudd be credited to a non-distributable
share premium account However, the placing was effected through a structure whuch resutted 1n the excess of the net proceeds over
the nomunal vatue of the share capstal besng recogmised within retamed earmings under section 612 of the Companies Act 2006 Of the
£50 1 milion recogresed within retained earnings, £4 7 miion s considered to be non-distnbutable

Purchase of own shares
Dunng the period the company acquired 468,510 of its own shares of 20p each through the Brammer plc Employee Share Ownership
Trust {*the Trust”) for an aggregate consideration of £1,614,756 which has been deducted from shareholders’ equity

The shares are held by the Trust to meet vestings under the group's performance share plans and share matching plans

Tranches of these plans vested dunng the pencd and 335,046 shares were transferred to directors and servor managers in order (o
meset vestings under these plans

2,091 ophons were exercised dunng the year under the group’s employee share option schemes with exercise proceeds of £2,080

At 31 December 2014 the Trust held a total of 188,056 shares in the company in order to meet part of the company’s labhties under
the performance share plans and share matching plans  The Trust deed contans a waver provision In respect of these shares

Ordinary shares issued
Dunng the penod the Trust subscnbed for 100,000 ordinary shares of 20p each at par
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9 Employee benefit expense

014 bl v
o= Om

Wages and salares B.6 6.7
Socid satuity Costs 16 1.3
Share optons gramied to direciors and employees 0.1 27
Ciher pension costs 31 30
134 135

Average number of employess (ncuding directons on a senvice conirach 160 22

10 Auditors’ remuneration

Fees payable to the company's auditors for the audit of the financal statements were D0 1 mition (2013, 80 1 m#ton). Non-audt foes
payable to the company’s auditors were £0 4 milion (2013. D0.3 mdion)

11 Contingent liabilities

The company’s major subsiBanes are party to a bank guaranise whereby they agree to discharge on demand, in part or i total, bank
borovmgs under a specific fachity of other companies withn the Bammer plc group.

12 Related party transactions

The company s exempt under the terms of FRS8 from disclosig related party transactions with entities thal are pari of the group as
these transacbons are fully efimmated on consohdahon
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Financial calendar 2015

15 May 2015
5 June 2015
2 July 2005

28 Juby 2015

Armug| gereral mesting at 43-45 Broad Strest, Teddington, Middiesex TWH 1 8027
Record date

Ervudend paymnent dele

Annoumcement of irterm results for the six monts to 30 June 2015




Shareholder information

I you recuiza any mfonmaion about your sharsholding please contact the company's regesirars, Equerid, Aspect Housse, Spencer Roed
Lancing, West Sussex BNS9 6DA tafephona GB71 38422135, Calls to this numiber cost 8p per mmute plus retwork exdras. Limes are
open from 8.30am o 5 30pm, Monday to Friday. For overseas caflers the number to call s +44 {[H121 4157047,

The regisirar hes miroduced a servce: for srarshelders which gives them on-ire mtamet access 1o their shereholding. To register please
00 {0 Wiy shareven.oo.uk. You will nesd your shareholder acooum! number and you will be asked (o select your oam PIN. E you hase

Our website

You can find out &arier andormration abowt Brammgr ple and veew company anncuncements on the Brammes webstie at v brammarbiz.
ShareGift scheme

Some sharehokiers fnd themselves owning a very small nusmiber of shares that woulkd cest them more o dspose of than they ae
warth. They bang wwith themn a tax kabidty and unwantaed documentation.

The ShareGift scheme 1s a regestared charity run by The O Mackintosh Foundation. Any shares donated o the Shere(Gift scheme

ae uansiemed o the name of The O Mackintosh Foundianon, the shares are sold where possie and the proceads are donated
to chanty.

if you would like further mformahon on the ShareGilt Scheme please call 020 7930 3737 or wisit its webssie at weww sharegit.org
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Independent auditors
PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Charfered Accountants &
Statuiory Audiors

101 Bartwrolh Square

Lower Mosley Street
Manchester M2 3PW

Financial advisers
Investec Bank plc
2 Gresham Street
London EC2V 7QP

Stockbrokers
Investec Bank pic
2 Gresham Street
L.ondon EG2V 70P

Peel Hunt LLP
120 London Wall
London EC2Y SET

Austna

Brarmmer Qstereach ndustie
Senace GrabH

Stefan Gehwnayr +49 721 7905 503

Belgiam
Bramimer NV
Rudk Ramackers +32 3821 0214

Czech Republic
Brammer Czech as”
Tomas Flasar +420 277 003 465

Koma Commerncial sro
Pavel Kotagny +420 602 732 147

Denmark

Brammer A/S

fformedy Lanne Scandinaa A/S)
Jan Launizen +45 764 08 700

Fintand
Linne Scandinavia OY
Arto Ofkannen +358 9 3424 300

France
Brammer France SAS
Juben Monterrp +33 3 88 40 40 88

Germany
Brammer GmbH
Jochen Driehm 49 721 7906 503

Hungary
Brammer Magyarorszag Kit
Judit Vaszilko +36 53 500 040

Iceland
Brammer Island ehf
Mick Wallwork +354 470 7961

Ireland

Brammer Industnal reland Ltd
t/a Brammer lretand

Cuaran Halhnan +353 1 830 5455

ftaty
Brammer ltaka Sd”
Alessandro Lonardo +39 73 57 61 760

Luxemhbourg
Brammer SA*
Rud Ramaekers +32 3821 0414

The Nethertands
Brammer Nederkand BV*
Padvan der Rest +31 235 164164

Norway
Brammear Norge AS
b/ftck Walwork +354 470 7561

Brammer AS*
{formerty { Gone Scandinava AS)
Cie Jacoh Myre +47 5539 1000

Poland
Brammer SA*
Stamstaw Nowak +48 17 227 0000

Stovakia
Brammer Slovakia sro
Tomas Aasar +420 277 003 465

Spain
Brammer bena, SA
Jesis Martnez Planas +34 94 457 9400

Sweden

Brammer Sweden AB
(foemesdy Lonne Scandinawa AB)
Joegen Ottosson +46 42 38 03 00

United Kingdom
Brammer UK Larwied
lan Ritchie +44 161 953 8600

*Shares owned directly by Brammer plc

Al companies listed above are incorporated
in the countiy under which they are hsted
Except as shown above, all companies
are owned through ntermediate holding
companes, principally Brammer industhal
Services Umited Further subsidianes
have not been shown because they are
dormmant or not matenal Ther particulars
will be inctuded m the next annual retum

All compantes are accounted for as wholly
owned subswdianes as the group has
eflective ownership of those companies
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